Public Document Pack

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL
To: Councillor Milne, Convener; and Councillors Boulton, Donnelly, Jaffrey and Stuart

Town House,
ABERDEEN, 27 January 2015

LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

The Members of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL are

requested to meet in Committee Room 5 - Town House on WEDNESDAY, 4 FEBRUARY
2015 at 10.00 am.

JANE G. MACEACHRAN
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

BUSINESS

1 Procedure Notice (Pages 1 - 2)

COPIES OF THE RELEVANT PLANS / DRAWINGS ARE AVAILABLE FOR
INSPECTION IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING AND WILL BE DISPLAYED AT
THE MEETING

TO REVIEW THE DECISION OF THE APPOINTED OFFICER TO REFUSE THE
FOLLOWING APPLICATIONS

2 42 Albyn Place, Aberdeen - Alterations and extension to form new office
accommodation - 140365

PLANNING ADVISER - GAVIN EVANS

3 Delegated Report (Pages 3 - 12)

4 Planning policies referred to in documents submitted (Pages 13 - 14)




5 Notice of Review with supporting information submitted by applicant / agent
(Pages 15 - 146)

6 Determination - Reasons for decision

Members, please note that reasons should be based against Development Plan
policies and any other material considerations.

7 Consideration of conditions to be attached to the application - if Members are
minded to over-turn the decision of the case officer

8 73 Charlotte Street, Aberdeen - Reinstatement of basement flats (2 No) to
habitable studio apartments - 141535

PLANNING ADVISER - PAUL WILLIAMSON

9 Delegated Report (Pages 147 - 152)

10  Planning policies referred to in documents submitted (Pages 153 - 154)

11 Notice of Review with supporting information submitted by applicant / agent
(Pages 155 - 170)

12 Determination - reasons for decision

13 Consideration of conditions to be attached to the application - if Members are
minded to over-turn the decision of the case officer

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Stephanie
Dunsmuir on 01224 522503 or email sdunsmuir@aberdeencity.gov.uk



Agenda ltem 1

LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

PROCEDURE NOTE

GENERAL

1.

The Local Review Body of Aberdeen City Council (the LRB) must at all times
comply with (one) the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Schemes
of Delegation and Local Review Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008 (the
regulations), and (two) Aberdeen City Council's Standing Orders.

In dealing with a request for the review of a decision made by an appointed
officer under the Scheme of Delegation adopted by the Council for the
determination of “local” planning applications, the LRB acknowledge that the
review process as set out in the regulations, shall be carried out in stages.

As the first stage and having considered the applicant’s stated preference (if
any) for the procedure to be followed, the LRB must decide how the case
under review is to be determined.

Where the LRB consider that the review documents (as defined within the
regulations) provide sufficient information to enable them to determine the
review, they may (as the next stage in the process) proceed to do so without
further procedure.

Should the LRB, however, consider that they are not in a position to determine
the review without further procedure, they must then decide which one of (or
combination of) the further procedures available to them in terms of the
regulations should be pursued. The further procedures available are:-

(@)  written submissions;

(b) the holding of one or more hearing sessions;

(c) an inspection of the site.

If the LRB do decide to seek further information or representations prior to the
determination of the review, they will require, in addition to deciding the
manner in which that further information/representations should be provided, to
be specific about the nature of the information/representations sought and by
whom it should be provided.

[n adjourning a meeting to such date and time as it may then or later decide,
the LRB shall take into account the procedures outlined within Part 4 of the
regulations, which will require to be fully observed.

DETERMINATION OF REVIEW

8.

Once in possession of all information and/or representations considered
necessary to the case before them, the LRB will proceed to determine the
review,

Page 1



9. The starting point for the determination of the review by the LRB will be Section
25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, which provides
that:-

“where, in making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is
to be had to the Development Plan, the determination shall be made in
accordance with the Plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.”

10.  In coming fo a decision on the review before them, the LRB will require:-

(a) to consider the Development Plan position relating to the application
proposal and reach a view as to whether the proposal accords with the
Development Plan;

(b)  toidentify all other material considerations arising (if any) which may be
relevant to the proposal;

{c) to weigh the Development Plan position against the other material
considerations arising before deciding whether the Development Plan
should or should not prevait in the circumstances.

11. In determining the review, the LRB will:-
(a) uphold the appointed officers determination, with or without
amendments or additions to the reason for refusal; or
(b) overturn the appointed officers decision and approve the application
with or without appropriate conditions.

12.  The LRB will give clear reasons for its decision in recognition that these will
require to be intimated and publicised in full accordance with the regulations.

committees/local review body/procedure note

Page 2



Agenda ltem 3

Signed (authorised Officer(s)): 42 ALBYN PLACE, ABERDEEN

ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSION TO
FORM NEW OFFICE ACCOMMODATION

For: Quantum Claims

Application Type : Detailed Planning

Permission

Application Ref. . P140365

Application Date  : 14/03/2014

Advert : Section 60/65 - Dev aff
LB/CA

Advertised on : 02/04/2014

Officer : Garfield Prentice
Creation Date : 14 November 2014

Ward: Hazlehead/Ashley/Queen's Cross(M
Greig/J Stewart/R Thomson/J Corall)
Community Council: No response received

RECOMMENDATION:
Refuse
DESCRIPTION

The site located on the south side of Albyn Place, close to its junction with
Queen’s Cross and comprises a detached 1% storey, plus basement, granite
building. The front elevation is quite ornate with granite portico and granite faced
dormers. The premises ground floor and basement level are currently used for
offices, occupied by a company known as Broad Cairn, while the first floor is a
residential flat. The rear garden contains four significant trees (Sycamore,
Cherry, Copper Beech and Western Hemlock), three of which are located
approximately midway between the building and the rear double garage (which
abuts St. Swithin Row), the other being adjacent to the garage. The garage has a
mansard roof with rooflights on the elevation facing the lane. There is a large tree
at the front of the property, close to the front boundary. Informal car parking is
available at the front of the property.

The site located within the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area. To the
west of the site is a rather ornate 22 storey listed building currently occupied by
Clydesdale Bank, while to the east is a 1'% storey office building occupied by
Scottish Enterprise. Both properties have been extended, by 2 storey and single

Page 3



storey extensions respectively. Adjacent to the garage at the rear is a residential
property fronting on to St. Swithin Row.

RELEVANT HISTORY
None that is relevant to the consideration of this proposal.
PROPOSAL

Detailed planning permission is sought for the construction of a 3 storey
extension to the rear of the building and the conversion of the first floor
residential flat to provide additional office accommodation. The proposed
extension would measure approximately 21.5 metres long by 12.5 metres and
would attain a height of 9.5 metres. It would be of contemporary design and
finished mostly in glass curtain walling on the side and rear elevations. Some
areas of timber effect cladding and Chinese granite are also proposed. Grey K-
Rend render and grey cladding panels are proposed on the north elevation. The
link section between to the existing building and the new office accommodation
would also be 3 storeys high (plus basement level) and would include toilet
facilities and stairs to all floors.

It is proposed to provide a car parking area comprising 8 parking spaces within
the rear part of the site, with motorcycle and cycle parking being within an
existing garage located close to the rear lane. That garage would also be altered
to permit access through it to the parking area. It is also proposed to alter the
parking area at the front of the building. A semi-circular driveway and 5 parking
spaces would be formed. No details of surface materials for the two parking
areas and driveway have been provided.

Supporting Documents

All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref.=140365

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first
page of this report.

Tree Reports by Astell Associates and Enviro Centre
Design and Access Statement

CONSULTATIONS
Roads ProjectsTeam — In accordance with the current parking standards, the
applicant should provide 1 parking space per 50sqgm gross floor area (GFA). The

proposed site could provide up to 28 parking spaces. It is noted that the applicant
proposes to provide 18 parking spaces, a shortfall of 10 spaces. The

Page 4



development is located with a controlled parking zone with pay and display
parking facilities. Although the parking would be below the allowable level, given
the site’s good accessibility to public transport and proximity to the city centre,
the shortfall in parking is acceptable. However, to mitigate the potential for
additional parking pressure in the area it is requested that planning approval is
conditional on the provision of measures to promote sustainable access to the
development. As a minimum these should include the promotion of public
transport and the city car club.

The applicant should provide 1 cycle parking space per 300sgm and 1
motorcycle parking space per 1,000sgm of GFA. Accordingly, at least 5 cycle
spaces and 1 motorcycle space should be provided. The parking should be
secure and shower and changing facilities should be provided for use by staff.
The disabled parking bay should be relocated to the front of the premises.

As the proposal is below the thresholds, no contribution will be required to the
Strategic Transport Fund.

One point of access with restricted width would not be suitable at this location
and thus the western access should be retained and additional parking at this
location should be relocated.

The applicant should provide information about deliveries and refuse vehicles
arrangements to the proposed site.

A Drainage Impact Assessment in line with SUDS principles should be submitted.
Environmental Health — No observations

Communities, Housing and Infrastructure (Flooding) — No observations
Community Council — No response received

REPRESENTATIONS

No letters of representation/objection/support have been received.

PLANNING POLICY

National Policy and Guidance

Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) is the statement of Scottish Government policy on
land use planning and includes the Scottish Government’s core principles for the
operation of the planning system and concise subject planning policies. The
subject planning policy relating to the historic environment is a relevant material
consideration.

Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) is a relevant material consideration.
Aberdeen Local Development Plan

Policy D1 — Architecture and Placemaking

To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting.

Page 5



Policy D5- Built Heritage
Proposals affecting conservation areas or listed buildings will only be permitted if
they comply with Scottish Planning Policy.

Policy BI3 — West End Offices
In this area (shown on the Proposals Map), applications for change of use for
office purposes will be given favourable consideration.

Policy NES5 - Trees and Woodlands

There is a presumption against all activities and development that will result in
the loss of or damage to established trees and woodlands that contribute
significantly to nature conservation, landscape character or local amenity,
including ancient and semi-natural woodland which is irreplaceable.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan
The following policies substantively reiterate policies in the adopted local plan as
summarised above:

Policy D1 — Quality Placemaking by Design

All development must ensure high standards of design and have a strong and
distinctive sense of place which is a result of context appraisal, detailed planning,
quality architecture, craftsmanship and materials.

Policy D4 — Historic Environment

The Council will protect, preserve and enhance the historic environment in line
with Scottish Planning Policy, SHEP, its own Supplementary Guidance and
Conservation Area Character Appraisals and Management Plan. It will assess
the impact of proposed development and support high quality design that
respects the character, appearance and setting of the historic environment and
protects the special architectural or historic interest of its listed buildings,
conservation areas, archaeology, scheduled monument, historic gardens and
designed landscapes.

Policy NES — Trees and Woodlands

There is a presumption against all activities and development that will result in
the loss of, or damage to, trees and woodlands that contribute to nature
conservation, landscape character, local amenity or climate change adaptation
and mitigation.

The policy below has been changed significantly from Policy BI3 of the adopted
local development plan in that it introduces new consideration relating to the size,
scale and design of development proposals and how such proposals would affect
the special historic and architectural character of the area.

Page 6



Policy B3 - West End Office Area

In the West End Office Area (as shown on the Proposals Map) proposals for
change of use to office use or the expansion of existing office use will only be
acceptable provided;

a) the size, scale and design of development proposals respect the special
historic and architectural character of the area and;

b) the design meets all of the relevant criteria set out in the Historic Environment
TAN, with regards to relationship to the existing building, context and
modifications to existing extensions (see also the Design Policies).

Other Relevant Material Considerations

The Albyn Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area Appraisal is a relevant material
consideration.

EVALUATION

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland)
Act 1997 places a duty on planning authorities to preserve and enhance the
character or appearance of conservation areas

Policy BI3 — West End Offices

Policy BI3 supports changes of use to office use. The majority of the property is
currently used for that purpose. The conversion of the residential flats to office
use is supported by the policy. However, the policy relates to changes of use and
is not directly relevant to the consideration of extensions to buildings.

Design and Scale of the Proposed Extension

Whilst the property at 42 Albyn Place is not listed, there are a significant
proportion of listed buildings in the surrounding area, including the adjacent
building at 1 Queen’s Cross. The property remains mostly unaltered having not
been extended. As such, the front and rear elevations have not changed from
their original design and form. The buildings to either side of the site have been
extended, 1 Queen’s Cross by a 2 storey extension and 41 Albyn Place by a
single storey pitched roof extension. It is acknowledged, as highlighted in the
applicant’s Design and Access Statement, that there is precedent for large rear
extensions to properties in the surrounding area, these ranging from single storey
to 3 storeys high. However, each planning application must be assessed and
determined on its own merits, but with particular regard being paid to the specific

Page 7



characteristics, scale and form of the original building and those immediately
adjacent to it.

Policy D1 of the local development plan seeks to ensure all development is
designed with due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution
to its setting. In this case, the original building is 1'% storey high on its Albyn
Place frontage and 2 storeys on its rear elevation. The applicant acknowledges in
the Design and Access Statement the importance of the building and the need to
give careful consideration to the design of the proposal, stating "Whilst the
existing property is not listed, it is still a fine example of a detached granite villa,
set back from the street with a dominant front fagade, typical of Albyn Place. As
such the site is of both historical and architectural merit, therefore careful
consideration has been input into the design process”. Notwithstanding this
statement, for the reasons explained below, insufficient analysis and
consideration of the context and the impact on the historic environment has been
given to the formulation of the proposal.

The proposed extension, at 3 storeys high, would be out of keeping with the
existing building in terms of its scale and massing and would have a very uneasy
and incongruous relationship with the existing building. Although mostly hidden
from view from Albyn Place, it would be partially visible from St. Swithin Street
across the car parking of the adjacent property and thus its scale and massing
would be clearly discernible from a public place. The extension would dominate
and overwhelm the existing building, being of substantially larger massing and
footprint than the existing property. Contrary to the applicant’s assertion in the
Design and Access Statement, the proposal cannot reasonably or legitimately be
described as being subservient to the existing building. The height, massing and
detailing of the ‘link’ section and how it would connect to the existing building (i.e.
above wallhead level) is wholly inappropriate and would have a detrimental
impact on the appearance of the original building. Most of the extensions in the
locality are linked to the existing buildings below wallhead level, this being a more
satisfactory design solution. Where 3 storey extensions have been permitted on
Albyn Place, they relate to considerably larger original buildings, generally
substantial 2 or 22 storey properties and where rear ground levels permit such
an extension.

Whilst the principle of contemporary design for extensions to properties in the
conservation area is acceptable, in this case the failing of the proposal in terms of
scale, massing and form are such that the proposal does not respect its context,
nor would it make a positive contribution to character of the area. Rather, the
proposal would have a negative impact, contrary to the terms of Policy D1 of the
local development plan. Further, the scale and massing of the extension and its
proximity to the adjacent property at 41 Albyn Place would be somewhat
dominating and overwhelming for the occupants of that building.

Page 8



Impact on the Character of the Conservation

The site is located within the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area. Albyn
Place was originally built on the lands of Rubislaw, owned by James Skene who
commissioned Archibald Elliot to prepare a scheme for Aberdeen based on the
New Town in Edinburgh. Albyn Place is characterised as a wide tree lined
avenue with large and distinguished detached granite villas set back from the
road in their own substantial grounds. Many of the buildings are relatively plain
with little ornate detail. The properties on the application site and the adjacent
site (1 Queen’s Cross) are notable exceptions having quite ornate frontages. A
large number of the buildings have been converted to office use with a
substantial number being extended to the rear. Albyn Place and the eastern part
of Queen’s Road, in particular, are characterised by this pattern of the
development.

SPP and SHEP seek to ensure that the character and appearance of
conservations areas are preserved or enhanced. Indeed, there is statutory duty
on planning authorities under section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 for the desirability to preserve or
enhance the character of conservation areas. The property remains mostly
unaltered having not been extended. As such, the front and rear elevations have
not changed from their original design and form. It is acknowledged that the
existing character of the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area is one of a
substantial number of commercial premises, many of which have been altered
and extended over time. For that reason, it is considered that, in principle, the
property can be extended, provided such an extension would be of appropriate
scale, massing, form, design and relationship to the existing and adjacent
buildings. As noted above, the proposed extension, at 3 storeys high, would be
out of keeping with the existing building in terms of its scale and massing and
would have a very uneasy and incongruous relationship with the existing building.
The proposal would not preserve the character or appearance of the
conservation area and thus is contrary to SPP, SHEP and Policy D5 of the local
development plan.

The proposal would result in the loss of the majority of the rear garden and the
loss of at least two of the four trees. The trees are protected by virtue of being
within a conservation area. A 19 metre high Western Hemlock tree and a 9 metre
high Cherry tree would be directly affected by the proposal. The Tree Report
submitted by the applicant also indicates that a 13 metre high Sycamore tree
next to the boundary should be felled. The loss of the trees would have localised
impact on the character of the area, but would not significantly affect the overall
character of the conservation area. Whilst, the loss of garden ground would have
an adverse impact, the prevailing character of the surrounding area is one of
significant areas of car parking to the rear of the majority of buildings. In that
regard, the provision of car parking would not significantly impact on the
character of the conservation area.

Page 9



The alterations to the front parking area would have a small positive impact on
the appearance and setting of the building. The current appearance of that area
is less than ideal and detracts from the appearance of this part of the
conservation area. Whilst, the new arrangements would improve the frontage, it
would be at the cost of a significant area of hardstanding.

Impact on the setting of the Adjacent Listed Building

The property to the west of the application site is a Category B listed building,
dating from 1865. It was listed in 1984. Currently in use by Clydesdale Bank, it
was designed for George Washington Wilson, who was the first Photographer
Royal. A 2 storey flat-roofed extension was added in the mid 1990s. The
proposed extension at No. 42 would be located in close proximity to 1 Queen’s
Cross and would be seen to sit behind that property when viewed from St.
Swithin Street. It would be seen mostly in the context of the extension to 1
Queen’s Cross, rather than the original building. It is considered the proposal
would have only a limited impact on the setting of the listed building.

Car parking, Access and Accessibility

The proposal was revised to retain the two accesses off Albyn Place, as
requested by the Roads Projects Team. A consequence of that revision is the
number of car parking spaces has been reduced to 13 parking spaces. That level
of car parking would be less than 50% of the maximum number of spaces
allowable by the Council’s car parking standards. However, the site is located
within a controlled parking zone with pay and display parking. This would
discourage parking in the surrounding streets by occupants of the development.
The site is close to the city centre and is accessible by public transport. For these
reasons the proposed level of car parking would be acceptable.

Impact on Residential Amenity

The site backs on to St. Swithin Row beyond which are the residential properties
fronting St. Swithin Street. Whilst the proposed extension would result in the
building being closer to those properties the separation distance would be
sufficient to ensure there would be no significant impact on the amenity of the
residents. There would be no loss of privacy for residents and no impact on
sunlight and daylight reaching the properties. The provision of car parking would
have some impact on the residence immediately adjacent to the site due to the
increase activity and disturbance arising from manoeuvring vehicles. However,
the impact would be limited due to the presence of a boundary wall.

Impact on Trees

The proposal would result in the loss of two trees, a 19 metre high Western
Hemlock tree and a 9 metre high Cherry tree would be directly affected by the
proposal. The Tree Report submitted by the applicant also indicates that a 13
metre high Sycamore tree next to the boundary should be felled. The stage of
maturity and the height of the trees are such that they contribute to the character
and amenity of the local area. The removal of the Western Hemlock has already

Page 10



been approved under an application for tree work (ref. P130749). The loss of the
other two trees would have a negative impact on the area, contrary to Policy NE5
of the local development plan.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan
The Proposed ALDP was approved at the meeting of the Communities, Housing
and Infrastructure Committee of 28 October 2014. It constitutes the Council’s
settled view as to what should be the content of the final adopted ALDP and is
now a material consideration in the determination of planning applications, along
with the adopted ALDP. The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the
Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific applications
will depend on whether:
- these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main
Issues Report; and
- the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main
Issues Report; and
- the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

In relation to this particular application the following policies are of relevance. Of
these Policies D1, D4 and NE5 substantively reiterate policies in the adopted
local plan. Policy B3 introduces new consideration relating to the size, scale and
design of development proposals and how such proposals would affect the
special historic and architectural character of the area.

Policy D1 — Quality Placemaking by Design
Policy D4 — Historic Environment

Policy B3 - West End Office Area

Policy NE5 — Trees and Woodlands

The same reasons as set out above in relation to the relevant policies of the
adopted local development plan, the proposed development would be contrary to
Policies D1, D4 and NE5 of the Proposed Local Development Plan. The proposal
would also be contrary to Policy B3 because the inappropriate and excessive

scale, massing and form of the proposed extension would not respect the special
historic and architectural character of the area.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

(1) That the proposal, if approved, would be detrimental to and thus not preserve
or enhance the character of Conservation Area 4 (Albyn Place/ Rubislaw) due to

Page 11



the inappropriate and excessive scale, massing and form of the proposed
extension, contrary to Scottish Planning Policy, Scottish Historic Environment
Policy and Policies D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) and D5 (Built Heritage) of
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and Policies D1 (Quality Placemaking by
Design), D4 (Historic Environment) and NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

(2) That the proposal, if approved, would result in the loss of two additional trees,
not previously granted for removal, which would be to the detriment of the
character, amenity and appearance of the local area, contrary to Policy NE5
(Trees and Woodlands) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

(3) That the proposal, if approved, would be contrary to Policy B3 West End
Office Area of the Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan due to its
adverse impact on the character of the conservation area arising from the
inappropriate and excessive scale, massing and form of the proposed extension.

(4) That the proposal, if approved, would set an undesirable precedent for similar

developments in Conservation Area 4 (Albyn Place/ Rubislaw) that would
significantly adversely affect and undermine the special character of the area.

Page 12



Agenda ltem 4

Policy D1 — Architecture and Placemaking

To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its
setting. Factors such as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation,
details, the proportions of building elements, together with the spaces around
buildings, including streets, squares, open space, landscaping and boundary
treatments, will be considered in assessing that contribution.

To ensure that there is a consistent approach to high quality development
thropughout the City with an emphasis on creating quality places, the
Aberdeen Masterplannign Process Supplementary Guidance will be applied.

The level of detail required will be appropriate to the scale and sensitivity of
the site. The full scope will be agreed with us prior to commencement.

Landmark or high buildings should respect the height and scale of their
surroundings, the urban topography, the City’s skyline and aim to preserve or
enhance important views.

Policy D5 — Built Heritage

Proposals affecting Conservation Areas or Listed Buildings will only be
permitted if they comply with Scottish Planning Policy. In relation to
development affecting archaeological resources further details are set out in
Supplementary Guidance on Archaeology and Planning.

Planning permission for development that would have an adverse effect on
the character or setting of a site listed in the inventory of gardens and design
landscapes in Scotland or in any additional to the inventory will be refused
unless:

1. The objectives of designation and the overall integrity and character of
the designated areas will not be compromised; or

2. Any significant adverse effects on the gaulities for which the area has
been designated are clearly outweighed by social, economic and
strategic benefit of national importance.

In both cases mitigation and appropriate measures shall be taken to conserve
and enhance the essential characteristics, aesthetics, archaeological and
historical value and setting of the site.

Policy NE5 — Trees and Woodlands
There is a presumption against all activities and development that will result in
the loss of or damage to established trees and woodlands that contribute

significantly to nature conservation, landscape character or local amenity,
including ancient and semi-natural woodland which is irreplaceable.

Page 13



Appropriate measures should be taken for the protection and long term
management of existing trees and new planting both during and after
construction. Buildings and services should be sited so as to minimise
adverse impacts on existing and future trees and tree cover.

Native trees and woodlands should be planted in new developments.

Where trees are affected by a development proposal the City Council may
make Tree Preservation Orders.

A tree protection plan for the long term retention of trees should be submitted
and agreed with the Council before development commences on site.

See Supplementary Guidance on both protecting trees and woodlands and
the trees and woodland strategy for Aberdeen for more information.

Policy BI3 - West End Office Area

In this area (shown on the Proposals Map), applications for change of use for
office purposes will be given favourable consideration. Applications for
change of use of properties to residential use will also be encouraged, subject
to a satisfactory residential environment being established and that the
continued operation of existing uses is not prejudiced. The creation of new
residential buildings, where considered acceptable, on the rear lanes of
properties requires that a safe means of pedestrian and vehicular access be
provided.

Where there is scope to provide access to properties from rear lanes this will
only be considered acceptable if satisfactory traffic management measures
are in place, or can be provided by the developer, along the rear lanes. In
their absence, proposals will be expected to contribute to the future
implementation of satisfactory traffic management measures in rear lanes.
The development of associated front gardens to car parks and driveways, and
the subsequent erosion of associated landscaping, will not be permitted. The
reinstatement and restoration of car parks to front gardens will be encouraged
by the Council.

Page 14



Agenda ltem 5

.
W
ABERDEEN

Business Hub 4, Ground Floor North Marischal College, Broad Street ABERDEEN AB10 1AB
Tel: 01224 523 470
Fax: 01224 523 180

Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 000098986-001

The online ref number is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number
when your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the Planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant, or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting )
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) D Applicant Agent

Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation: RYDEN LLP E&%TUSt enter a Building Name or Number, or
Ref. Number: Building Name:

First Name: * Michael Building Number: 25

Last Name: * Lorimer Address 1 (Street): * Albyn Place
Telephone Number: * 01224 588866 Address 2:

Extension Number: Town/City: * Aberdeen
Mobile Number: Country: * UK

Fax Number: Postcode: * AB10 1YL
Email Address: * michael.lorimer@ryden.co.uk

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

\:l Individual Organisation/Corporate entity

Page 1 of 5

Page 15



Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or
both:*

Other Title: Building Name:
First Name: Building Number: 70
Last Name: Address 1 (Street): * Carden Place
Company/Organisation: * Quantum Claims Address 2: Queens Cross
Telephone Number: Town/City: * Aberdeen
Extension Number: Country: * Scotland
Mobile Number: Postcode: * AB10 1UP
Fax Number:
Email Address:

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: Aberdeen City Council
Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):
Address 1: 42 ALBYN PLACE Address 5
Address 2: Town/City/Settlement: ABERDEEN
Address 3: Post Code: AB10 1YN
Address 4:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites.

Northing 805770 Easting 392481

Description of the Proposal

Please provide a description of the proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

Alterations and extension to form new office accommodation

Page 16

Page 2 of 5



Type of Application

What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *
Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).
D Application for planning permission in principle.
\:| Further application.

\:| Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

Refusal Notice.

D Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

D No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) — deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review

You must state in full, why you are seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your
statement must set out all matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be
provided as a separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at
the time of expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before
that time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

PLEASE REFER TO ATTACHED GROUNDS OF APPEAL STATEMENT

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the
determination on your application was made? * D Yes No

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and
intend to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500
characters)

PLEASE REFER TO ATTACHED GROUNDS OF APPEAL STATEMENT AND APPENDED DOCUMENT

Application Details

Please provide details of the application and decision.

What is the application reference number? * P140365

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? * 03/03/14

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? * 21/11/14

Page 3 of 5

Page 17



Review Procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may
be required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

\:| Yes No

Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handling of your review. You may
select more than one option if you wish the review to be conducted by a combination of procedures.

Please select a further procedure *

Inspection of the land subject of the appeal. (Further details below are not required)

Please explain in detail in your own words why this further procedure is required and the matters set out in your statement of appeal
it will deal with? * (Max 500 characters)

In order to fully appreciate the site in the context of neighbouring buildings and allow for a better understanding of the level of
existing extensions and building within the rear garden grounds of properties on Albyn Place.

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

. . o
Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land D Yes No

Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? * D Yes No

If there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site inspection, please
explain here. (Max 500 characters)

It may be necessary for an accompanied site visit as the rear garden area is only accessible via a locked gate or through the office
building. Given existing buildings, boundary treatments etc, the site is not completely visible from surrounding roads/public areas.

Page 4 of 5

Page 18




Checklist - Application for Notice of Review

Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal.
Failure to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid.

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant? * Yes D No
Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this review? * Yes D No

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name and
address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the review
should be sent to you or the applicant? *

Yes [ ] No [] NA

Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what procedure
(or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? * Yes D No

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.

Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on (e.g. plans and
drawings) which are now the subject of this review * Yes [ No

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.

Declare - Notice of Review

I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.

Declaration Name: Michael Lorimer
Declaration Date: 17/12/2014
Submission Date: 17/12/2014

Page 5 of 5

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Proposal Details

Proposal Name 42 Albyn Place LRB Review
Submission

Proposal Description Review of ACC Decision on Planning
Application ref P140365

Address 42 ALBYN PLACE, ABERDEEN, AB10
1YN

Local Authority Aberdeen City Council

Application Online Reference 000098986-001

Application Status

Form complete
Main Details complete
Checklist complete
Declaration complete
Supporting Documentation complete
Email Notification complete
Payment Method incomplete

Attachment Details

Appendix 1 Attached A4
Appendix 10 Attached A4
Appendix 2 Attached A4
Appendix 3 Attached A4
Appendix 4 (a) Attached A3
Appendix 4 (b) Attached A3
Appendix 4 (c) Attached A3
Appendix 4 (d) Attached A3
Appendix 4 (e) Attached A3
Appendix 4 (f) Attached A3
Appendix 4 (g) Attached A3
Appendix 4 (h) Attached A3
Appendix 4 (i) Attached A3
Appendix 4 (j) Attached A3
Appendix 5 (a) Attached A4
Appendix 5 (b) Attached A4
Appendix 6 Attached A4
Appendix 7 Attached A4
Appendix 8 Attached A4
Appendix 9 Attached A4
Grounds of Appeal Statement Attached A4
Notice of Review System A4
Notice of Review System A4
scotapp System A4

Page 21



Supporting Documents Attached A4

Page 22



Ryden

QUANTUM CLAIMS LTD

REQUEST FOR REVIEW OF REFUSAL
OF PLANNING APPLICATION
REFERENCE: P140365 FOR THE
ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSION TO
FORM NEW (CLASS 4) OFFICE
ACCOMODATION AT 42 ALBYN
PLACE, ABERDEEN

GROUNDS OF APPEAL STATEMENT

DECEMBER 2014

Ryden LLP

25 Albyn Place
Aberdeen

AB10 1YL

Tel; 01224 588866
Fax; 01224 589669

Page 23



Quantum Claims Ltd

Page 24

42 Albyn Place

Contents

1.0 Introduction

2.0 Site Description & Proposals
3.0 Planning History

4.0 Correspondence

5.0 Reasons for Refusal

6.0 Development Plan Context
7.0 Material Considerations

8.0 Grounds of Appeal

9.0 Conclusions



Quantum Claims Ltd

1.0

1.1

1.2

42 Albyn Place

INTRODUCTION

This Notice of Review has been prepared by Ryden Property
Consultants on behalf of Quantum Claims Ltd under the terms of
section 43A(8) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 and Regulation 9 of the Town and Country Planning
(Schemes of Delegation and Local Review Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013, against the refusal by Aberdeen City Council to
grant detailed planning permission for the alterations and
extension to form new Class 4 office accommodation at no. 42

Albyn Place Aberdeen .

The application (Appendix 1: Application Form) falls under the
class of ‘local development and was submitted by Fitzgerald
Associates on 34 March 2014 and subsequently registered as valid
on 14" March 2014 under planning application ref no: P140365.
The application was refused under delegated powers by the
appointed officer on 21t November 2014 (Appendix 2: Report of
Handling and Appendix 3: Decision Notice). The reasons provided

for refusal are detailed extensively under paragraph 5 below.

Page 25



Quantum Claims Ltd

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

42 Albyn Place

SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSALS

The site is located to the western end of Albyn Place directly
adjacent to the Clydesdale Bank forming one of a row of plots
extending from Albyn Place southwards toward Albyn Lane and St
Swithin Row. The existing 1 ¥z storey (attic dormer) detached villa
occupies the northern part of the plot fronting onto Albyn Place,
with a substantial area of garden ground remaining undeveloped
at the rear of the property. A small traditional granite outhouse is
situated to the south western boundary which backs onto a narrow

lane at St Swithin Row.

The line of 17 plots stretching along Albyn Place lie within the heart
of Aberdeen’s West End Office Area. As such, they are
predominantly utilised for commercial purposes, having been
wholly or partially converted to class 4 office use. Typically the
office space has been maximised through large rear extensions or
sub-division of plots and erection of new build accommodation
formed to the rear of the existing villas, with new access and
parking arrangements provided from the south directly off Albyn
Lane. No. 42 Albyn Place remains one of the few remaining
properties in the area which has not been extended or sub-dived

to the rear in such a way.

The site is also situated within the Albyn Place and Rubislaw
Conservation Area. Dating back to the 19t Century, the area was
built by Victorians to showcase the wealth of the city and to this
day the area’s prestige is still very evident. The existing property at
no.42 is typical of the substantial detached granite villas which are
prevalent throughout the area. Whilst it is not specifically listed,
there are a high concentration of listed buildings in the immediate
locale. To the north, virtually every building situated along Albyn
Terrace is listed, including the A-Listed Victorian Gothic Queens
Cross Church. Two B-listed properties lie immediately to the west
at 1 Queens Cross, which is currently occupied by Clydesdale
Bank and also to the east at no.40, occupied by Royal Bank of
Scotland.

Page 26



Quantum Claims Ltd

24

2.5

26

3.0

3.1

42 Albyn Place

The plot lies sandwiched between two generously sized rear
extensions associated with the neighbouring Category B-Listed
Clydesdale Bank to the west and no.41 to the east. The existing
premises provides office accommodation at basement and ground
floor levels, with a self-contained residential unit on the first floor.
Internal alterations would convert the 13t floor to class 4 use, with
a new modern extension proposed to the rear of the building, which

would provide additional office accommodation over three storeys.

The proposed extension will link with the rear of the existing
building via a glazed link, to distinguish between the original granite
building and the new modern addition. The three storey extension
utilises a flat roof design, which sits subserviently below the
ridgeline of the existing building. The contemporary theme is
evident throughout, with a flat roof design incorporating a high
quality, modern palette of materials such as glazing, aluminium,
timber effect cladding and smooth render incorporated into the

external finish.

The total site measures approximately 1365 m2 and the proposed
extension will incorporate a net lettable area of approximately
892m2. As a result the overall plot ratio after development would
be very similar to that of No.41 Albyn place, as can be seen in the
submitted drawing no 3787_104c (Appendix 4: Submitted
Application Plans and Drawings).

PLANNING HISTORY

The ground floor and basement of the existing premises at no 42
have been operating under Class 4 (Office) for a considerable
period of time. A planning application was lodged with Aberdeen
City Council on 8™ August 1995 under planning authority reference
95/1726, seeking permission for the change of use of the
basement and ground floor from residential to form storage and
office accommodation respectively. The application was refused by
the Council’'s Planning Committee (decision date 17t January

1996) but subsequently allowed on appeal by Scottish Ministers

Page 27



Quantum Claims Ltd

3.2

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

42 Albyn Place

under case reference PPA-GA-619 (appeal decision date 17t June
1996).

A further application was lodged with Aberdeen City Council on 14t
September 2001 under planning authority reference A1/1599,
seeking permission for a variation to condition no 7 (Ref
P/PPA/GA/619 dated 17" June 1996 to allow office use to
basement & formation of fire escape door). This application was
also refused by the City Council’s Planning Committee (decision
date 31st January 2002) and subsequently allowed on appeal by
Scottish Ministers under case reference PPA-100-206 (appeal
decision date 2" September 2002).

PLANNING APPLICATION CORRESPONDENCE (P140365)

During the course of determining the planning application,
correspondence took place between the Case Officer and The
Client’s appointed agent, Fitzgerald Associates via exchange of a
number of emails and formal written communication. Copies of this
correspondence is attached in (Appendix 5: Application
Correspondence). The relevant points are provided in summary

below;

Following submission of the planning application, the Agent met
with the Case Officer to discuss the proposals. During the course
of this meeting some concerns were raised over the scale of the
extension and it was suggested by the case officer that a reduction
in scale would be more acceptable to the Planning Service. A
consultation response from the Council’'s Roads Service was also
passed to the agent which raised a number of concerns over

parking/access arrangements to the front of the building.

Further to the abovementioned meeting, the Agent undertook to
respond to the comments of the Case Officer, incorporating a
revised design to reduce the height and scale of the proposed
extension. Revisions were also made to provide a dedicated
entrance/exit with a reduction in car parking. Prior to formal
submission the revised scheme was emailed to the Case Officer in
draft form on 1st July 2014 for feedback.

Page 28



Quantum Claims Ltd

4.4

4.5

4.6

42 Albyn Place

A response was received from the Case Officer on 11" August
2014, acknowledging the reduction in scale of the proposed
extension. However the Officer reiterated concerns that the revised
proposal would “still dominate the original building to an
unacceptable degree and would not preserve or enhance the
conservation area”. Concern was also raised that the proposals
would likely impact on the setting of the adjacent listed building
(Clydesdale Bank). It was suggested that a two storey extension
may be more acceptable, however this would require further

assessment.

A response was sent to the Case Officer on 28" August, providing
further justification for the proposals. It was argued that Albyn
Place is part of the West End Office Area where commercial
development is encouraged and supported and as a result the area
is dominated by large scale office extensions, with the proposals
effectively nestled between two existing modern extensions. It was
also stated that the proposals would not impact the adjacent listed
Clydesdale Bank, given it has a substantial modern extension to
the rear. It was argued that the proposals were of a high quality,
contemporary design which sought to enhance, not detract from
the Conservation Area. A recent appeal decision (PPA-100-2053)
for no.29 Albyn Place was also put forward as a material
consideration given the similarity in the issues presented in the
Reporter’s conclusions (Appendix 6: No. 29 Albyn Place Appeal
Decision). Significant revisions to reduce to a 2 storey extension
were cited to render the proposals economically unviable to the
Client.

A formal letter was received from the Case Officer dated 16th
September 2014 in response to the Agent’s email of 28" August.
Concerns were reiterated over the height of the proposals, in that
a 3 storey extension would be “incongruous” to the existing
building. The appeal decision was deemed to have “little weight”

as the appeal site was larger than that of application site.

Page 29



Quantum Claims Ltd

5.0

5.1

c)

42 Albyn Place

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

The reasons provided by Aberdeen City Council on which they

have based their decision are as follows:

That the proposal, if approved, would be detrimental to and thus
not preserve or enhance the character of Conservation Area 4
(Albyn Place/ Rubislaw) due to the inappropriate and excessive
scale, massing and form of the proposed extension, contrary to
Scottish Planning policy, Scottish Historic Environment Policy and
Policies D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) and D5 (Built
Heritage) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and Policies
D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design), D4 (Historic Environment)
and NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the Proposed Aberdeen Local
Development Plan.

That the proposal, if approved, would result in the loss of two
additional trees, not previously granted for removal, which would
be to the detriment of the character, amenity and appearance of
the local area, contrary to Policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of

the Aberdeen local Development Plan.

That the proposal, if approved, would be contrary to Policy B3
West End Office Area of the Proposed Aberdeen Local
development Plan due to its adverse impact on the character of
the conservation area arising from the inappropriate and

excessive scale, massing and form of the proposed extension.

That the proposal, if approved, would set an undesirable
precedent for similar developments in conservation Area 4 (Albyn
Place/ Rubislaw) that would significantly adversely affect and

undermine the special character of the area.

Page 30



Quantum Claims Ltd

6.0

6.1

6.2

42 Albyn Place

DEVELOPMENT PLAN CONTEXT

The development plan for the area comprises the Aberdeen City
and Shire Strategic Development Plan (SDP) 2014 and the
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (LDP) 2012.

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (2014)

http://www.aberdeencityandshire-

sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?llD=1111&sID=946

The vision of the Strategic Development Plan (SDP) is to make
Aberdeen City and Shire “an even more attractive, prosperous and
sustainable European city region and an excellent place to live, visit
and do business. In order to help realise this vision, the SDP sets

out a number of aims. These aims plan to:

e Provide a strong framework for investment decisions
which help grow and diversify the regional economy,
supported by promoting the need to use resources more
efficiently and effectively; and

e Take on urgent challenges of sustainable development
and climate change;

e make sure the area has enough people, homes and jobs
to support the level of services and facilities needed to
maintain and improve the quality of life;

e protect and improve our valued assets and resources,
including the built and natural environment and our
cultural heritage;

e help create sustainable mixed communities, and the
associated infrastructure, which meet the highest
standards of urban and rural design and cater for the
needs of the whole population; and

e make the most efficient use of the transport network,
reducing the need for people to travel and making sure
that walking, cycling and public transport are attractive

choices.

Page 31



Quantum Claims Ltd

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

42 Albyn Place

A number of objectives geared towards helping achieve the above
aims are also set out within the SDP. These include a requirement
to ‘provide opportunities which encourage economic development
and create new employment’ (Economic Development, page 24);
to ensure ‘that new development meets the needs of the whole
community, both now and in the future, and makes the area a more
attractive place for residents and businesses to move fto’
(Sustainable Mixed Communities, page 36); and that all
developments contribute ‘towards reducing the need to travel and
encourage people to walk, cycle or use public transport by making

these attractive choices’ (Accessibility, page 38).

In meeting the accessibility objective, the SDP emphasis the Tink
between land use and transport to make sure that all new
development is conveniently located and designed in such a way
as to encourage walking, cycling and the use of public transport’
(para. 4.43)

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2012)
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.as
p?1iD=42278&s1D=9484

The Local Development Plan (LDP), adopted by Aberdeen City
Council in February 2012 in conformity with the previous Aberdeen
City and Shire Structure Plan 2009. The LDP identifies the site as
falling within the West End Office Area, where development

proposals are assessed against principle Policy ‘B13’.
Policy B13 - West End Office Area

The LDP recognises this designated area as a ‘“prestigious, high
quality office location on the edge of the city centre, readily
accessible by public transport”. The continual development of this
area should be encouraged, with applications for change of use to

office accommodation being given “favourable consideration”.

The policy goes on to discuss opportunities to provide access into
properties within this area from rear lanes, which would only be
considered satisfactory if “satisfactory traffic management

measures are in place, or can be provided by the developer, along

10

Page 32



Quantum Claims Ltd

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

42 Albyn Place

the rear lanes.” In their absence any such proposals will be
expected to make a contribution to future such management

measures.
Policy D1 — Architecture and Placemaking

The policy seeks to ensure that new development adopts high
standards of design which should be “designed with due
consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its

setting”.
Policy D5 — Built Heritage

The policy states that proposals that affect Conservation Areas or
Listed Buildings will “only be permitted if they comply with Scottish
Planning Policy’.

Policy NE5- Trees and Woodlands

The policy establishes a presumption against all activities and
development that will result in the loss of or damage to established
trees and woodlands that contribute significantly to nature
conservation, landscape character or local amenity. Tree
protection plans for the long term retention of trees should be
submitted to the Council prior to the commencement of

development on site.
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

The Proposed Local Development Plan was approved and
authorised to be published subject to minor drafting changes at
the Aberdeen City Council Communities, Housing and
Infrastructure Committee on 28" October 2014 and it is accepted
that this constitutes the Council’s settled view as to what should
be the content of the final adopted ALDP. The Proposed Plan is
scheduled to be published in early February 2015 for a 10 week
consultation period, where representations can be made. The
materiality of the policies contained therein will vary depending on
the level of objection received, with the proposed Plan still
requiring examination by Scottish Ministers.

11

Page 33



Quantum Claims Ltd

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

42 Albyn Place

As set out within paragraph 5 above, a number of policies within
the Proposed Local Development have been utilised in the Case
Officer’'s assessment and determination of the application. These

are as follows;
Policy D1 — Quality Placemaking by Design

Similar to existing Policy D1 of the adopted LDP, this policy seeks
to ensure high standards of design and have a “strong distinctive
sense of place” as a result of good planning, architecture,

materials and craftsmanship.
Policy NE5 — Trees and Woodlands

Similar to existing Policy NE5 of the adopted LDP stating a
presumption against all activities and development that will result
in the loss of or damage to trees that contribute to nature
conservation, landscape character, local amenity or climate
change adaption and mitigation. For works that could impact on

trees, a tree protection plan is required.
Policy B3 — West End Office Area

Similar to existing Policy BI3 of the adopted LDP there is a
presumption in favour of proposals for change of use or
expansions to form office accommodation. It does however
consolidate elements from other design policies currently
contained within the adopted LDP and applicable in any case to
the consideration of the proposals, in that attention will be given to
the design and scale of proposals in relation to the existing building
and surrounding historic context. It should be noted that the
proposed changes to the West End Office Area Policy were not
published within the Council’s Main Issues Report, therefore it is
questioned whether they have been subject to sufficient public

consultation?

12

Page 34



Quantum Claims Ltd

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

42 Albyn Place

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Scottish Planning Policy
(http://www.scotland.qgov.uk/Resource/0045/00453827.pdf)

Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) is a statement of Scottish
Government Policy on how nationally important land use planning

matters should be addressed across the country.

The central purpose of SPP is to help create a more successful
country through increasing sustainable economic growth. In that
regard it introduces the policy principle of “a presumption in favour
of development that contributes to sustainable development’,
stating the planning system should support economically,
environmentally and socially sustainable places by enabling
development that balances the long term costs and benefits of a
proposal, aiming to achieve “the right development in the right

place”

Supporting Business and Employment

Echoing NPF 3, SPP supports a range of opportunities for planning
to support business and employment. This recognises our cities as
key drivers to the economy. Paragraph 92 states that “planning
should address the development requirements of businesses and

enable key opportunities for investment to be realised”.

Paragraph 93 further highlights that the planning system should
“promote business and industrial development that increases
economic activity while safeguarding and enhancing the natural
and built environments as national assets “. It goes on to stress
that sites should “meet the diverse needs of the different sectors
and sizes of business which are important to the plan area in a way
which is flexible enough to accommodate changing circumstances
and allow the realisation of new opportunities”. Material weight
should also be attributed to the net economic benefit of proposed

development.

13

Page 35



Quantum Claims Ltd

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

42 Albyn Place

Valuing the Historic Environment

SPP highlights the importance and contribution made by our
cultural heritage and the associated positive impacts this has on
the economy, cultural identity and quality of life. The historic
environment is seen as being integral to creating successful
places. Itis recognised that positive intervention can often enhance
the historic environment and secure new uses for existing
buildings. Paragraph 137 states that the planning system should
“enable positive change in the historic environment which is
informed by a clear understanding of the importance of the heritage
assets affected and ensure their future use”. It goes onto highlight
that “Change should be sensitively managed to avoid or minimise
adverse impacts on the fabric and setting of the asset, and ensure
that its special characteristics are protected, conserved or

enhanced’.

Paragraph 143 highlights the importance of sympathetic
development within conservation areas and that proposed works
within these areas should “preserve or enhance the character or

appearance of the conservation area”.

Promoting Sustainable Transport and Active Travel

The Scottish Government are focused on the promotion of more
sustainable forms of transport and travel in order to help deliver a
more low carbon environment. As such the planning system should
help facilitate the reduction in the need to travel and “provide safe
and convenient opportunities for walking and cycling for both active
travel and recreation, and facilitate travel by public transport”

(paragraph 270).

Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP)
http://www.historic-scotland.qov.uk/shep-dec2011.pdf

The Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) in addition to
SPP and supporting Managing Change in the Historic Environment
Guidance Notes, sets out Scottish Ministers’ policies, providing

direction for Historic Scotland and a policy framework that informs

14

Page 36



Quantum Claims Ltd

7.9

7.10

7.1

42 Albyn Place

the work of a wide range of public sector organisations. documents
to which planning authorities are directed in their consideration of
applications for conservation area consent, listed building consent
and their consideration of planning applications affecting the
historic environment and the setting of individual elements of the

historic environment.

Aberdeen City Conservation Area Character Appraisals and

Management Plan: Albyn Place and Rubislaw

The above Conservation Area Appraisal as highlighted in the Case
Officer's Delegated Report, is a material consideration in the
assessment of the proposed development. The Appraisal identifies
the conservation area as one of the first to be designated in the city,
built to showcase wealth and prosperity. Albyn place is
characterised as a ‘“wide tree lined avenue with large and
distinguished detached granite villas set back from the road in their
own substantial grounds”. 1t also appreciates there is a
concentration of business and commercial premises which occupy
the granite buildings situated along Albyn Place, Carden Place and

Queen’s Road.

The appraisal also recognises that the majority of the Queens Road
and south side of Albyn Place area is zoned within the West End
Office Area which promotes commercial enterprise and has “lead
to change in many of the forecourts and back garden areas, which
have been turned into parking spaces or now accommodate large

rear extensions.”

Planning Appeal Reference: PPA-100-2053 — No29 Albyn
Place

The property at no.29 Albyn place, which is located approximately
245 m to the east of the appeal site, is in commercial use as Class
4 office accommodation. The building incorporates a substantial 3
storey extension to the rear and planning permission was sought
for a further 2 storey extension onto this under planning ref
(P131464). The application was refused on similar grounds to that
of the appeal site, those being inappropriate design to the

character of the Albyn/ Rubislaw Conservation Area, which could

15

Page 37



Quantum Claims Ltd

7.12

7.13

7.14

42 Albyn Place

set an “undesirable precedent” for similar development within this

area (Appendix 7 No.29 Albyn Place Decision Notice).

The decision was appealed to Scottish Ministers under the above
reference and the appointed Reporter sustained the appeal and
granted planning permission (Appendix 6). There were a number
of determining factors contained within the appeal decision,
particularly in relation to perceived impact on the conservation area
that can be directly related to the appeal case for no.42 Albyn
Place, which should therefore be considered material to this Local

Review.

In determining the siting and design of the extension at 29 Albyn
Place, the Reporter concluded that the historic setting of the site
would be “essentially related to the frontage of the building within
the impressive streetscape of Albyn Place” from which the
extension would have “limited visibility”. Assessing the proposals
from the rear the Reporter concluded that given the roof height did
not encroach the height of the existing building and the structures
were separated by a glazed link, this would “reduce the bulk and
provide a distinction between the original building...and the
proposed extension”. As such the conclusion deemed the

proposals did not “dominate visually or physically”.

In considering the impact on the character of the conservation
area, the Reporter paid significant weight to the conservation area
appraisal, which recognises that many of the buildings in this area
are in commercial use and a number of which have “substantial
rear extensions”. It was also noted that the site was designated
within the West End Office Area, “where commercial enterprise is
promoted”. Given the substantial number of commercial buildings
to the rear of Albyn Place the Reporter could not accept that the
“proposal would set an undesirable precedent” within that part of
the conservation area. Furthermore, in the context of the West End
Office Area, the Reporter deemed that that standard of design
proposed “might well be regarded as enhancing the character or

appearance of the conservation area.”

16

Page 38



Quantum Claims Ltd

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

42 Albyn Place

GROUNDS OF APPEAL

Section 25 of the Town & Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
requires applications to be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. The extant Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP)
was adopted in February 2012 and is the primary consideration for

site specific decision making.

The application subject to this Notice of Review seeks permission
for alterations and extension to the existing premises at 42 Albyn
Place, for a change of use of 15t floor residential accommodation
at 42 Albyn Place to Class 4 (Office) and the erection of an
extension to the rear of the building to provide new office
accommodation over three storeys, with a new access and parking

area formed at the rear off St Swithin Row.

Until recently the applicant (Quantum Claims) had ownership over
the ground floor and basement of the existing property, with the
first floor under separate ownership as a residential unit. The latter
has been recently purchased by the applicant, with a view to
maximising the site’s commercial viability through the internal
refurbishment of the entire existing building in addition to a rear
extension that would provide new Grade-A office accommodation
throughout. The applicant recognises Aberdeen’s West End is an
attractive area to invest and do business and wishes to play an
active role in helping contribute to the continued economic growth
and prosperity of the city, by actively seeking to draw new business
to the site, who would benefit greatly from a prestigious West End
location within close proximity to the city centre and related

services.

Having been assessed against the relative policies, as denoted
under paragraphs 6.5 -6.10 above and also highlighted within the
Case Officer's Report of Handling (Appendix 2), the proposals
were refused under delegated powers for the reasoning as set out
in paragraph 5 above. Taking account of the Case Officer’s
evaluation of the proposals, it cites a number of areas of concern

which can be attributed to the reasons for the decision, pertaining

17

Page 39



Quantum Claims Ltd

8.5

8.6

8.7

42 Albyn Place

to design and scale, loss of trees and the overall impact posed to
the conservation area. It should be noted that in regard to Policy
BI3- West End Offices, the Case Officer accepts the principle of
the internal alterations to convert the upper floor accommodation
are satisfactory. So too is the proposed access and parking

arrangements.
Design and Scale of Proposals

No. 42 Albyn Place occupies a relatively central position within the
heart of the Albyn Place/ Rubislaw Consevation Area and given
the proximity of a number of listed buildings and the historic
character of the immediate surrounding area, significant
consideration has been given to the design of the proposals. It
was also recognised that the existing premises remains one of the
last remaining large detached villas, situated on Albyn Place
which has not been significantly altered and extended. In that
regard, the site offered a prime opportunity to showcase fresh and
contemporary architecture for the proposed extension which
would serve to enhance the conservation area, not detract from
its built heritage. As highlighted in the Design and Access
Statement submitted in support of the application (Appendix 8),
“any attempt to replicate the design and finish of the existing
property would create an undesirable pastiche”. This is also
echoed in the Case Officer's evaluation within the Report of
Handling, which highlights that “the principle of contemporary
design for extensions to properties in the conservation area is

acceptable”,

The existing property is detached, incorporating 1 %2 storey
dormer proportions, with additional accommodation at basement
level. The property is typical to those in the immediate locale,
offering a dominant frontage onto Albyn Place which forms the
principle elevation. As mentioned above, the rear the property
remains unaltered, therefore the proposed extension is able to link

seamlessly with the existing building.
The Report of Handling cites the proposed extension “would be

out of keeping with the existing building in terms of scale and

massing”, however this is refuted. Whilst it is accepted that the

18

Page 40



Quantum Claims Ltd

8.8

8.8

42 Albyn Place

existing building is a raised 1 %2 storey Victorian design, which
requires access to the ground floor front entrance by a flight of
steps. The 3 storey extension would link with the exiting building
via a glazed entrance/staircase arrangement and would be set
approximately 1.2 m below the ridge height of the existing building.
Furthermore, the ground levels form a gradual slope from Albyn
Place through the rear garden ground, which would further act to
reduce the overall height of the extension. Given the proportion of
high quality materials such as glazing, which have been
incorporated into the design, the extension will have a much lighter
composition, serving as a contrast to the solid granite of the
existing building. As such, the new elements will be viewed

subserviently to the main building.

Albyn Place’s position within Aberdeen’s West End Office Area
has meant that over time the buildings have evolved to
accommodate commercial use. This is evidentially clear when
moving along Albyn Lane, where it can be witnessed clearly that
there is a strong precedent for large scale extensions within the
rear garden grounds of existing properties. As highlighted
previously, both properties on either side of the appeal site, unlike
no.42 are listed buildings, yet they have been extended
substantially to the rear. In that regard the proposals will in effect
be “tucked-in” between these two existing modern additions.
Whilst the adjacent Clydesdale Bank extension may be 2-storey,

it sits at an elevated position from that of the appeal site.

The Report of Handling states that the proposed extension would
be partially visible from the car parking area of the adjacent
property and therefore “its scale and massing would be clearly
discernible from a public place”. However, as highlighted above,
the principle views of the site and neighbouring properties is from
Albyn Place, where the extension would “be mostly hidden from
view”, and as stated by the Case Officer, neither would it be clearly
visible from the rear from Albyn Lane. The only glimpses of the
extension would be across a car parking area associated with the
adjacent bank, and would therefore be read in the context of a
commercial car park, surrounding commercial uses and the
existing extension associated with 1 Queens Cross. The Case

Officer actually alludes to this in his evaluation of the impact on

19

Page 41



Quantum Claims Ltd

8.9

8.10

8.11

42 Albyn Place

this listed building, indicating that the extension would “be seen
mostly in the context of the extension to 1 queens cross, rather
than the original building”. As such, the Officer concludes that the
proposals would have a “limited impact on the setting of the listed

building”.

In relation to numerous other properties along Albyn Place, where
large rear extensions can be seen to clearly dominate the rear of
buildings (Appendix 9: Photographs of Site and Surrounding
Area), by comparison the proposals for No. 42 will be relatively
concealed within the confines of the site, tucked between two
existing extensions and will not encroach the existing ridgeline of
the main building. It is therefore difficult to comprehend how the
Officer's conclusions have been reached, as it is clear that the
extension would not be clearly visible within the context of the
immediate surrounding area nor dominate the existing building by

way of its scale.

It should also be noted that the proposals have been revised since
the original submission in direct response to initial concerns raised
by the Planning Service over the scale of the proposals. This has
incorporated a reduction in the overall scale of the extension, by
compromising some of the internal floorspace. This has been
achieved through a reduction in the 1st and 2™ storey cantilevers,
pulling the rear building line back approximately 3 metres, to tie in
directly with the adjacent extension at No.41. The overall width of
the extension has also been decreased and pulled back from the
respective east and western boundaries. Overall this has seen a
reduction in the proposed net lettable floorspace from 950m2 to
892m2. This has further aided in facilitating a reduction in the

overall scale and massing of the extension.

Contrary to the conclusion of the Planning Service, it is deemed
that the proposals demonstrate a high standard of contemporary
architecture and design. Through the use of quality modern
construction materials such as glazing and timber effect cladding,
the 3 storey extension will incorporate a lightweight composition,
offering a distinct contrast between old and new built fabric. The

extension has therefore been designed with due consideration to

20

Page 42



Quantum Claims Ltd

8.12

8.13

8.14

42 Albyn Place

its setting and context, acting subserviently to the main building in
accordance with Policy D1 of the ALDP.

Impact on Conservation Area

Aberdeen City Council has acknowledged and accepted that Albyn
Place is commercial in character and there is an established
precedent for conversions of buildings to office space and large
scale extensions to existing buildings. This is evidenced in the
Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area Character Appraisal
which is highly material to this request for a review. It recognises
that this particular part of the conservation area is predominantly in
commercial use, zoned within the West End Office Area which
promotes commercial enterprise and has “lead to change in many
of the forecourts and back garden areas, which have been turned
into parking spaces or now accommodate large rear extensions.”
Significant weight was also given to the commercial character of
Albyn Place by the Scottish Government Reporter in paragraphs
14-16 of the recent appeal decision for No 29 Albyn Place
(Appendix 6).

As can be seen from the policy section (paragraph 6) above, the
overarching aims of the development plan seek to encourage and
promote economic development and the creation of new jobs. This
filters through to Policy BI3-West End Office Area, where change
of use of office accommodation will be given favourable
consideration. The supporting text highlights the prestigious nature
of this office area, located on the edge of the city centre. It also
recognises that it is “readily accessible by public transport and
which also provides off-street car parking and space for
expansion”. The principle of development is therefore firmly
supported by the ALDP.

Policy D5- Built Heritage requires proposals within conservation
areas or listed buildings to conform to SPP. SPP values the historic
environment and in addition to Scottish Historic Environment Policy
(SHEP), seeks to promote development that would “preserve or
enhance the character or appearance” of conservation areas. As

set out in detail above, it is maintained that the proposed extension

21

Page 43



Quantum Claims Ltd

8.15

8.16

8.17

42 Albyn Place

is of a high standard and contemporary design which will
complement and link subserviently with the existing building. In
addition and taking into consideration the range of extensions to
the rear of buildings along Albyn Place and the various designs
(Appendix 9) which already contribute to the character and built
fabric of the area, the proposed extension will make a positive
contribution to the wider conservation area. As such the proposals
would conform with Policy D5 of the ALDP in that the extension will
undoubtedly “preserve and enhance” the character and integrity of

the conservation area as advocated within SPP.

It is therefore also difficult to accept the Case Officer’s conclusions
provided in the fourth reason for refusal, that the “proposal would
set an undesirable precedent for similar developments in
Conservation Area 4 (Albyn Place/ Rubislaw). As explained above,
the proposals will have little visual impact within the wider
conservation area, particularly from principle views along Albyn
Place, which has been acknowledged by the case officer. Any
views would be in the context of the numerous commercial
buildings which are prevalent in the area. Together with the high
quality design being proposed, the extension would, contrary to the
case officer's assessment, set a high standard for similar

commercial developments within this conservation area.
Impact on Trees

The removal of two trees from the site has also been considered
by the Case Officer to warrant further reasoning for refusal. This
came as somewhat of a surprise, given that at no point during the
course of the determination of the application was impact on
existing trees intimated to the Agent as a cause for concern,
despite the application being accompanied by a supporting
arboricultural  assessment provided in the submitted

“EnviroCentre” Tree Survey (Appendix 10).

Notwithstanding the lack of communication on this matter, it is
acknowledged that two trees will require to be removed from the
site to accommodate the proposed extension. This includes a
relatively unremarkable Category-C cherry tree to the southern

boundary which will require to be removed to allow access and

22

Page 44



Quantum Claims Ltd

8.18

8.19

8.20

42 Albyn Place

parking arrangements at the proposed rear entrance. A further
Category-B Sycamore has been recommended to be removed as
it is located directly adjacent to the eastern common boundary and
has the potential to cause future damage to the boundary wall. As
such mitigation measures should be taken sooner rather than later
as retention of the tree will result in inevitable future removal on
health and safety grounds. A Western Hemlock tree has previously
been granted permission by the City Council to be felled under
Planning Ref P130749. The decision notice is attached as
(Appendix 11).

The Tree Report clearly identifies the long term management
proposals for trees located within the site in accordance with ALDP
Policy NE5- Trees and Woodlands. Whilst this includes the
removal of two trees, it will also facilitate the establishment of an
existing Category A- Copper Beech, which will serve to replace the
Western Hemlock (which was recently granted permission to be
removed) as the dominant feature tree within the site. During
construction of the proposed extension, this tree will be subject to
strict tree protection measures as identified within the Tree Report.
Opportunities for replacement planting could also be explored

within the site.

It is therefore contested that the proposals will have an overriding
detrimental impact on trees. As highlighted above, permission has
already been granted for the removal of a tree from the site and
sufficient tree management and compensatory measures have
been put forward which would demonstrate removal of a further
two trees, is in conformity with Policy NE5 of the Local
Development Plan. Furthermore, considering the overall economic
benefit that would be attributable to the proposed new office in line
with SPP, this would outweigh the loss of the two trees from the

site.

Proposed Local Development Plan Policy

A number of polices contained within the Proposed Local
Development Plan have been utilised in the assessment of the

proposals and are contained within the reasons for refusal.

However as highlighted by the Case Officer in the Report of

23

Page 45



Quantum Claims Ltd

8.21

9.0

9.1

9.2

42 Albyn Place

Handling Policy D1, D4 and NES5 “substantively reiterate policies in
the adopted local plan”. The preceding sections set out above have
adequately demonstrated that the proposals are in compliance with
the aforementioned polices, intended for inclusion within the next

Local Development Plan.

Policy B3 — West End Office Area of the proposed plan, elaborates
slightly from the current Policy BI3 of the adopted ALDP, in that it
includes stipulations to ensure high quality design in the size and
scale of new development proposals. Essentially the proposed
policy changes incorporate an amalgamation of existing policies on
design, contained within the adopted Plan. Given the arguments
set out above, which demonstrate that the proposed extension
incorporates a high quality design that would contribute to the
character and integrity of the conservation area, the proposals

therefore conform to the policy B3 of the Proposed Plan.

CONCLUSIONS

The proposed development fully conforms to the extant
Development Plan. The preceding arguments demonstrate that the
proposals to convert and extend the existing property at 42 Albyn
Place to form new office accommodation will be in keeping with the
established commercial character and historic built fabric evident
within the prestigious West End Office Area and the site’s position
within the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area. The
proposals will facilitate the existing office to expand to meet its full
potential, attracting new business and continued economic vitality
to this important commercial zone on the edge of the city centre.
The proposals therefore accord with Policy BI3 of the adopted
ALDP and also Policy B3 of the Proposed Plan.

The proposals incorporate a high standard of contemporary
design, which will fit in well with the two existing modern extensions
located on either side of the plot, providing a valuable contribution
to the character of the conservation area. The proposals will not
present a detrimental impact to neighbouring listed buildings and

be virtually unseen from principle views along Albyn Place. The

24

Page 46



Quantum Claims Ltd

9.3

9.4

42 Albyn Place

proposals therefore accord to Policies D1 and D5 of the adopted
ALDP and also Policies D1 and D4 of the Proposed Plan.

In addition, supporting arboricultural information has been
independently produced and submitted with the application which
details appropriate mitigation measures and a tree management
plan in accordance with Policy NE5 of both the adopted ALDP and

Proposed Plan.

In view of the foregoing, contrary to the reasons for refusal, the
proposals are fully compliant with relative policy and there are no
outstanding objections from consultees, nor has any public
representation been received in opposition to the development. It
is hereby respectfully requested that the appeal is sustained and

planning permission granted to allow this development to progress.

25

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



QUANTUM CLAIMS LTD
No.42 Albyn Place Appeal to LRB Appendices

Supporting Appendices List

Appendix 1: Planning Application Form

Appendix 2: Report of Handling

Appendix 3: Decision Notice

Appendix 4 (a-j): Submitted Plans and Drawings

Appendix 5 (a&b): Planning Application Correspondence

Appendix 6: No.29 Albyn Place Appeal Decision

Appendix 7: No.29 Albyn Place Decision Notice

Appendix 8: Design and Access Statement

Appendix 9: Photographs of Site and Surrounding Area

Appendix 10: Tree Survey

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Please refer to the accompanying Guidance Notes when completing this application
PLEASE NOTE IT IS FASTER AND SIMPLER TO SUBMIT PLANNING APPLICATIONS
ELECTRONICALLY VIA https://eplanning.scotland.qov.uk

1. Applicant’s Details 2. Agent’s Details (if any)

Title Ref No.

Forename Forename

Surname Surname

Company Name Quantum Claims Company Name Fitzgerald + Associates Ltd
Building No./Name Building No./Name

Address Line 1 70 Carden Place Address Line 1 53 Albert Street
Address Line 2 Address Line 2

Town/City Aberdeen Town/City Aberdeen
Postcode AB10 1UP Postcode AB25 1XT
Telephone Telephone 01224 633 375
Mobile Mobile

Fax Fax

Email Email |info@fitzgeraldassociates.co.uk

3. Postal Address or Location of Proposed Development (please include postcode)

42 Albyn Place Aberdeen AB10 1YN

NB. If you do not have a full site address please identify the location of the site(s) in your accompanying
documentation.

4. Type of Application

What is the application for? Please select one of the following:
Planning Permission

Planning Permission in Principle

Further Application*

Application for Approval of Matters Specified in Conditions*

N O I

Application for Mineral Works**

NB. A ‘further application’ may be e.g. development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has been
imposed a renewal of planning permission or a modification, variation or removal of a planning condition.

*Please provide a reference number of the previous application and date when permission was granted:

Reference No: Date:

1
Page 51




**Please note that if you are applying for planning permission for mineral works your planning authority may have a
separate form or require additional information.

5. Description of the Proposal

Please describe the proposal including any change of use:

Alterations and Extension to Form New Office Accommodation.

Is this a temporary permission? Yes [] No

If yes, please state how long permission is required for and why:

Have the works already been started or completed? Yes[] No

If yes, please state date of completion, or if not completed, the start date:

Date started: Date completed:

If yes, please explain why work has already taken place in advance of making this application

6. Pre-Application Discussion

Have you received any advice from the planning authority in relation to this proposal? Yes [ ] No
If yes, please provide details about the advice below:

In what format was the advice given? Meeting [ ] Telephone call [] Letter [] Email []
Have you agreed or are you discussing a Processing Agreement with the planning authority? Yes [ ] No []

Please provide a description of the advice you were given and who you received the advice from:

Name: Date: Ref No.:

7. Site Area

Please state the site area in either hectares or square metres:

Hectares (ha): Square Metre (sq.m.) | 1368

2
Page 52




8. Existing Use

Please describe the current or most recent use:

Office + Residential.

9. Access and Parking

Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? Yes [ ] No

If yes, please show in your drawings the position of any existing, altered or new access and explain the changes
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

Are you proposing any changes to public paths, public rights of way or Yes [ | No
affecting any public rights of access?

If yes, please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas and explain the changes you propose to
make, including arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) currently

exist on the application site? ’
How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) do you
propose on the site? (i.e. the total number of existing spaces plus any 18

new spaces)

Please show on your drawings the position of existing and proposed parking spaces and specify if these are to be
allocated for particular types of vehicles (e.g. parking for disabled people, coaches, HGV vehicles, efc.)

10. Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements

Will your proposals require new or altered water supply Yes No []
or drainage arrangements?

Are you proposing to connect to the public drainage network (e.g. to an existing sewer?)
Yes, connecting to a public drainage network

No, proposing to make private drainage arrangements
Not applicable — only arrangement for water supply required

L0

What private arrangements are you proposing for the new/altered septic tank?

Discharge to land via soakaway
Discharge to watercourse(s) (including partial soakaway)
Discharge to coastal waters

[

Please show more details on your plans and supporting information

What private arrangements are you proposing?

Treatment/Additional treatment (relates to package sewer treatment plants, or passive
sewage treatment such as a reed bed)

Other private drainage arrangement (such as a chemical toilets or composting toilets) ]

[

Please show more details on your plans and supporting information.

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water? Yes No []

3
Page 53




Note:- Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans
Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? Yes No []

If no, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it (on or off
site)

11. Assessment of Flood Risk

Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? Yes [] No

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your
application can be determined. You may wish to contact your planning authority or SEPA for advice on what
information may be required.

Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? Yes [ ] No Don’t Know []

If yes, briefly describe how the risk of flooding might be increased elsewhere.

12. Trees

Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? Yes No []

If yes, please show on drawings any trees (including known protected trees) and their canopy spread as they relate
to the proposed site and indicate if any are to be cut back or felled.

13. Waste Storage and Collection

Do the plans incorporate areas to store and aid the collection Yes No []
of waste? (including recycling)

If yes, please provide details and illustrate on plans.
If no, please provide details as to why no provision for refuse/recycling storage is being made:

Refer to plans

14. Residential Units Including Conversion

Does your proposal include new or additional houses and/or flats? Yes [] No

If yes how many units do you propose in total?

Please provide full details of the number and types of units on the plan. Additional information may be provided in a
supporting statement.

Page 54




15. For all types of non housing development — new floorspace proposed

Does you proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? Yes No []
If yes, please provide details below:

Use type: Office
If you are extending a building, please provide

details of existing gross floorspace (sq.m): 437
Proposed gross floorspace (sq.m.): 1387

Please provide details of internal floorspace(sq.m)

Net trading space:

Non-trading space:

Total net floorspace:
950

16. Schedule 3 Development

Does the proposal involve a class of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 20087?

Yes [ ] No Don’t Know []
If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in your area. Your planning

authority will do this on your behalf but may charge a fee. Please contact your planning authority for advice on
planning fees.

17. Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest

Are you / the applicant / the applicant’s spouse or partner, a member of staff within the planning service or an
elected member of the planning authority? Yes [] No

Or, are you / the applicant / the applicant’s spouse or partner a close relative of a member of staff in the planning
service or elected member of the planning authority? Yes [ ] No

If you have answered yes please provide details:

DECLARATION

I, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for planning permission The accompanying plans/drawings
and additional information are provided as part of this application. | hereby confirm that the information given in this
form is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

I, the applicant/agent hereby certify that the attached Land Ownership Certificate has been completed

I, the applicant/agent hereby certify that requisite notice has been given to other land owners and /or agricultural
tenants Yes [ ] No [X] N/A []

Signature: Name: |Fitzgerald + Associates Ltd Date: |24-02-2014

Any personal data that you have been asked to provide on this form will be held and processed in accordance with
the requirements of the 1998 Data Protection Act.

5
Page 55




Page 56



LAND OWNERSHIP CERTIFICATES

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013

CERTIFICATE A, B, C, D OR CERTIFICATE E
MUST BE COMPLETED BY ALL APPLICANTS

CERTIFICATE A
Certificate A is for use where the applicant is the only owner of the land to which the application
relates and none of the land is agricultural land.

I hereby certify that -
(1)  No person other than the applicant was owner of any part of the land to
which the application relates at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the ><

date of the application.
(2) None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of ><
agricultural land.

Signed:

On behalf of: | Fitzgerald + Associates Ltd

Date: 24-02-2014

CERTIFICATE B
Certificate B is for use where the applicant is not the owner or sole owner of the land to which the
application relates and/or where the land is agricultural land and where all owners/agricultural tenants
have been identified.

| hereby certify that -
(1) Ihave served notice on every person other than myself who,
at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the application was

owner of any part of the land to which the application relates. These persons are:

Date of Service of

Name Address Notice

(2) None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of

agricultural land

or

(3) The land or part of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of
agricultural land and | have served notice on every person other
than myself who, at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with

the date of the application was an agricultural tenant. These persons are:

Page 57



Date of Service of

Name Address Notice

CERTIFICATE C
Certificate C is for use where the applicant is not the owner or sole owner of the land to which the
application relates and/or where the land is agricultural land and where it has not been possible to
identify ALL or ANY owners/agricultural tenants.

(1) Ihave been unable to serve notice on every person other than
myself who, at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the
date of the application was owner of any part of the land to which the application
relates.

or

(2) Ihave been unable to serve notice on any person other than

myself who, at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the

date of the accompanying application, was owner of any part of the land to which the
application relates.

(3) None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an
agricultural holding.

or
(4) The land or part of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of
an agricultural holding and | have been unable to serve notice on
any person other than myself who, at the beginning of the period of 21

days ending with the date of the accompanying application was an agricultural tenant.

or

(5) The land or part of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of
an agricultural holding | have served notice on each of the
following persons other than myself who, at the beginning of the period
of 21 days ending with the date of the application was an agricultural tenant. These
persons are:

Name Address Date of Sgrwce of
Notice
(6) Ihave taken reasonable steps, as listed below, to ascertain the names and
addresses of all other owners or agricultural tenants and have been unable to do so.
Steps taken:

Page 58



(1)

()

CERTIFICATE D
Certificate D is for use where the application is for mineral development.

No person other than myself was an owner of any part of the land to

which the application relates at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the
date of the accompanying application.

or
I have served notice on each of the following persons other than
myself who, at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the

date of the accompanying application, was to the applicant’s knowledge, the owner, of
any part of the land to which the application relates. These persons are:

Date of Service of

Name Address Notice

3)

None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an

agricultural holding.

or
The land or part of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of
an agricultural holding and | have served notice on each of the
following persons other than myself who, at the beginning of the period

of 21 days ending with the date of the application, was an agricultural tenant.

Notice of the application as set out below has been published and displayed by public

notice

Signed:

On behalf of:

Date:

CERTIFICATE E

Certificate E is required where the applicant is the sole owner of all the land and the land to which the

application relates is agricultural land and there are or are not agricultural tenants.

| hereby certify that -

(1)

()

(1)

No person other than myself was the owner of any part of the land to

which the application relates at the beginning of the period 21 days ending with the
date of the application.

The land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural

holding and there are no agricultural tenants.

or

No person other than myself was the owner of any part of the land to

which the application relates at the beginning of the period 21 days ending with the
date of the application.

Page 59



(2) The land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural

holding and there are agricultural tenants. These people are:

Name Address Date of Sgrwce of
Notice
(3) Ilhave taken reasonable steps, as listed below, to ascertain the
names and addresses of the other agricultural tenants and have been unable to
do so.
Steps taken:
Signed:
On behalf of:
Date:

Any personal data that you have been asked to provide on this form will be held and processed in
accordance with the requirements of the 1998 Data Protection Act

Page 60



NOTICE TO OWNERS AND AGRICULTURAL TENANTS

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
Regulation 15 (1) of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(Scotland) Regulations 2013

Name [Note 1]

Address

Proposed development at [Note 2]

Notice is hereby given that an application is being made to

[Note 3] Council by

For planning permission to [Note 4]

If you wish to obtain further information on the application or to make representations about the
application, you should contact the Council at [Note 5]

(The grant of planning permission does not affect owners’ rights to retain and dispose of their property
unless there is some provision to the contrary in an agreement or lease. The grant of planning
permission for non-agricultural development may affect agricultural tenants security of tenure.)

Signed
On behalf of
Date

*Delete where appropriate

[Note 1] — Insert name and address of owner or agricultural tenants
[Note 2] — Insert address or location of proposed development.
[Note 3] — Insert name of planning authority.

[Note 4] — Insert description of proposed development.

[Note 5] - Insert planning authority address.

Page 61



NOTICE TO OWNERS AND AGRICULTURAL
TENANTS

The Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013 (Regulation 15)

NOTES FOR GUIDANCE

Before applying for planning permission or planning permission in principle under regulations 9 to 11,
applicants should notify all persons who (other than themselves), were the owners of any of the land
to which the application relates, or were agricultural tenants at the beginning of the prescribed period
(in effect 21 days ending with the date on which the application was submitted).

Notices to owners and agricultural tenants should be in the form set out in schedule 1 of the
regulations and must include:

1. The name of the applicant

2. The address or location of the proposed development

3. A description of the proposed development and

4. The name and address of the planning authority who will determine the application.

The grant of planning permission will not affect the rights of an owner, or tenant under a lease which
has at least 7 years to run, to dispose of the consented property unless there is express provision in
the lease/Agreement.

Applications for the working and winning of underground minerals

The notification of site owners and agricultural tenants regarding applications for the working and
winning of underground minerals may be both onerous and complex. In addition to those owners and
agricultural tenants with rights in relation to the relevant surface land, there may be other people with
ownership rights to minerals, other than those vested in the Crown (oil, gas, coal, gold and silver),
who may be difficult to identify and notify.

For the purposes of these applications, regulation 15(4) amends the requirement to notify owners to
relate to those who "to the applicant's knowledge" are owners

Any personal data that you may be asked to provide on this form will be held and processed in
accordance with the requirements of the 1998 Data Protection Act.

Page 62



Signed (authorised Officer(s)): 42 Albyn Place, Aberdeen

Alterations and extension to form new office
accommodation

For: Quantum Claims

Application Type : Detailed Planning

Permission

Application Ref. : P140365

Application Date  : 14/03/2014

Advert : Section 60/65 - Dev aff
LB/CA

Advertised on : 02/04/2014

Officer : Garfield Prentice
Creation Date : 14 November 2014

Ward: Hazlehead/Ashley/Queen's Cross(M
Greig/J Stewart/R Thomson/J Corall)
Community Council: No response received

RECOMMENDATION:
Refuse
DESCRIPTION

The site located on the south side of Albyn Place, close to its junction with
Queen’s Cross and comprises a detached 1'% storey, plus basement, granite
building. The front elevation is quite ornate with granite portico and granite faced
dormers. The premises ground floor and basement level are currently used for
offices, occupied by a company known as Broad Cairn, while the first floor is a
residential flat. The rear garden contains four significant trees (Sycamore,
Cherry, Copper Beech and Western Hemlock), three of which are located
approximately midway between the building and the rear double garage (which
abuts St. Swithin Row), the other being adjacent to the garage. The garage has
a mansard roof with rooflights on the elevation facing the lane. There is a large
tree at the front of the property, close to the front boundary. Informal car parking
is available at the front of the property.

The site located within the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area. To the
west of the site is a rather ornate 274 storey listed building currently occupied by
Clydesdale Bank, while to the east is a 12 storey office building occupied by
Scottish Enterprise. Both properties have been extended, by 2 storey and single

Page 63



storey extensions respectively. Adjacent to the garage at the rear is a residential
property fronting on to St. Swithin Row.

RELEVANT HISTORY
None that is relevant to the consideration of this proposal.
PROPOSAL

Detailed planning permission is sought for the construction of a 3 storey
extension to the rear of the building and the conversion of the first floor
residential flat to provide additional office accommodation. The proposed
extension would measure approximately 21.5 metres long by 12.5 metres and
would attain a height of 9.5 metres. It would be of contemporary design and
finished mostly in glass curtain walling on the side and rear elevations. Some
areas of timber effect cladding and Chinese granite are also proposed. Grey K-
Rend render and grey cladding panels are proposed on the north elevation. The
link section between to the existing building and the new office accommodation
would also be 3 storeys high (plus basement level) and would include toilet
facilities and stairs to all floors.

It is proposed to provide a car parking area comprising 8 parking spaces within
the rear part of the site, with motorcycle and cycle parking being within an
existing garage located close to the rear lane. That garage would also be altered
to permit access through it to the parking area. It is also proposed to alter the
parking area at the front of the building. A semi-circular driveway and 5 parking
spaces would be formed. No details of surface materials for the two parking
areas and driveway have been provided.

Supporting Documents

All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this
application can be viewed on the Council’'s website at -
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref.=140365

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first
page of this report.

Tree Reports by Astell Associates and Enviro Centre
Design and Access Statement

CONSULTATIONS
Roads ProjectsTeam — In accordance with the current parking standards, the

applicant should provide 1 parking space per 50sqm gross floor area (GFA). The
proposed site could provide up to 28 parking spaces. It is noted that the

Page 64



applicant proposes to provide 18 parking spaces, a shortfall of 10 spaces. The
development is located with a controlled parking zone with pay and display
parking facilities. Although the parking would be below the allowable level, given
the site’s good accessibility to public transport and proximity to the city centre,
the shortfall in parking is acceptable. However, to mitigate the potential for
additional parking pressure in the area it is requested that planning approval is
conditional on the provision of measures to promote sustainable access to the
development. As a minimum these should include the promotion of public
transport and the city car club.

The applicant should provide 1 cycle parking space per 300sgm and 1
motorcycle parking space per 1,000sgm of GFA. Accordingly, at least 5 cycle
spaces and 1 motorcycle space should be provided. The parking should be
secure and shower and changing facilities should be provided for use by staff.
The disabled parking bay should be relocated to the front of the premises.

As the proposal is below the thresholds, no contribution will be required to the
Strategic Transport Fund.

One point of access with restricted width would not be suitable at this location
and thus the western access should be retained and additional parking at this
location should be relocated.

The applicant should provide information about deliveries and refuse vehicles
arrangements to the proposed site.

A Drainage Impact Assessment in line with SUDS principles should be
submitted.

Environmental Health — No observations

Communities, Housing and Infrastructure (Flooding) — No observations
Community Council — No response received

REPRESENTATIONS

No letters of representation/objection/support have been received.

PLANNING POLICY

National Policy and Guidance

Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) is the statement of Scottish Government policy
on land use planning and includes the Scottish Government’s core principles for
the operation of the planning system and concise subject planning policies. The
subject planning policy relating to the historic environment is a relevant material
consideration.

Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) is a relevant material consideration.

Aberdeen Local Development Plan

Page 65



Policy D1 — Architecture and Placemaking

To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting.
Policy D5- Built Heritage

Proposals affecting conservation areas or listed buildings will only be permitted if
they comply with Scottish Planning Policy.

Policy BI3 — West End Offices
In this area (shown on the Proposals Map), applications for change of use for
office purposes will be given favourable consideration.

Policy NE5 - Trees and Woodlands

There is a presumption against all activities and development that will result in
the loss of or damage to established trees and woodlands that contribute
significantly to nature conservation, landscape character or local amenity,
including ancient and semi-natural woodland which is irreplaceable.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan
The following policies substantively reiterate policies in the adopted local plan
as summarised above:

Policy D1 — Quality Placemaking by Design

All development must ensure high standards of design and have a strong and
distinctive sense of place which is a result of context appraisal, detailed
planning, quality architecture, craftsmanship and materials.

Policy D4 — Historic Environment

The Council will protect, preserve and enhance the historic environment in line
with Scottish Planning Policy, SHEP, its own Supplementary Guidance and
Conservation Area Character Appraisals and Management Plan. It will assess
the impact of proposed development and support high quality design that
respects the character, appearance and setting of the historic environment and
protects the special architectural or historic interest of its listed buildings,
conservation areas, archaeology, scheduled monument, historic gardens and
designed landscapes.

Policy NE5 — Trees and Woodlands

There is a presumption against all activities and development that will result in
the loss of, or damage to, trees and woodlands that contribute to nature
conservation, landscape character, local amenity or climate change adaptation
and mitigation.

The policy below has been changed significantly from Policy BI3 of the adopted
local development plan in that it introduces new consideration relating to the
size, scale and design of development proposals and how such proposals would

Page 66



affect the special historic and architectural character of the area.

Policy B3 - West End Office Area

In the West End Office Area (as shown on the Proposals Map) proposals for
change of use to office use or the expansion of existing office use will only be
acceptable provided;

a) the size, scale and design of development proposals respect the special
historic and architectural character of the area and;

b) the design meets all of the relevant criteria set out in the Historic Environment
TAN, with regards to relationship to the existing building, context and
modifications to existing extensions (see also the Design Policies).

Other Relevant Material Considerations

The Albyn Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area Appraisal is a relevant material
consideration.

EVALUATION

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
(as amended) require that where, in making any determination under the
planning acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and
that determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material
to the application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland)
Act 1997 places a duty on planning authorities to preserve and enhance the
character or appearance of conservation areas

Policy BI3 — West End Offices

Policy BI3 supports changes of use to office use. The majority of the property is
currently used for that purpose. The conversion of the residential flats to office
use is supported by the policy. However, the policy relates to changes of use
and is not directly relevant to the consideration of extensions to buildings.

Design and Scale of the Proposed Extension

Whilst the property at 42 Albyn Place is not listed, there are a significant
proportion of listed buildings in the surrounding area, including the adjacent
building at 1 Queen’s Cross. The property remains mostly unaltered having not
been extended. As such, the front and rear elevations have not changed from
their original design and form. The buildings to either side of the site have been
extended, 1 Queen’s Cross by a 2 storey extension and 41 Albyn Place by a
single storey pitched roof extension. It is acknowledged, as highlighted in the

Page 67



applicant’s Design and Access Statement, that there is precedent for large rear
extensions to properties in the surrounding area, these ranging from single
storey to 3 storeys high. However, each planning application must be assessed
and determined on its own merits, but with particular regard being paid to the
specific characteristics, scale and form of the original building and those
immediately adjacent to it.

Policy D1 of the local development plan seeks to ensure all development is
designed with due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution
to its setting. In this case, the original building is 1%z storey high on its Albyn
Place frontage and 2 storeys on its rear elevation. The applicant acknowledges
in the Design and Access Statement the importance of the building and the need
to give careful consideration to the design of the proposal, stating "Whilst the
existing property is not listed, it is still a fine example of a detached granite villa,
set back from the street with a dominant front facade, typical of Albyn Place. As
such the site is of both historical and architectural merit, therefore careful
consideration has been input into the design process”. Notwithstanding this
statement, for the reasons explained below, insufficient analysis and
consideration of the context and the impact on the historic environment has been
given to the formulation of the proposal.

The proposed extension, at 3 storeys high, would be out of keeping with the
existing building in terms of its scale and massing and would have a very uneasy
and incongruous relationship with the existing building. Although mostly hidden
from view from Albyn Place, it would be partially visible from St. Swithin Street
across the car parking of the adjacent property and thus its scale and massing
would be clearly discernible from a public place. The extension would dominate
and overwhelm the existing building, being of substantially larger massing and
footprint than the existing property. Contrary to the applicant’s assertion in the
Design and Access Statement, the proposal cannot reasonably or legitimately be
described as being subservient to the existing building. The height, massing and
detailing of the ‘link’ section and how it would connect to the existing building
(i.e. above wallhead level) is wholly inappropriate and would have a detrimental
impact on the appearance of the original building. Most of the extensions in the
locality are linked to the existing buildings below wallhead level, this being a
more satisfactory design solution. Where 3 storey extensions have been
permitted on Albyn Place, they relate to considerably larger original buildings,
generally substantial 2 or 2. storey properties and where rear ground levels
permit such an extension.

Whilst the principle of contemporary design for extensions to properties in the
conservation area is acceptable, in this case the failing of the proposal in terms
of scale, massing and form are such that the proposal does not respect its
context, nor would it make a positive contribution to character of the area.
Rather, the proposal would have a negative impact, contrary to the terms of

Page 68



Policy D1 of the local development plan. Further, the scale and massing of the
extension and its proximity to the adjacent property at 41 Albyn Place would be
somewhat dominating and overwhelming for the occupants of that building.

Impact on the Character of the Conservation

The site is located within the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area.
Albyn Place was originally built on the lands of Rubislaw, owned by James
Skene who commissioned Archibald Elliot to prepare a scheme for Aberdeen
based on the New Town in Edinburgh. Albyn Place is characterised as a wide
tree lined avenue with large and distinguished detached granite villas set back
from the road in their own substantial grounds. Many of the buildings are
relatively plain with little ornate detail. The properties on the application site and
the adjacent site (1 Queen’s Cross) are notable exceptions having quite ornate
frontages. A large number of the buildings have been converted to office use
with a substantial number being extended to the rear. Albyn Place and the
eastern part of Queen’s Road, in particular, are characterised by this pattern of
the development.

SPP and SHEP seek to ensure that the character and appearance of
conservations areas are preserved or enhanced. Indeed, there is statutory duty
on planning authorities under section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 for the desirability to preserve or
enhance the character of conservation areas. The property remains mostly
unaltered having not been extended. As such, the front and rear elevations have
not changed from their original design and form. It is acknowledged that the
existing character of the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area is one of
a substantial number of commercial premises, many of which have been altered
and extended over time. For that reason, it is considered that, in principle, the
property can be extended, provided such an extension would be of appropriate
scale, massing, form, design and relationship to the existing and adjacent
buildings. As noted above, the proposed extension, at 3 storeys high, would be
out of keeping with the existing building in terms of its scale and massing and
would have a very uneasy and incongruous relationship with the existing
building. The proposal would not preserve the character or appearance of the
conservation area and thus is contrary to SPP, SHEP and Policy D5 of the local
development plan.

The proposal would result in the loss of the majority of the rear garden and the
loss of at least two of the four trees. The trees are protected by virtue of being
within a conservation area. A 19 metre high Western Hemlock tree and a 9
metre high Cherry tree would be directly affected by the proposal. The Tree
Report submitted by the applicant also indicates that a 13 metre high Sycamore
tree next to the boundary should be felled. The loss of the trees would have
localised impact on the character of the area, but would not significantly affect

Page 69



the overall character of the conservation area. Whilst, the loss of garden ground
would have an adverse impact, the prevailing character of the surrounding area
is one of significant areas of car parking to the rear of the majority of buildings.
In that regard, the provision of car parking would not significantly impact on the
character of the conservation area.

The alterations to the front parking area would have a small positive impact on
the appearance and setting of the building. The current appearance of that area
is less than ideal and detracts from the appearance of this part of the
conservation area. Whilst, the new arrangements would improve the frontage, it
would be at the cost of a significant area of hardstanding.

Impact on the setting of the Adjacent Listed Building

The property to the west of the application site is a Category B listed building,
dating from 1865. It was listed in 1984. Currently in use by Clydesdale Bank, it
was designed for George Washington Wilson, who was the first Photographer
Royal. A 2 storey flat-roofed extension was added in the mid 1990s. The
proposed extension at No. 42 would be located in close proximity to 1 Queen’s
Cross and would be seen to sit behind that property when viewed from St.
Swithin Street. It would be seen mostly in the context of the extension to 1
Queen’s Cross, rather than the original building. It is considered the proposal
would have only a limited impact on the setting of the listed building.

Car parking, Access and Accessibility

The proposal was revised to retain the two accesses off Albyn Place, as
requested by the Roads Projects Team. A consequence of that revision is the
number of car parking spaces has been reduced to 13 parking spaces. That
level of car parking would be less than 50% of the maximum number of spaces
allowable by the Council’s car parking standards. However, the site is located
within a controlled parking zone with pay and display parking. This would
discourage parking in the surrounding streets by occupants of the development.
The site is close to the city centre and is accessible by public transport. For
these reasons the proposed level of car parking would be acceptable.

Impact on Residential Amenity

The site backs on to St. Swithin Row beyond which are the residential properties
fronting St. Swithin Street. Whilst the proposed extension would result in the
building being closer to those properties the separation distance would be
sufficient to ensure there would be no significant impact on the amenity of the
residents. There would be no loss of privacy for residents and no impact on
sunlight and daylight reaching the properties. The provision of car parking would
have some impact on the residence immediately adjacent to the site due to the
increase activity and disturbance arising from manoeuvring vehicles. However,
the impact would be limited due to the presence of a boundary wall.

Page 70



Impact on Trees

The proposal would result in the loss of two trees, a 19 metre high Western
Hemlock tree and a 9 metre high Cherry tree would be directly affected by the
proposal. The Tree Report submitted by the applicant also indicates that a 13
metre high Sycamore tree next to the boundary should be felled. The stage of
maturity and the height of the trees are such that they contribute to the character
and amenity of the local area. The removal of the Western Hemlock has already
been approved under an application for tree work (ref. P130749). The loss of the
other two trees would have a negative impact on the area, contrary to Policy
NES of the local development plan.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan
The Proposed ALDP was approved at the meeting of the Communities, Housing
and Infrastructure Committee of 28 October 2014. It constitutes the Council’s
settled view as to what should be the content of the final adopted ALDP and is
now a material consideration in the determination of planning applications, along
with the adopted ALDP. The exact weight to be given to matters contained in
the Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific
applications will depend on whether:
- these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main
Issues Report; and
- the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main
Issues Report; and
- the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

In relation to this particular application the following policies are of relevance. Of
these Policies D1, D4 and NE5 substantively reiterate policies in the adopted
local plan. Policy B3 introduces new consideration relating to the size, scale and
design of development proposals and how such proposals would affect the
special historic and architectural character of the area.

Policy D1 — Quality Placemaking by Design
Policy D4 — Historic Environment

Policy B3 - West End Office Area

Policy NE5 — Trees and Woodlands

The same reasons as set out above in relation to the relevant policies of the
adopted local development plan, the proposed development would be contrary
to Policies D1, D4 and NE5 of the Proposed Local Development Plan. The
proposal would also be contrary to Policy B3 because the inappropriate and
excessive scale, massing and form of the proposed extension would not respect
the special historic and architectural character of the area.

RECOMMENDATION

Page 71



Refuse
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

(1) That the proposal, if approved, would be detrimental to and thus not preserve
or enhance the character of Conservation Area 4 (Albyn Place/ Rubislaw) due to
the inappropriate and excessive scale, massing and form of the proposed
extension, contrary to Scottish Planning Policy, Scottish Historic Environment
Policy and Policies D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) and D5 (Built Heritage) of
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and Policies D1 (Quality Placemaking by
Design), D4 (Historic Environment) and NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

(2) That the proposal, if approved, would result in the loss of two additional
trees, not previously granted for removal, which would be to the detriment of the
character, amenity and appearance of the local area, contrary to Policy NES
(Trees and Woodlands) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

(3) That the proposal, if approved, would be contrary to Policy B3 West End
Office Area of the Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan due to its
adverse impact on the character of the conservation area arising from the
inappropriate and excessive scale, massing and form of the proposed extension.

(4) That the proposal, if approved, would set an undesirable precedent for

similar developments in Conservation Area 4 (Albyn Place/ Rubislaw) that would
significantly adversely affect and undermine the special character of the area.

Page 72



SaNAZEIND Application Ref No P140365

ABERDEEN PLANNING & SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure
CITY COUNCIL Business Hub 4, Marischal College, Broad Street,
ABERDEEN. AB10 1AB

The Town And Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

Refusal of Planning Permission

Fitzgerald + Associates Ltd
53 Albert Street

Aberdeen

Aberdeen City

AB25 1XT

on behalf of Quantum Claims

With reference to your application validly received on 14 March 2014 for Planning
Permission under the above mentioned Act for the following development, viz:-

Alterations and extension to form new office accommodation
at 42 Albyn Place, Aberdeen

the Council in exercise of their powers under the above mentioned Act hereby
REFUSE Planning Permission for the said development as specified in the
application form and the plan(s) and documents docketed as relative thereto and
numbered as follows:-

3787_100b, 3787_101b, 3787_102b, 3787_103c, 3787_104c, 3787_105b,
3787_106b, 3787_107b 3787_108a

The reasons on which the Council has based this decision are as follows:-

(1) That the proposal, if approved, would be detrimental to and thus not preserve or
enhance the character of Conservation Area 4 (Albyn Place/ Rubislaw) due to the
inappropriate and excessive scale, massing and form of the proposed extension,
contrary to Scottish Planning Policy, Scottish Historic Environment Policy and
Policies D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) and D5 (Built Heritage) of the Aberdeen
Local Development Plan and Policies D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design), D4
(Historic Environment) and NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the Proposed Aberdeen
Local Development Plan.

PETE LEONARD
DIRECTOR

Page 73



application Ref No P140365

Continuation

(2) That the proposal, if approved, would result in the loss of two additional trees,
not previously granted for removal, which would be to the detriment of the character,
amenity and appearance of the local area, contrary to Policy NE5 (Trees and
Woodlands) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

(3) That the proposal, if approved, would be contrary to Policy B3 West End Office
Area of the Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan due to its adverse impact
on the character of the conservation area arising from the inappropriate and
excessive scale, massing and form of the proposed extension.

(4) That the proposal, if approved, would set an undesirable precedent for similar
developments in Conservation Area 4 (Albyn Place/ Rubislaw) that would
significantly adversely affect and undermine the special character of the area.

The plans, drawings and documents that are the subject of this decision notice are
numbered as follows:- 3787 _100b, 3787 _101b, 3787 _102b, 3787 _103c,
3787_104c, 3787_105b, 3787_106b, 3787_107b 3787_108a

Date of Signing 21 November 2014

Dr Margaret Bochel

Head of Planning and Sustainable Development
Enc.

PETE LEONARD
DIRECTOR

Page 74



application Ref No P140365

Continuation

NB. EXTREMELY IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATED TO THIS REFUSAL OF

PLANNING APPROVAL

The applicant has the right to have the decision to refuse the application reviewed by the planning
authority and further details are given in Form attached below.

Regulation 28(4)(a)
Form 1
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Notification to be sent to applicant on refusal of planning permission or on the
grant of permission subject to conditions

1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority to —
a. refuse planning permission for the proposed development;

b. to refuse approval, consent or agreement required by condition
imposed on a grant of planning permission;

c. to grant planning permission or approval, consent or agreement
subject to conditions,

the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under
section 43A(8) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within
three months from the date of this notice. Any requests for a review must be
made on a ‘Notice of Review’ form available from the planning authority or at
http://eplanning.scotland.gov.uk/.

Notices of review submitted by post should be sent to —

Planning and Sustainable Development
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council
Business Hub 4
Ground Floor North
Marischal College
Broad Street
Aberdeen
AB10 1AB

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and
the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in it's existing state and cannot be rendered
capable of reasonably benefical use by the carrying out of any development
which has been or would be permitted, the owners of the land may serve on
the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of the owner
of the land’s interest in the land in accordance with Part 5 of the Town and

PETE LEONARD
DIRECTOR

Page 75



application Ref No P140365

Continuation

Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

PETE LEONARD
DIRECTOR

Page 76



[ 5ZI-1=EY 1 9001 L8LE ou Buimep

1014403
101H440X3 INHTNY

OIS X3

UMHS 190

LB

JiE)

101440X3

dn

|
0318YS10 +

[ 4600 ]zWE00-YIuY 318YLL3T LIN

NV1d INJWISVH

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



[ GZI-1=8v 1 qIDJ LBLg ou Buimeup

REALEIE!

==

(2 13ONVHING W

[ 43908124807 -YINY IT8YLLIT LIN

NVId 0074 ANNDOR

—

B o

=

AL_IN

[o]

TN

atalala

ENVIER

ENV[(BE|

(o]

Bl
Bl
Bl
DI
VI ST
=

L]

V3V INILIYM

10
ump
dn
_ Y ﬂ|

NOILd303

31/S0dd0 HILYW 0L
SONITIVY ILVLSNI-3d

= mmm— o

|
|
|
|
|
11440 zﬂ#_ N3d0
|
|
|
|
|

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



[ GzI-1=8v 19201 L8Lg ou Buimeap

AAWW muu

WY INILIIN TIVINS
d0 WOOY NI

\C

D

D

(YO Oy O

0
|
Bl
|

D

o8 WY NILIIN

TIVH

U U
= T ITY NI

[ 4 BBOE]ALBZ - VIYY 31YLLIT L3N
NV1d 40014 LSl

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



[ GZI-1=8v 13801 L8Lg ou Bume.p

[HBLII]2WE5)-VINY F78YLLIT LIN

NV1d 0014 ONDJIS

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



Bank

aoe|d ulqje

N F
N
N
/ AN
N
AN
N
AN
\
\
~
-
~
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

KERB LINE
529
+ |
8% PAVEMENT sV
sy all ®8.2:
242, wa42 5 830
32
|
|
1007.974
99.833 ‘
.39 |
|
|
|
.51 |
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
.80 '
|
|
|
|
7
- 08,669
14.266
) 0 97
2
9
i
55
50
=
G
Elﬂ.lﬁ
CONCRETE
48
aRs B4 8%
5] 848 a5
1
yrya—“
o VERGE
STN
*95.'1.”2
964.379
8.65
THIQK FOUAGE
831
n
8.35
8.38 8.7 836 835 53
8.34
.43
839 iz
835 + 8.30
\33
GRASS
8.31
828
829
831 31
5 8.2
n
850 8.6
.26
7
,,,,,,,,,,,, 5
|
| PN
| Y N
N
| / N
| / >
[ 7
/
I, 7
L /
7/
/
/
7/
L e
|
E  m— \
B |
E c U |
=}
3 — |
ia 8.09
3 e : = ‘
S z
ES 807 z |
g — |
802 I+ ‘
1 = ‘
7.9§ ‘
- !
| L |
ML e |7 > |
98]
ST 100706+ |
93,124 |
7.95
— PAVING N |
— 7.9 L
— 7.95 — -
—
- & 745 l I I
- - —T7"% i 7.9
(/ S| FOLIAGE -l—l
- —
\ 791 44—
\ ) . (g
=
|1
GRAVEL .
-
-
-
-
-
e
—~
—
—~
7
7
7/
1741
"7t
7.79
7.98

-2a0 ]

drawing no 3787 104c [ A3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



[ GZ1-1=8v 1 9501 £8Lg ou Bume.p

03NIVL3 NOILD3LOY
— L00Y 04 Sniavy WO'L

TINVd INIOOYTD

AU MUY SSOT HAH — INITIVM NIVLYNT 032773

NOILVAdTY LSIM

1INV ISINH] ——

ENLER]
J3ULINILSIXT

(31V00 430MOd AT VD

TINVd NIOOYTD
113443 438N ——

VIJSYA WIINIWMTY

J0VHLSIVE SSY13 INITIVM NIVLEND 032v13

— INITIVM NIVLYNT 032719

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



[ GZ1-1=8v 19901 £8Lg ou Bume.p

— JLINVYIT 3SINHD INITIVM NIVLEND 032910 —— mﬂmn_v_m_a_%ﬁm_mﬁm HIIH Z : _ ._. < > w |_ m ._. W < m

_‘ - -  — -
T : |
| i
| L ] | E=a T - . | | ==
| | — L L T T T TN iBE T |
e 711::::, ,
u C T T T ) .
—] . - AN G #
| I < 1
— . R o
[
— ] T o
- .
| ] T 1
| I
| . T T T 1
] R
. _
I
D
N
T T T T
P
= 17
[ [ [ [ ]
[ [ [ [ |
100 + TINVd ANIOOYTD s
INITIVA NIYLAND 032419 ——— INITIYM NIYLAND 3219 J0VISTVA SSY1 L 133443 3N ,
VIISV4 WNINIWMTY
@@ @@ L (31Y00 430M0d AU YAV

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 90



[ GZI-1=8v 19401 £BLS Ou Buimeap

NOITLVAITY HLAON NOITLYAITY HLINOS

Fr——— = —— T — — — — — = TNYd NIOOYT]

AJUI XY SSOTI HIH
[ELLAE

f
| UL INILSIX
7

LS0dd0 HILYW 0L
SINITIVY ILVISNI-38 :

i [ [ ] INITIVM NIVLHND 032v13

L 10
[ 10

[ ] [ TANYd INI00Y1D
f f L3343 43801

| ( _ VIS4 WINIATY
_ ] C3LY01 $30MOd A3H9 MUY

HEE LR il CLEER] ]

J0VYLSMIVE S8Y13

INITIVM NIVLHND 032v13

VIJSV4 WIINIWTY
(031v00 ¥30MOd A Xva

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



[ GZI-1=Y ] 20| [8Lg ou Buimep

[ ANIQY4 HINOS TNDILIAS ¥NIT

il

[ ONIJYS HINON TNODILDIS ANIT

TINVd INIOOYTD
AU NV SSOTT HAH

1 HSINIS ON3H-X AJ8D

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



[ 00I-1=8Y 1 BOJ L8LE ou Buimesp

%%N
29, #5252 I F INAGYIN
ik 0 - 9.
TV % <
o S0,
PEVGIVHR LEN
\ 0188377 oL t00 3V INILSIXT
/A@%N %&%\ \.\\Mw%
% 69, 9% b 6,
N |
N
J10AT M0LOW ONI

4000 SSYd
<

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 96



From: Kevin Duguid [mailto:kevin.duguid@fitzgeraldassociates.co.uk]
Sent: 01 July 2014 12:40

To: Garfield Prentice

Subject: 42 Albyn Place Aberdeen Ref - P140365

Importance: High

Garfield,

Further to our recent meeting, i now attach revised scheme to reflect our discussion for your
further consideration. The main points as follows -

1. Thave taken the wall adjacent to west & south boundary walls in, the
passageway here now equates to 2m clear.

2. Thave removed the cantilever over the upper floors, this takes the rear
building elevation in line with the adjacent property at 41 Albyn Place.

3. Thave reduced the height of the building by approximately 0.75m, this
now is no higher than the rear dormer windows - this with a remodel to
the east entrance, introducing glass curtain wall the full height to help
reflect the existing part I trust will be something you can support - as
the west elevation looks onto a high neighbouring wall, I have treated
this part differently, again I trust you find this acceptable.

4. Thave reviewed the front vehicular access and redrafted to have a
dedicated entrance exit with reduced parking and more soft
landscaping.

I look forward to your response in due course. If you feel a get together would help, please let
me know.

Regards,

From: Garfield Prentice <GPrentice@aberdeencity.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: 42 Albyn Place Aberdeen Ref - P140365

Date: 11 August 2014 16:27:47 BST

To: 'Kevin Duguid' <kevin.duguid@fitzgeraldassociates.co.uk>

Good afternoon Kevin

Sorry for the delay in replying to this email. With current workloads and priorities and key personnel
on leave, today has been the first opportunity to provide a written response.

It is noted that, amongst other amendments, you have endeavoured to reduce the overall height of
the proposed extension relative to the original building and reduced the width of the extension.
However, it is considered that the revised proposal would still dominate the original building to an
unacceptable degree and would not preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the
conservation area. Indeed, its size, height and position relative to the adjacent listed building
(Clydesdale Bank) would be such that it would be likely to adversely impact on the setting of that
building. For these reasons, the scale of the proposed extension is not acceptable.

Page 97



It is considered that there may be scope to construct a 2 storey extension to the building. Given the
constraints of the site, its footprint could not be greater than that shown on your latest revisions.
Such an extension would not have such a dominating impact on the original building and would also
have a reduced impact on the setting of the adjacent listed building. That said, the Council cannot
give any firm commitment at this stage to supporting such a proposal until such time as it is
presented with a revised proposal and has had to fully assess it.

| would happy to discuss any draft revisions you may produce prior to them being formally
submitted.

| would be pleased if can advise how your client wishes to proceed.

regards
Garfield

We are always trying to improve the quality of customer service that we provide and would like to
know your views on the service you have received to help us learn what we need to do better. We
would very much appreciate you taking a few moments to fill in our short feedback form by clicking
on http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/customerfeedback and selecting Development Management
(Planning Applications Team). Many thanks in advance.

Garfield Prentice

Team Leader (Development Management South)
Planning and Sustainable Development
Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North

Marischal College

Broad Street

Aberdeen

AB10 1AB

Tel. (01224) 522198

From: Kevin Duguid <kevin.duguid@fitzgeraldassociates.co.uk>
Subject: 42 Albyn Place Aberdeen - Ref P140365.

Date: 28 August 2014 09:28:14 BST

To: Garfield Prentice <GPRENTICE@aberdeencity.gov.uk>

Garfield,

Further to your email correspondence of 11 August regarding our proposals for no.42 Albyn place, |
have now had a chance to review your concerns and would offer the following comment.

It would appear that your concerns lie over the scale of the extension and the perceived impact on the
conservation area and adjacent listed Clydesdale Bank and you have recommended a

further reduction to a 2 storey extension. | have now had a chance to go back and discuss this with
the client, however the significant reduction in floorspace that would result from a 2 storey

redesign, would render the project unviable. | would also contest your view that the proposals

would adversely impact on both the conservation area and the adjacent listed building. Albyn Place

Page 98



is dominated by large villas which have been been significantly extended over time and no.42 is
presently sandwiched between the existing extensions at no.41 and also Clydesdale Bank.

With regard to the latter, it is difficult to conclude what impact the proposals would have on the main
listed element of the bank, given it has a relatively substantial modern addition to the rear?

The site is located within the West End Office Area, were there is a high concentration of office
development and the Aberdeen Local Development Plan seeks to encourage and promote such
uses.

The character of the area is commercial and dominated by large extensions to the rear, many of
which are unsympathetic in their design and finish and located on listed buildings, which | would
emphasise

that no.42 is not. Our proposals have sought to incorporate a high quality contemporary design,
constructed with a high proportion of glazing in order to be read separately from the more solid granite
of the

main building. By its very virtue, the design seeks to enhance the rear aspect of the conservation
area, not detract from it.

Finally | would draw your attention to the recent appeal decision for no29 Albyn Place (PPA-100-
2053) which approved a further extension to the rear of the listed property, which already had been
extended

with a 3 storey office addition to the rear. The Reporter was conclusive in his assessment of the
character of Albyn Place and | would suggest that the reasoning contained within the appeal decision
is highly

material to our application and would kindly ask that you take this into account and re-consider your
current position which is opposed to the application.

| would be more than happy to meet with you to discuss this further.
Look forward to hearing back from you in due course.

Regards,

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



Our Ref. ~ GDP/P140365 £y

Your Ref. fe. -
Contact Garfield Prentice k el 1'5
Email pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk ) ’-‘

Direct Dial 01224 522198
Direct Fax 01224523180

ABERDLEN

16/09/2014 CITY COUNCIL
Fitzgerald + Associates Ltd Planning & Sustainable
53 Albert Street Eeiglapment
Aberdeen :Enterprlse, Planning &

" nfrastructure
Aberdeen City Aberdeen City Council
AB25 1XT Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North
Marischal College
Broad Street
Aberdeen AB10 1AB

Tel 01224 523470

Fax 01224523180
Minicom 01224 522381
DX 529452, Aberdeen 9
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

Dear Sirs

42 Albyn Place, Aberdeen
Alterations and extension to form new office accommodation
Application Ref P140365

| refer to the above planning application and to your email of 28" August 2014.

The issues and comments made in your email are noted and, where appropriate, a
response to those matters is provided below. However, | would reiterate that the
Council’s position with regard to the unacceptability of this proposal remains.

It is not disputed that there are numerous extensions to the buildings on Albyn Place
and that this, to some extent, defines one the characteristics of that part the West
End. It is worthy of note that the properties in close proximity to the application site
comprise mostly 2 storey extensions, with the extension immediately to the east
being single storey. The highest parts of all of these extensions are below the eaves
level of the original buildings, which is important in maintaining the appearance,
character and integrity of the original buildings.

All planning applications must be considered on their merits, taking into account the
characteristics of the site and the surrounding properties. The application site is
considerably smaller than other sites on Albyn Place, the exception being the site
immediately to the east (which has a single storey extension), and thus cannot
accommodate an extension of the size that exists on some other properties.
Furthermore, consideration must also be given to the size and characteristics of the

GORDON McINTOSH
DIRECTOR

Page 101



original building. In this case, the property is a 1% storey building. A 3 storey
extension to such a building would be incongruous and detrimental to the
appearance and character of that building.

It is not disputed that a contemporary design is the preferable approach for extending
the building, provided the design is of high quality. The main concern is the scale,
massing and height of the proposed extension, which as currently proposed, cannot
be supported.

It is acknowledged that site lies within the West End office area whereby Policy BI3
‘West End Office Area’ of the local development plan applies. That policy merely
supports the change of use of properties to office use. It does not lend any specific
support to the construction of extensions.

The recent appeal decision at 29 Albyn Place is noted. However, as stated above, all
planning applications must be assessed and determined on their own merits.
Furthermore, that appeal decision was the opinion of one Reporter, which in itself
cannot be taken to set a precedent for other developments across the West End. The
appeal decision also relates to a substantial site that is considerably larger than at 42
Albyn Place and thus the impacts arising from a development on that site are
significantly different to the constrained application site. For these reasons, little
weight can be attached to the appeal decision.

Whilst the Council is willing to engage in further discussions on alternative proposals
for extending the property, any such discussions would need to focus on a 2 storey
solution. As stated above and also in previous correspondence, a 3 storey extension
cannot be supported and thus any further discussions on such a proposal would not
serve any useful purpose.

| would be please if you can confirm how your client wishes to proceed. In order for
the planning application to proceed to determination, | need you to advise whether
you wish the original proposal or the revised version sent by email on 1! July 2014 to
be considered. If it is the latter, | would ask you to formally submit those drawings to
the Council (2 copies).

Yours faithfully

Garfield Prentice
Team Leader (Development Management South)

GORDON McINTOSH
DIRECTOR

Page 102



Directorate for Planning and Environmental Appeals v
Appeal Decision Notice > 1
T: 01324 696 400 A‘
F: 01324 696 444 The Scottish

E: dpea@scotland.gsi.gov.uk Government

Decision by Richard Dent, a reporter appointed by the Scottish Ministers

e Planning appeal reference: PPA-100-2053

e Site address: Bishop’s Court, 29 Albyn Place, Aberdeen AB10 1YL

e Appeal by Johnston Carmichael and Ribnort Limited against the decision by Aberdeen
City Council

e Application for planning permission, reference P131464, dated 27 September 2013
refused by notice dated 13 February 2014

e The development proposed: the erection of an extension to provide additional office
accommodation and associated infrastructure works

e Application drawings: see Schedule 1

e Date of site visit by reporter: 1 July 2014

Date of appeal decision: 16 July 2014

Decision

| allow the appeal and grant planning permission subject to the two conditions listed in
Schedule 2. Attention is drawn to the three advisory notes following the conditions.

Reasoning

1. The appeal must be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. As the site lies within a designated conservation
area it is also necessary to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of that area.

2. The matters at issue are whether the massing and design of the proposed extension are
acceptable taking account of the proximity of listed buildings, including Bishop’s Court to the
front of the site, and also the spatial distribution of buildings within this part of the
conservation area.

3. Bishop’s Court fronts Albyn Place, the original 1830 mansion house which is a category
B listed building now being in office use. There is small office building (29A) to the rear of
the plot and a substantial recent three-storey office extension to the rear of the listed
building. The council argues the size and length of the existing extension and the proposed
further extension must be considered as a whole. The council contends the building in total

15014001 51 ¥

- 2 i‘t""‘)- s
4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR @ {;} VYA {5

DX 557005 Falkirk www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Planning/Appeals Eoovesonoreons  me®

Page 103



PPA-100-2053 2

would dominate Bishop’s House to an unacceptable level and therefore lead to an adverse
impact on the setting of the listed building. The council also claims that the further
extension now proposed would result in almost the entire eastern side of the site being built
up. As such, the open quality of the land would be eroded leading to an unacceptable
impact on the setting, not only of Bishop’s Court, but also other listed buildings in the area.

4. The appellants draw attention to the existing three-storey extension to the rear of
Bishop’s Court and also to the large extension at the rear of the neighbouring property, 28
Albyn Place. The proposed extension would be “tucked in” between these buildings.
Accordingly, the appellants maintain, it is difficult to conclude what impact the proposal
would have on the listed buildings.

5. | can accept that, at one time, when Bishop’s Court was in residential use, the entire plot
within which the building was sited would constitute the setting. More recently, that setting
has altered very significantly in extent and character following the change to office use, the
construction of the existing extension and the formation of the car park. The important and
historic setting of Bishop’s Court is now essentially related to the frontage of the building
within the impressive streetscape of Albyn Place which contains numerous listed buildings.

6. | agree with the council that the proposed extension must be considered as a whole.
However, in so doing, | do not think that the proposed additional extension would have any
further impact on the setting of Bishop’s Court. The existing extension has very limited
visibility from Albyn Place and the proposal would not alter this perspective to any
significant extent. Similarly, there would be little visual impact from the east where a
modern building has been built. | therefore agree with the appellants’ assessment that the
proposed extension would be “tucked-in” - visually and physically separated from the
settings of nearby listed buildings.

7. Equally, although the council claims that the extensions, existing and proposed, would
dominate the listed building, | do not consider the current extension, although it is a large
structure, to be unduly dominant. As explained, there is little visual impact from Albyn
Place. From the rear, the extension obscures much of the original southern elevation of
Bishop’s Court. However, the roof height is below that of the listed building and the
structures are separated by a glazed stairwell and atrium. | therefore consider the existing
extension also does not dominate physically or visually.

8. The proposed further extension would increase the length and mass of the overall
building but it would be only two storeys in height with a significantly lower roof level. The
width would be the same as the existing building and again a degree of separation would be
achieved by the intervening glazed stairwell and atrium. In my opinion the scale of the
extensions, in total, would neither overwhelm nor dominate Bishop’s Court or any other
nearby listed buildings.

9. The appellants’ have undertaken a plot ratio analysis showing that following the
construction of the further extension the built area would be some 31% of the plot. The
neighbouring properties range from 25% to 34%. The council considers this information is
irrelevant. More importantly, the council argues, the proposed extension would pass

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR
DX 557005 Falkirk www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Planning/Appeals

Page 104



PPA-100-2053 3

beyond an established rear building line, a defining characteristic of this part of the
conservation area. The council further states the reduced space between the building and
the rear boundary line would result in an unacceptable loss of openness. On the other
hand, the appellants argue that there are various examples of new buildings towards and at
the rear of plots in Albyn Place and Queen’s Road, to the west.

10. | consider that the plot ratio analysis provides a useful indication of the level of building
that has been undertaken in the vicinity of the appeal site. On this basis, the proposed
extension would not appear to result in an exceptionally high proportion of built
development on the plot. | appreciate that it is also necessary to take account of the
disposition of the buildings within the plot. In this respect, my site inspection included
walking along the lanes to the rear of the south sides of Albyn Place and Queen’s Road.
This vicinity forms part of one of five distinct character areas identified by the council within
the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area Character Appraisal. | did not gain the
impression that a rear building line, formal or informal, has been established and | agree
with the appellant that there are several examples of building to the rear of plots. In some
cases, in Queen’s Road especially, the extent of building within plots is at a high level.

11. As previously explained, the character of the plot at 29 Albyn Place altered when the
change of use to offices took place. In my opinion, the current character would be
unaffected by the proposed further extension and a reasonable degree of openness would
be retained. | therefore regard the level of building proposed within the plot to be
acceptable.

12. The council is also concerned about the design of the proposed extension which, it
states, is inappropriate and would have an uneasy and uncomfortable relationship with the
existing extension. The appellants explain that the proposed extension is a smaller version
of what already exists.

13. | note the intention to utilise matching materials for walls and roof in order that the
proposed extension would provide a similar appearance to the existing. Fenestration and
roof details would also be the same. | also accept the appellants’ argument that the glazed
linking sections would reduce the bulk and provide a distinction between the original
building, the existing extension and the proposed extension. Accordingly, | do not share the
council’s opinion that the two extensions would have an uneasy and uncomfortable
relationship with one another.

14. Turning to the council’s belief that the proposal would be detrimental to the character of
the conservation area, | note the conservation area appraisal recognises that many of the
buildings in this part of the designated area are now used as commercial properties. The
appraisal points out that there have been a number of additions, including substantial rear
extensions and rear car parking, as is the case on the appeal site. It is acknowledged that
former large garden areas have been lost. Indeed, the majority of this part of the
conservation area is also within the designated West End Office Area, where commercial
enterprise is promoted.

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR
DX 557005 Falkirk www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Planning/Appeals

A
() e &

H
% INVESTOR IN PEOPLE

Page 105



PPA-100-2053 4

15. The council draws attention to the reference on page 46 of the appraisal to “the build
line” but | note this relates to another character area. In fact, the correct “key
characteristics” are found on page 47 of the appraisal where the reference is to a “build line
set back from the road”. | share the appellants’ opinion that there is not a reference to a
building line to the rear of the properties.

16. The appraisal clearly appreciates that Queen’s Road and the south side of Albyn Place
now has a commercial character. Nevertheless, this part of the conservation area does
have a number of key characteristics, one of which is the building line to the front of the
original buildings. | have assessed the proposed extension in this context and | consider
that the principle of the commercial use is undoubtedly acceptable and is not in conflict with
the terms of the appraisal. | have already considered the proposal in terms of design and
scale and found these aspects to be acceptable. Contrary to the opinion of the council, a
building line to the rear of the properties is not a key characteristic in this part of the
conservation area and therefore the proposal does not offend in this respect.

17. In the wider conservation area, the proposed extension would have little visual impact.
As explained, it would be virtually unseen from the main thoroughfare, Albyn Place. To the
rear, a substantial wall along the north side of Albyn Lane would provide a shield. In any
event, it would take its place as one of numerous commercial buildings to the rear of Albyn
Place and Queen’s Road properties. | therefore cannot accept that the proposal would set
an undesirable precedent as claimed in the second reason for refusal. | have no doubt that
it would at least preserve character or appearance of the conservation area. Indeed, in the
context of the West End Office Area, the standard of design, as discussed below, might well
be regarded as enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.

18. Assessing the proposal against the terms of the development plan, the reasons for
refusal state that the new extension would be contrary to Policy D1, Architecture and Place-
making, and Policy D5, Built Heritage, in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

19. Policy D1 seeks to ensure high standards of design and sets out a range of factors to
be considered when assessing proposals. In my opinion, analysis of the proposed
extension has shown that the structure would satisfy those requirements and provide a
building with the required high standard of design. Policy D1 also requires new
development to make a positive contribution to its setting. | have previously concluded that
the building would, at least, preserve the character or appearance of the conservation area.
My conclusions also lead me to accept that the design of the building, the proposed
materials and its relationship with the existing extension would result in a satisfactory built
form. In terms of Policy D1, | believe that this could be regarded as a positive contribution
to the setting.

20. Policy D5, Built Heritage, requires proposals affecting conservation areas or listed
buildings to comply with Scottish Planning Policy (SPP). A new version of SPP has recently
been published and as this document is a material consideration, parties were given the
opportunity to comment on the content. Although the council believes that SPP supports
the refusal of planning permission, my assessment of the development leads me to
disagree with that opinion. In terms of valuing the historic environment, | believe the

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR
DX 557005 Falkirk www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Planning/Appeals

Page 106



PPA-100-2053 5

proposed extension would meet the policy principles of SPP and avoid any adverse impacts
on the fabric or setting of the conservation area and listed building. In complying with the
provisions of SPP, the proposal, in turn, accords with Policy D5.

21. As explained, the appeal site is within the West End Office Area and so Policy B13
applies. The policy states that applications for a change of use for office purposes will be
given favourable consideration. Supporting text describes the area as a high quality office
location on the edge of the city centre where the council will encourage and promote
continual development. | believe, therefore, that the principle of the proposed development
is firmly supported by the local development plan.

22. All-in-all, | conclude that the proposal complies with the provisions of the local
development plan. This points to the granting of planning permission although | am
required to assess whether there are any material considerations to indicate otherwise. |
have already taken account of SPP in the context of Policy D5 and concluded that the
proposal meets the policy principles. | have also had regard to the guidance provided by
Historic Scotland in respect of Managing Change in the Historic Environment: Extensions.
In setting out the general principles, the guidance recognises the difficulty in laying down
hard and fast rules. However, where applicable, the proposal satisfies the principles.

23. | have regarded the submissions from third parties as material considerations insofar
as they raise valid planning issues. Matters relating to the impact on the listed building and
conservation area have been dealt with in my analysis of the proposal as have the various
design aspects.

24. Concern has been expressed about parking and traffic generation but the council has
raised no objections in this respect. Indeed, | note the reduced level of parking would bring
the number of spaces closer to the maximum parking standard. Street parking in the
vicinity is subject to regulatory control. | therefore consider that the proposed parking
provision would be satisfactory. There is also concern that there would be an
unacceptable impact on the privacy of residential properties in Stanley Street. However,
the council believes that there would be an adequate separation distance and | concur with
that opinion.

25. Lack of bicycle facilities was raised and the council indicated in the report of handling
that this matter could be dealt with by condition should planning permission be granted.

26. Overall, no material considerations have been brought to my attention that cause me to
set aside the provisions of the development plan. | therefore allow the appeal and grant
planning permission for an extension to provide additional office accommodation and
associated infrastructure works at 29 Albyn Place, Aberdeen. The approved drawings are
listed in Schedule 1.

27. The council has not suggested any conditions should the appeal be allowed although,

as indicated, reference was made to a condition requiring bicycle facilities. | agree that this
would be appropriate. In the event of the implementation of the development authorised in
terms of this planning permission, it is assumed that the existing offices at 29 and 29A

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR
DX 557005 Falkirk www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Planning/Appeals

Page 107



PPA-100-2053 6

Albyn Place would continue to function despite the potential for disruption. Clearly, it would
be in the best interests of all concerned for site management to be well organised and
therefore it is appropriate to apply a condition to secure this objective. The conditions
applied to the permission are listed in Schedule 2.

Richard Dent
Reporter

SCHEDULE 1
Approved drawings

Location Plan: P1928 Loc.;

Existing Floor Plans and Elevations: 1965 EXO01;

Site Layout (existing): 1965 EX02;

Site Layout (proposed): 1965 PLO1 (referred to as 131464-02 in the council’s refusal
notice);

Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations (including schedule of external materials): 1965 PL02
(referred to as 131464-01 in the council’s refusal notice).

SCHEDULE 2
Conditions and advisory notes
Conditions

1. Prior to any work commencing on site, details shall be provided for the written approval
of the planning authority to indicate:

i) which of the existing car parking spaces will remain available for use by office staff and
visitors during construction work;

ii) the location and extent of any contractor’'s compound (including arrangements for
materials and equipment storage); and

iii) access and parking arrangements for vehicles associated with the construction of the
office extension.

Reason: to ensure the existing offices function throughout construction work with as little
disruption as practical.

2. Prior to any work commencing on site, details shall be provided for the written approval
of the planning authority to indicate the provision of facilities for bicycles.

Reason: to ensure that those who cycle to the site are provided with suitable facilities to
park bicycles.

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR
DX 557005 Falkirk www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Planning/Appeals

N

i ' &
f ovestormeeoeis  mand

Page 108

&



PPA-100-2053 7

Advisory notes

1. The length of the permission: This planning permission will lapse on the expiration of
a period of three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has
been started within that period. (See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).)

2. Notice of the start of development: The person carrying out the development must
give advance notice in writing to the planning authority of the date when it is intended to
start. Failure to do so is a breach of planning control. It could result in the planning
authority taking enforcement action. (See sections 27A and 123(1) of the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).)

3. Notice of the completion of the development: As soon as possible after it is finished,
the person who completed the development must write to the planning authority to confirm
the position. (See section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended).)

4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR
DX 557005 Falkirk www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Planning/Appeals

H

5 A

4 & .

s ) ;g
L W g
f ovestormeeoeis  mand

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



= Application Ref No P131464

PLANNING & SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
ABERD EEN Business Hub 4, Marischal College, Broad Street,

CITY COUNCIL ABERDEEN. AB10 1AB

The Town And Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

Refusal of Planning Permission

Halliday Fraser Munro
Carden Church

6 Carden Place
Aberdeen

AB10 1UR

on behalf of Johnston Carmichael & Ribnort Ltd

With reference to your application validly received on 7 October 2013 for Planning
Permission under the above mentioned Act for the following development, viz:-

Erection of extension to provide additional office acommodation and
associated infrastructure works
at Bishops Court, 29 Albyn Place, Aberdeen

the Council in exercise of their powers under the above mentioned Act hereby
REFUSE Planning Permission for the said development as specified in the
application form and the plan(s) and documents docketed as relative thereto and
numbered as follows:-

P1928 Loc, 1965 LP01, 131464-01, 131464-02
The reasons on which the Council has based this decision are as follows:-

That the proposal, if approved, would be detrimental to and thus not perserve or
enhance the character of Conservation Area 4 (Albyn Place/ Rubislaw) and the
setting of the Category B listed buildings on the site and the adjacent site due to the
excessive length, the loss of the sense of open space within the feu and the
inappropriate design of the extension and its relationship to the existing building,
contrary.to Scottish Planning Policy, Scottish Historic Environment Policy and
Policies D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) and D5 (Built Heritage) of the Aberdeen
Local Development Plan.

That the proposal, if approved, would set an undesirable precedent for similar

GORDON McINTOSH
DIRECTOR

Page 111



application Ref No P131464

Continuation

developments in Conservation Area 4 (Albyn Place/ Rubislaw) that would
significantly adversely affect and undermine the special character of the area.

The plans, drawings and documents that are the subject of this decision notice are
numbered as follows:- P1928 Loc, 1965 LP01, 131464-01, 131464-02

Date of Signing 13 February 2014
Dr Margaret Bochel

Head of Planning and Sustainable Development
Enc.

GORDON McINTOSH
DIRECTOR

Page 112



application Ref No P131464

Continuation

NB. EXTREMELY IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATED TO THIS REFUSAL OF

PLANNING APPROVAL

The applicant has the right to appeal to the Scottish Ministers against the
decision to refuse the planning application and further details are given in
Form attached below

Regulation 28(4)(b)
Form 2

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Notification to be sent to applicant on refusal of planning permission or on the
grant of permissions subject to conditions

1.

2.

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority to —
a. refuse planning permission for the proposed development;

b. to refuse approval, consent or agreement required by condition
imposed on a grant of planning permission;

c. to grant planning permission or approval, consent or agreement
subject to conditions,

the applicant may appeal to the Scottish Ministers under section 47 of the
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the
date of this notice.

Applicants may obtain information on how to submit an appeal by visiting
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Appeals or
contacting —

Directorate for Planning & Environmental Appeals
Scottish Government

4 The Courtyard

Callendar Business Park

Callendar Road

Falkirk

FK1 1XR

Telephone: 01324 696 400
E-mail: DPEA@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and

GORDON McINTOSH
DIRECTOR

Page 113



application Ref No P131464

Continuation

the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in it's existing state and cannot be rendered
capable of reasonably benefical use by the carrying out of any development
which has been or would be permitted, the owners of the land may serve on
the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of the owner
of the land’s interest in the land in accordance with Part 5 of the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

GORDON McINTOSH
DIRECTOR

Page 114



. .
_ T " . > E . &
ol N e o N, - .
R o g R A @ M Ny - N 3
e - . \ . 1 L - ot -
P YR L e b -
4 & o N ; «
4 el . 4 o
> "ol g 8 - b » - “ = L.

x A - = A 3
UOLEPOUIWIOIIY 93130 MON Wi104 O0) UOISUI)XS pue suoljelsdl|y

=

uaapIdqYy ‘9oeid UAqlVy Zv




asuas Buouss e Buueyo A)ID ayy Jo Jeuenb asusp
AleAneias e ojesisuowsp  s)gad)s  Buipunouins
pue a)s ay] ‘sbuijiel uoJl 8ABI008P pue sapede)
Halyxe  yoiym
Aimuad yg|, Jo ojdwexa jug|@oxa jlodsun

Jueulwop INoAe|  |eoissejooau
ue sulewsa. ouge} }ing Buipunouns ay) jo Ajuolew
8y} ‘sneig ealy UONBAIBSUOD SH JO }nsal
e se pue adeos)oaljs Buipunolins 8y} sajeuIlop

UoNONJISUOD 8)B|S pue ayuelb |euonipel] "Yinos

djelpswiwl 8y} o} Buipiing 8IAIBO palsIT-O Bu}
os|e pue (D jeQ) Isem auy} 0} 8/-0/ “(4 1eD) yuou
ay} 0] 1/-69 S'ON Buipnpur ‘eys ayj Buidojoaus
soledosd poisiT O B 4
yum‘ Buipjing paisi 9 Alobaje) e se pajeubisap

J@yjo snoJswnu

s| Auadoud Bunsixa ay| "Ainjuad yigl 8y} 0} oeq
Bunep xeuo09o |eouoisiy juesiubis e sey ajis ay)
yons Sy ° Baly UOIJBAISSUOD) PJOJJY U0g/19941S
UMOJD 83U} UIYIM ‘ussplaqy JO 9102 DLOISIY 8y}
UIylIM pajedo)| SI 8)Is 8y} ‘@Aoge passnosip Sy

|esieaddy pue }xajuo) ajs

"UoI}eo0| S}l JO
[eoidAy abejuol) 19a4)s Buodls B Yjim UOIONISU0D
ale|s pue oajuesb |euonipes; jo si Auadoud
Bunsixa oyl -usepine Buulewss osje sasn

[eloJaWIWOD pasiadsiaiul Yum |98) |enusplsal

Pa]eJjUsoUOD 8JOW B U0 Saye) Bale ay] ‘Yinos

Jaypuny Bujdaaely uodn JaAemoy ‘sasn  ssauisnq
pue |iejal Jo xiw e AQ paslajoeieyd Sl }19ai1S 89
UIOYUON ‘19a.1S uolun wody yoeoudde [enul uQ

‘BAlY UOIIBAIBSUOD) ME|SIQNY pue ade|d UAQ)yY
pue JouIsIp 921440 pug }SAAN S.Usapleqy Jo leay
3y} ulyum yueg sjepsapA|D auy o} Jusdelpe ‘ede|d
UAQ|y JO pua uleisem ay} 0} pajedo| SI 9)Is ay|

uonduosaqg a)s

UOIBPOLIWIODOE. [BljUBPISS] PUB 80140
yloq Joy pasijan si buipiing Bunsixe ay) Jussaid 1y

.w>®._OHw 29ly] JOAO uoljepowwiodde adlljo
MU 3]eald 0] UOoIsullXa Jeal pue UOISISAUO0D
‘suofnessye |eussyul spnpul  sjesodoisd 8yj
‘usaplaqy ‘eoe|d UAQlY i Je Buipiing Bunsixe ay)

0} UOISUBIX® pue ‘suonels)je Jo} si |esodoud sy

uoljew.ojul punoibyoeg ® uoldNpPoOIU|

aoe|d uAqiy zv

Page 116



0] syd9s yoiym (4gHS) Aolod juswuodiaug
ouOISIH ysipoos pue (ddS) Aoljod Buluueld
ysioog 0} pied ag 1snw uonusye a8soo ¢ ealy
UOIIBAIBSUOD 8y} UIyum uoiisod pue snjels pajsi
sonledosd oy LW yoiym ‘esase Buipunodins
pue 8)s a8y} Jo 2ouedubIs JLO)SIY By} USBAID

sa|diouLid ubisaq

‘asn
[|EJOAO }I WOJ) JOBIIBP },USS0P SIY} Jey} Sainsud
uoneodo| [esuad syl ‘Buppied pajedipap wod) jeusq
Juop saiuadold Buipunouns sy} JO ydonw pue
3)IS 8y} Is|lym pue asuejsip Bupjem uiyum osje
aJe suoljels |led pue snq }9a5S plIing “Ajwixoud
9SO|0 Ul Yl0g 198.1S UMOID pue 1}9a.1S uolun
yum ‘podsuel; olgnd 0} SUOIDBUUOD JUS||IXS
sholus ays ay} ‘peod olgnd e oyjuo Bunuoly pue

A0 8yl ulyuIM uoneoso| [eJjusd e woll Bunysusyg

‘sjesodoud
8y} Ul 9jejnwe 0} pajuem pue pasiubooal
sojeloossy  plesabzy4  je  sjoeuyole oy}

Buiylewos si siyL ‘Buiping 90O 1s0d [eIoudD)
8} JO UOISISAUOD JUS2aJ 8Y) pajgeusd yolym ‘ayis
ay) Jo Jsed Yuou ay) o) Juswdo|anap [jul paje
8] Se yons ‘ealy UONBAISSUOD) 8y} Juswa|dwod
o} ysiuy pue

a|eos ‘uBisep  pasiuow.ey

A|INJSS800NS  9ABY UOIYM SUOIUSAJIBIUI UlBpowl
JO s9|dwexa snoJawnu JSASMOY dJe 818y ‘edale
Buipunouins ayy jo Ajubajul pue olqge) o1IoISIY By}
UlIM SPpO Je jJeymawos ale yolym ‘sbuipjingino
pue SUOISUSIX® dAljOBIJJE SS8| pue Juddal
aJow 0} ‘@je|s pue ajuelb ul paysiul ‘JejndBUISA
onayiedwAs ay} wody abues asay| ‘sbuipjing o}
suonippe Jaje| Jo uonesayljold ayy aouay ‘spunolb
uap.leb Jeal pajebuoje pue abie| Ajaanejal Aolus
19041 88 JO pus uleyinos ayj} o) saiuadoud
ay}
sey eaJe 9y} Ul sBuip|iNgino pue SuoISuUdIXd Jeal

Jo Auolew ay] -pebpomouoe useq

1o} Juspaoaid & ‘@A0qe 8y} WO} Usss 8q Ued sy

-.SBuipjing-)no pue suojsua)xa

Jeal Jo A)aLieA ale aiay) Jeal ay) O ")9aJ)s ay)
Buissaippe sbuipjinq padse.tia) jo uoniodoid
ybiy e yym sabejuoly yoaljs buouys sey ealy
UOJBAIBSUOY) }981)S UMOID)/PI02dYy uog ay],,

S91eIS YoIym ue|d Juswabeuel pue |esieiddy
Baly UOIBAIBSUOD) [1DUn0) AJD usspiaqy 8y}
Ul paoyYoa SI SIY] "SBUO |eljuspIsal }Sapow alow
0] 1uaoelpe sbuipjing oignd abue| Buipnjoul ‘"'sasn
pue sbuipjing jo abues asiaAlp B yym ‘@oeld jo

|9}0H uAmjoH

Page 117



ouy ay) usamiaq Aynunuod usjeasb ul Buiynsel
Agaieyl uoneag|@ juoldj a8y} uo Bunsixe asouyl
ajeoldal pjnom Yolym SJBWIOPp MBU UM 8Say)
aoe|dal Aj@}o|dwoo 0} pasodoud si 1 ABuipioooy
‘Buipiing ey} jo Absul pue Jsjoeleyo ay)
woJ} JoeJjap jussald je yolym ‘uoneas|o Jeas oy}
0} SsuoljIppe JaWIop X0q Jd}e| OM} OS|e ale alay]
‘opedey uiew s,buip|ing ay} aAocidwi pue uoIpuod
[euiblo J1ayy 0} yoeq wayy bulqg o) pasodoid si
uswysiganyol 8yl 1oy 81| [N} B 910818y} ‘Uonusye
JO paau yonw ul ale |9j0y Yy} JO Juod) dy} 0O}
SJowIop 9y} SB Yyons SjusWa|d JOASMOY UOIIPU0D
punos AjpAneas e ul si Buiping ayy Ajjeussix3

UOI}EPOWIWIODI. JUSPN)S [BIIUBPISDI SB 9SN Mau
pasodoid a8y} ul Ayjeuonouny Buimoje ‘onewbeld
S| ]Jey} UOISUBJXd pUB UOISIBAUOD dneyiedwAs
e 9|gqeus 0} aAleladwl pawasp sem }| "ssaoo0.d

ubisep ayj ojul Jnd usaqg sey UoIBISPISUOD
pue ybnoy} |nyeled ealy UOIBAIBSUOD) 8y}
ulyum uonisod jusuiwold pue sniels paisi
S}l UBAID) "ease ay} jo |eoidA) sI abejuoly
Buo.ns sy pue j9ang 99q ul adeos)eans
a8y} 0] uoiNquUuod jueoiubls B sIBYO
9)IS 98U} d9AOge passnosip usaq Sey Sy

asuodsay ubisag

‘d3HS PUB ddS Yim aul| Ul paWOdaM 89 [|Im
S9JIS Yons adueyus pue aAI8suU0D 0) s|esodoud

alojoloyl  ‘Ajuepl  |ednynd  s.usspleqy
0] A8y ale sealy uoneAlasuo)) pue sbuipjing
palsi] "sbuipjing juepunpal jo uondepe pue
uoisianuod Buipnjour sbuipjing ajuelb jo asnal

pue uonuajas ay)} bBuibeinoous ebejusy Ing

ued Juswdojsasp |220| uaapJlaqe

pue ajuelb s ussplaqy U0 SNJ0) Gy S8I0I0d

*Jed ajeAlld pue podsuedy ongnd ‘BuljoAo
‘Bujlem jo Japio 8y} ul juswdojeAsp mau
ul pasiiold aq 0} ale sepow Jodsuel| ‘|aAel)
aAljoe buibeinooua Aq sajA1say Ayyeay ajowold

pue sadIAIBS 0} Ssedde anosdwi ‘Jed  ayeAud
AQ |eAel) asiwiuiw 0} Japlo ul paubisep aq [Im
uawdojanap mau ey saioads siyl g Aoljod
ybnouy} pajowoud SI |9ABI} SAIJOE pUB d|geule}sng

‘suap.leb
[BUNWWOD 10 Sdoe.Is) ‘suapieb ajeAud ‘sajuodjeq
Jo uoisinoid ayy ybnouayy Jayye seale no Bums
0} SS800B 9ABY 0} aJinbas sjuspisal ||y WNOIJ U0
uapJeb pasojous ue 0} ade} ajeAud B pue }oa1)s
e 0} aoe} olgnd e Buirey JuswdojaAap |enuapisal
yum Buisnoy Aususp Jaybiy o1 ur paubisep
aq 01 sainseaw Aoeaud o|geyuns sauinbal

zq Aolog ‘Ayluswe pue ubisep 0} pJebas YA

"UOIINQLIIUOD PIES JO JUBWISSOSSE
ay) ul [eyuswepuny aje sbuip|ing punose saoeds
ayl yum Jayiebol syuswale Buipjing jo suoiuodoud
ay) 1eyy sasiseydws 3| -Buyes sy 0} uoinNgLIuoD

aAlISOd B @)ew pue JXajuod S} 1O} UOBISPISUOD
anp yum paubisep a9 }snw juswdojoAsp mau jey)
salinbal Bupey\ ade|d § ainysuydly - Lq Adljod
‘ubisep Alenb ybBiy pue aaneaouul sjowold
pue Auo ay} jo abejuay }Ing ay) 109joid 0] Sye8s
Al@Ajoe ue|d wswdojaaag |e207 udsplaqy 8yl

"sBuip|ing paisi 108)4e Ajesianpe
JOU S90p pue Sealy UOIJBAISSUOD 0} UOIINQLIUO0D

oAlllsod B sayew  juawdojPAep  aunsua

Page 118




"MaU pue p|o ussmiaq

uonisuel} oy} ojeyjioe} A|INJSS00NS [IM UYdIYM

Buip|ing [euiblIO dy] 0) SjUBWSIS PBPUBIXS 331y}
[le 108uu0d |IMm Mull paze|b Aj@lo|dwod mau vy

‘s|euajew Buiysiuly pue
wJo} s) ul Jusuodwod mau sAoulSIp e Bunesald
sny} Aunjuad yigl 8y jo sbuipjing Buipunouns
8y} Jo ayuelb plos sy} 0} }SElUOD |elualalep
e sayew ubisep pasodosd oy} peaisul
‘eaJe Buipunouns oy pue Ausadoid sy yloq
10 JuswBp 8y} 0] uonisodwod |jessno Jood e
ul Bunnsas ayonsed e psjeald aAeY pINOM 9|eds
pue ubisep Bunsixe ay)} ojeoldes 03 jdweype
Aue jey} palopisuod sem }I uoisuaxa bBunsixe
8y} uey} Jayuny spniyjoid M JuBWS® MdU
SIY} 1By} UBAIS "sjuswsle pazelb pasiseydwa
Aleoion yym dn  usyolq pue Jspual yjoows
B Ul paysiuy aq [|Im }| 'S|9A9] JOO}} }sJi pue
punolb ssouoe uoljepowwoode Buuayo ‘ubisep

X0q JooJ-1e|l onsidwis e 8jeiodiooul [IM SIYy]

‘uolsuaixe bBunsixe ay) Jo joadse Apsyuou ayy
uo paydope aq |Im ubisap Alesjodweijuod aiow y

"UOISUB)Xd
Bunsixa ay} 0} ajoJ ajeulpJogns pue dnayledwAs
B Ul ynsal [m pus 9|qeb ay) yoeq bBuiddels
0] UOIjIppE Ul JBpudl Yloows pue ale|s |elnieN
‘Juswale ayuelb Jeal Bunsixs sy} JO d|eds pue
uBisep oy 01 Jejlwis ‘uoisualxa pajqeb Asliois
oM} joos-payoyd mau e ypm joadse Ausyinos
8y} uo paoe|dal pue paysijowap aq ||IM suolippe
jools-jely Aioys sbuis bBunixe oyl -uoneas|d

}1se8 8y} 0} UuoIsusxe ajuelb |euonipel)
By} JO BpIS Jayld IS M UOIYM SJusWwsd mau
OM} WJo} A|[BllUSSSS |IM SUOISUSIXS 8y ‘uolnoe
JO 8SIN0O 1S8q 8y} 9q 0} )8} SEM UOISUSIXd
Aleijodweluod pue ulepow e yjm luswaoe|dal
JivyL

pue Auedoisd oy Jo ouqge)

pue  |eAowsal ‘Baly  UOIJBAIBSUOD
[euibuo ey}
0} 8nguye 10 dodue|quasal ou Jeaq sbuipjingino
puEe SUOISUBJXd JOOJ Jej} Juddal aJow a8y}
JanamoH ‘pabeinoous Ajjealb aq pjnom uonusal
S} @Jojouay) dlge} douolsly sy jo ued s Bulpjing
ay} Jo Jeal a8y} 0} uoisusxe ajuelb bBunsixe
ay} 1eyy pesiubooas sem ) ‘wea] abejusH
Jing pue 821AI8g Buluueld s,J1ounod AN a8y} yim

wewabebus pue suoissnosip aalisod ybnody |

"8|OYM B Se Bale UOlBAIaSUO)) 8y}
0] JuswWwaoueBYUS Ue Bullslo ‘SuoneAs|d Jeal pue

Page 119



‘8|eo0| Buipunou

-ins pue Buipjing Bunsixa ayl yloq Buloueyus
‘uonnguod aAlisod e ul jnsal |Im ‘Buipjing Bunsi
-Xa 8y} 0} sjuswanoidwi pue syuswsjd Apybisun
JUB.IND JO |BAOWSI BY} SPN|OUl OS[B YDIYM ‘SHIOM
pa1a|dwod 8y} yons Sy "UOIEPOWWOII. Jusp

-n)s mau ay} Jo} Ayjeuonjouny sapiaolid yeyy ubisep
Aenb ybiy e a1ea.o 0] yoreoidde uispow e yum
pasnjul usaq sey |euoljipel) 8y} JO pud|q V "Ouqe}
HIng pue abejuay s,eale Buipunouns ay} 0} puods
-al [m sjesodoud ay} moy pue a)is ay} JO 1Xd)
-u09o 8y} 0} pied usaq Sey UOIBISPISUOD [NjaIeD

‘Buip|ing ouo)sIy pue jueuoduw

SIy} Jo} @sn mau e aJo|dxa 0} Ajunpuoddo 1ealb

e pajuasaid Janamoy sey siy| ‘siedh Jo Jaquinu
1sed ay} JoAO duIDap Ul usaq Ssey |8)0y e Se asn
Bunsixa ay} Ajgjeunuojun ~adeos)aal)s Buipunols
-INS 8y} 0} uoNQLIUOD JuedlIUBIS B SaYeW }9allS
99 ¢/ 1e Auadoud Aumuan yig| Bunsixe ay|

suoisnjouo) pue Aiewwng

‘Auswe Buunoqybiau uo 10ed
-WI OU 8q [|IM 8J8Y} SUOISUSIX® MaU 8y} JO uolje)}
-UaLIo pue JnoAe| [eulajul 8y} 0} uolippe ul aoeds
uspieb Jeal 8y} JO ainjeu pPasoOjouUd 8y} USBAID
uswdojarep pesodoid syl Ag payoesadwiun
ulewsal |[IM SIY} Janemoy ‘josjuod syueoldde ey

UNIMINO sI Jey} 1sam-}ses Buluuni saue| Moleu e
Aq pejeiedas osje ale ypou ayj 0y sbuipjing ay

‘eaJe pieh leal
ayl ulyum papinodd siayo0| pue saoeds 9j0Ad
MBU 38y} 0] SISIoAD 10} sSa20e Asea moje |[Im
yoiym Alepunoq ulayuou ayy apisbuoje Buiuuni
Aemyjem ueujsepad pojeb e sey ous oyl

‘19841S plino
Je aouejsip Bupjiem ulylIm OS|e ale S|eulw.s)
SNg pue |ley '198J]S UMOJD pue 18aJ1S uolun
Buoje yomiau uodsueny ongnd  Buipunouins
oyl Ag passaooe Ajisea Sl I Salnsus uoleoQ|
[enuad s} ‘pesodoid SI JUSWUOIIAUS ©8l) Jed
e ‘alis uo Buped pajedipap ou S alay} ISIYM

a10Aa1q
pue 100} Aq o|qissaooe Alybly sI }I alojaisy)
A)19 8y} ulyIM uoedO| [BJjuad e s)seoq sis ayl

SS90y

NYTd 40074 15H] 4

[

NOILYA3T3 HINDS

o | I

AR RN}

AN NN

s

Page 120




200|d UAq|y woif yung 3|ppsapA|D t 3inbi4

Z{"ON UOIIDA3|3 Up3aY :Z 3inbiH

YIbd I0D) yubg 3|ppsapA|D wo.if 31s Jo MaIA :€ ainbi4

Z"ON UOIIDA3|3 U0 T 24nbi

Page 121



aun7 uAqy ojuo buryonpg suoisuaixa Jo subisap snoLIbA Jo MIIA :8 a4nbi

200(d UAQIY ZE-TE "SON UOISUIIXd A3101S-€E :9 24nbiI

20p0|d UAqQ|Y 6€ 0N UOISUaIXa abio] i/ ainbi4

20D0|d UAQIY 62 ON UOISUIXa A24031S-€ :G a4nbi4

Page 122



PRRRE @

OQuUANTUMWM CLAIMS

W

42 Albyn Place
Tree Survey

January 2014

This Document is of UX Qrigin
EnvireCentre Limited 2014

Page 123




_ano
==(Centre

EnviroCentre Document No. 5886

EnviroCentre Project No. 365006j

Status DRAFT FOR COMMENT

Report Author Jennifer lles

Project Reviewer Douglas Blease

Date of Issue lanuary 2014

Filename K:\365006/\Outputs\issued

EnviroCentre t 01330826 596 Offices
Suite G1, Office C W www.envirocentre.co.uk Glasgow
Banchory Business Centre e info@envirocentre.co.uk Banchory

Hill of Banchory Business Park
Burn O Bennie Road
Banchory

Aberdeenshire

AB315ZU

BM TRADA

uvnu - CtriiniCalign
| iema el

H Institute of Envirmemantsl
\ Managrment & Agsessment YDTEeIY

Registered SN

This document has been prepared for the Client named on this front cover. EnviroCentre accept no liability or responsibility for any
use that is made of this document other than by the Client for the purpose of the original commission for which it has been prepared.

This Decument is of UK Origin
EnviroCentre Limited 2014

Page 124



Quantum Qaims January 2014
42 Albyn Place Tree Survey

42 Albyn Place
Tree Survey

Table of Contents

LUy Lo T TP OO bemre - 1
1 INErOdUCHION et SN e 2
11 PrOpOSed DEVEIODIMENT ... oottt e e RS E b ee bbbt trener e 2
1.2 AT AN ODJBCEIVES 1. et e e e e e Lo bbb e 2
2. MEthod......cccii e e NrdrErn e e e b e d e n e e e 3
21 GUIJANCE DOCUIMEBNTS ...ocvevieescareaiam st cr et erre s ettt e eee e s s et m1 et b s ettt st st e
23 QLT Tt o =T T o OO T T OS TSRS SPUOTPSNU 3
2.4 ROOT ProteCtion ArEas (RPAS) ..o iir e er e s oo p b ts bbb etas sttt mn e re bt rras 5
25 Tree REfEraNCe PIANS .. ...t e s e e 5
26 SUNVEY CONSIIAINES oottt et er e bbb e bbb e r s e r et 6
3. RESUIES 1ot e e e et en Vemranrens 7
31 7T T L OO O O SUORSY
3.2 CUITENE TIEE SEOCK 1vvi ittt e e et e s ama s st emns s srcmarnnssmaannnres £
4, Arboricultural IMpact ASSESSIMENT .....c.ooiriiviiiii s s et s rrmnr e e s srant s s e oen e 8
41 BTIDACE SUMIMIAIY . ot ettt s b o1 b2 b e e bbbt b s AL b R n b ban e s s tre e e e 8
4.2 Negative Impacts to Trees [dentified 0N STEE ... s 8
43 Positive Impacts to Trees IGENEIfiet 0N SIEE oo et eer st et st 9
5. Mitigation Recommendations ........ Feetetmnmeiarrrereieraad i be eyt eraerrns s rererarasaannnees errrrrssennte s na e 10
51 Treeand Stump Remowval ... et e e et e et sannans seses s nmes e sireescnsscanenes 1O
5.2 TPEE PrOTECHION Lot et e e 4ok cem e e 40 A 1 e bes S srcemcm b e n bt b e anae et bR rne e 10

53 Enhancement of Arboricultural Features

Appendices
Appendix A: Development Proposals
Appendix B: Tree Quality Assessment Criteria
Appendix C: Tree Schedule
Appendix D: Tree Reference Plans

List of Drawings

Figure 1: Default SpecifiCation BAITIEL. .. et e st et bbb 11
List of Tables

Table 2-1: Age profile of individual trees... e e et ettt ee et et E b amh R e R emea oAt et et e e et et bbb ene s s s e anertarnsrnranes )

Table 2-2: Condition categorisation of |nd|wdua| EEBES ettt ettt et e et e ettt es ettt eneees e e s e abenes 4

Tabte 3-1: Species recorded AUING the SUIVEY ... s e e e aaar e b et b s s e 7

Table 4-1: Tree recoOmMMENded fOr FEMOVAL .. ..o ettt s et en s erre bbbt an 8

Table 4-2: Trees highlighted as incompatible with the design ... e 8

Table 4-3: Tree that require arboricultural operations to facilitate development.........vvecerceieiecceeee e 9

EnviroCentre 2014 i

Page 125



SUMMARY

= EnviroCentre Ltd was commissioned by Fitzgerald Associates {on behalf of their client,
Quantum Claims) to undertake a tree survey at the rear of 42 Albyn Place, Aberdeen.

¢ It is proposed to extend the south facing rear of the building in order to expand the existing
office space.

e The desk study revealed that the area at the rear and the front of the property falls within in
the conservation area and there is a Tree Protection Order in place (TPO No7).

e Atotal of 4individual trees were surveyed. Some of the trees within the site have been
subject to recent arboricultural operations,

¢ Atotal of three trees are incompatible with the development proposals.

s Protection from construction activities and arboricultural operations are recommended in
this report to preserve retained; or newly planted trees on site. Further suggestions for tree
planting are alsc included.

EnviroCentre 2014

Page 126



1. INTRODUCTION

EnviroCentre Ltd was commissioned by Fitzgerald Associates (on behalf of their client, Quantum Claims) to undertake
a tree survey applying the standard cutlined in BS5837:2012 - Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction —
Recommendations,

The survey and assessment was conducted during January 2014 at the rear of 42 Albyn Place, Aberdeen. The site is
located at Ordnance Survey Grid Reference NJ 92481.05738 (approximate centre of the site) and currently comprises a
private greenspace with a smali number of trees.

1.1 Proposed Development

Number 42 Albyn Place currently comprises a granite office building with small car parking space to the north aspect
{which hosts a mature beech tree of high amenity value} and a basic garden area to the south comprising a variety,
although small number, of trees. Itis proposed to extend the south facing elevation of the building in order to expand
the existing office space. Due to the nature and orientation of the building and its environs, this is the only aspect in
which the building could be extended.

Refer to Appendix A: Development Praposals.

1.2 Aim and Objectives

The aim of this study was to undertake a survey of trees within the development boundary to determine any potential
canstraints to development, and how the continued longevity of trees could be maintained, with the following
objectives:

*  Map the location and the broad characteristics of the trees on the site that may be affected by the
development proposals;
* |dentify constraints, threats and opportunities for their future management; and

®  Provide management recommendations to ensure the persistence of trees on the site.

EnviroCentre 2014 2

Page 127



2. METHOD

2.1 Guidance Documents

The tree survey was conducted with reference to the following standard guidance:
e BS5837:2012 Trees in relotion to design, demolition and constructian ~ Recommendations’; and the
e Arboricultural Association Guidance Note 7 Tree Surveys: A Guide to Good Practice®.

The former provides guidance for a balanced approach on deciding which trees are appropriate for retention, the
effects of trees on design considerations, and the suggested means of protecting these trees during development. The
Arboricultural Association Guidance Note seeks to assist the surveyor in providing an efficient service by clarifying
survey objectives, ensuring a duty of care and assisting with the presentation of data.

2.2 Desk Study

A desk study was undertaken to ascertain the presence of the following designations and any relevant species records
applicable to the site:

e  Tree Preservation QOrders {TPQs) or other non-statutory conservation designationsz; and

e Statutory conservation designationsq.

2.3 Tree Inspection

Trees were visually assessed from ground level. No invasive instruments were used in assessing the trees’ condition.
The following information was recorded for each individual tree:

* Unigue identification number;

s Species;

s  Estimated height;

e Diameter at Breast Height (DBH)

s Indicative canopy spread;

e Life stage (age profile);

s  Bat Roost Potential;

e General observations including preliminary management recommendations; and

e  Tree quality categorisation.

2.3.1 Tree Numbering and ldentification

All trees were afforded a new identification tag. New tags were attached on the main stem of each tree
approximately 2m above ground level. Trees were identified and are referred to in this document by both their
vernacular and scientific names.

2.3.2 Tree Measurement

The height of each tree from ground level was estimated in metres. The crown spread of each tree was estimated in
metres along the north, south, east and west axes. The stern diameter of single stemmed trees on level ground was
measured at 1.5m above ground level, otherwise referred to as diameter at breast height (DBH) in millimetres, using a

! BS5837:2012 Trees In relation to design, demolition and cosstruction — Recommendations. Avallable from:

D.Dowson, M Fa\.,;,“ﬁ?ﬁ;a-ll-iv\-fgll, Guidance Note 7: Tree Surveys A Guide to Good Practice, The Arboricultural Assoclation, 2005,
* administered by Aberdeen City Council, contact: 01224 522440

“ SNH Sitelink. Available from: hitp/feateway.sohgov.uk/sitelink/searchmep.jsp

EnviraCentre 2014 3

Page 128




calibrated girth tape. For trees with multi-stems, unusual stem formations and those on sloping ground, variance to
the measurement method and/or calculation of stem diameter was made according to B$S837:2012.

2.3.3

Life Stage

Trees were classified in terms of their life stage using the categories outlined in Table 2-1:

Table 2-1: Age profile of individual trees

Abbreviation Category Description
T Y Young A juvenile tree, newly pfanted or recently established.
SM Semi-mature | An established tree but not showing any species specific mature characteristics.
M MoTars A tree that has reached maturity and contains features such as anticipated climax
height, and species specific mature characteristics.
oM Over-mature A tree that has passed rr_w_lturity and has begun a decline, perhaps by reduced food
supply to crown extremities and the development of decay.
A tree usually in the mature stage of its life that has important wildlife and habitat
vV Veteran features including: hollowing or associated decay fungi, holes, wounds and large
dead branches.

2.3.4 Bat Roost Potentiaf

The trees were subject to a ground based preliminary roost assessment to determine their potential to accommodate
roosting bats. Trees were categorised as follows":
e Known roost.

s (Category 1*: Trees with highly suitable features capable of supporting larger roosts.

e Category 1: Trees with definite hat potential, supporting fewer suitable features than category 1* trees
or with potential for use by single bats.

e (Category 2: Trees with no obvious potential, although the treeis of size and age that elevated surveys
may result in cracks or crevices being found; or the tree supports some features which may have
limited potential to support bats.

e C(Category 3: Trees with no potential to support bats.

2.3.5 General Observations and Management Recommenduations

General (non-invasive) observations were made of individual trees regarding their structural and physiological

condition {e.g. the presence of decay or physical defects shown by external bio-mechanical signs).

Trees were

dassified in terms of their general condition using the categories outlined in Table 2-2:

Table 2-2: Condition categorisation of individual trees

Abbreviation Category Description

G Good A tree not showing more mechanical defects than would be expected or that
could be easily remedied.

. Eair A tree showing more defects than could be reasonably expected, but that could
he remedied.

p Poor Atree in a poor structural condition with defects that could not be easily
remedied.

5 Dead jtre: affficted with a pathogen, or having suffered a trauma that has resulted in

eath.

5
Hundt L{2012) Bat Surveys: Good Practice Guidelines , 2nd edition, Bat Conservation Trust

EnviroCentre 2014

Page 129




2.3.6 Tree Quality Categorisation

Each tree was assigned a quality category from A-C with increments of 1, 2 and 3 for retention or ‘U’ for removal. The
categorisation also reflects the future contribution that a tree may provide. Each tree was considered for
management according to the operations required to preserve or maintain the amenity, health and structure of the
individual tree or groups of trees.

Refer to Appendix B: Tree Quality Assessment Criteria for further details of the assessment.

2.4 Root Protection Areas (RPAs)

The RPA has been calculated to be an area equivalent to a circle with a radius 12 times the stem DBH or a variation
dependant on stem structure.

The RPAs have been plotted as a circle centred on the location of individual trees unless site conditions indicate
that rooting has developed asymmetrically. The RPA is capped at 707m’, which is equivalent to a circle with a
radius of 15m,

2.5 Tree Reference Plans
2.5.1 Tree Constraints Plan

The Tree Constraints Plan shows the following information:
s  The location of the surveyed trees on site;

*  The tree quality colour code of individual trees on site;

s« Any known incompatibilities between trees and the design proposals;
®  The estimated extent of individual tree crowns; and

s The calculated individual RPAs.

2.5.2 Tree Protection Plan

The Tree Protection Plan shows the recommended positioning of protection barriers in relation to retained trees
following the removal of unviahle and incompatible trees.

EnviroCentre 2(114 5

Page 130



2.6 Survey Constraints

This survey does not specifically address or quantify the health and safety risks posed by trees, although where
potential hazards have been recognised it is possible to recommend an appropriate strategy for management.
Regular arboricultural assessment should be undertaken of trees, particularly those recognised as posing a risk to the
health and safety of persons or property within the site.

The survey conclusions relate solely to the conditions recorded at the time of inspection. Trees can be affected by
environmental changes such as weather events, topographical alterations or changes in hydrological regime and
therefore such changes may necessitate further survey.

The impacts of shade associated with the current and anticipated ultimate height of surveyed trees has not been
taken into account. However, this information can be extrapolated, mapped and assessed on request using the raw
data gathered during this survey.

The Tree Schedule presented in this document includes preliminary management recommendations but is not a

schedute of works and is not designed to be submitted to a contractor. A tree works schedule can be provided if
required.

EnviroCentre 2014 &

Page 131



3. RESULTS

3.1 Desk Study

The desk study revealed the following information as provided by Aftab Majeed, Aberdeen City Council®:
e The area at the rear and the front of the property falls within in the conservation area and there are
Tree Protection Orders are in place {TPO No7); and
e Allthe trees are protected in the conservation area.

3.2 Current Tree Stock
The following sections should be read in conjunction with the Tree Schedule presented in Appendix C and the Tree

Reference Plans presented in Appendix D. A total of 4 individual trees were surveyed. Species recorded during the
survey are detailed in Table 3-1:

Table 3-1: Species recorded during the survey

Vernacular name Scientific name
Sycamore Acer pseudoplatanus
Cherry Prunus avium
Copper Beech Fagus sylvatica Purpurea’
Western Herlock Tsugo heteraphyila

© Emall received from Aftab Majeed dated: 08/01/2014 10550

EnvireCentre 2014 7

Page 132




4, ARBORICULTURAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

4.1 Impact Summary

The following direct impacts to the current tree stock are currently anticipated as a result of the development project:
* Theremoval of one ‘Category B tree due to its position in relation to a shared boundary wall {and the effect
it may have on that structure), plus potential incompatibilities with the design;
e Theremoval of one ‘Category A’ tree to facilitate the construction of the new office building;
e  The removal of one ‘Category C' tree to facilitate upgraded access and new parking areas;
e Arboricultural operations to preserve the longevity of a retained tree;
s  QOperations in proximity to; or within the calculated rooting area of a retained tree; and
s  The opportunity to positively maintain, enhance and increase arboricultural features on site,

4.2 Negative Impacts to Trees Identified on Site
4.2.1 Tree Recommended for Removal

The survey highlights that the following tree listed in Table 4-1 is recornmended for removal:

Table 4-1: Tree recommended for removal

Tree ID Species Quality Reason for
Categarisation removal
Sound
arhoricultural
management.
(Potentially
incompatible with
design)

583 Sycamore B

Tree number 583 is a semi-mature sycamore, located immediately adjacent to the shared boundary wall in the east
elevation of the site. It is considered that this tree has the distinct potential to cause future damage to the boundary
wall, resulting in the inevitable removal of the tree. It is unlikely that this tree was planted at this location and is the
result of natural succession. The tree is multi stemmed and hosts a large bark inclusion from its base to ¢.1.5m above
ground level. This common feature has the potential to form a hio-mechanical weakness and a future constraint to its
preservation in this location. This tree may also be incompatible with the propesed design and construction process.

It is recommended that this tree and its stump are removed as part of sound arboricultural management of the site.
This tree has been labelled in the Tree Constraints Plan as incompatible, however, the RPA of this tree has been shown
on the Tree Constraints Plan, as reference, should the development team seek to retain this tree.

4.2.2 Trees Incompatible with the Development Design

The proposed design indicates the removal of the trees listed in Table 4-1 in order to facilitate development:

Table 4-2: Trees highlighted as incompatible with the design

Tree [D Species Quality Reason for
Categorisation removal
Development of
584 Cherry c evelopr
new parking area.
| t of
Western Development o
586 A new office
hemlock o
building.
EnviroCentre 2014 &

Page 133



Tree number 584 is an un-remarkable, planted Cherry tree which could be trans-located or replaced following its
removal.

Tree number 586 is a Western Hemlock, reaching a stage of early maturity. The tree appears to have suffered the loss
of its leader in the past, resulting in the bi-furcation of its main stem in the upper section of its canopy. This tree is
likely to have been planted as a small feature tree at the rear of an amenity lawn and has since developed to dominate
the rear of the building.

The removal of this tree will facilitate the expansion of the office building to such a size that development becomes
economically viable. Additionally, removal of this tree will allow the adjacent Copper beech to develop as the
dominant feature tree in a newly landscaped green space. In terms of landscape design, this would create a
comparable reference point to the mature beech tree located at the front elevation of 42 Albyn Street.

4.2.3  Arboricultural Operations

Preliminary arbaricultural operations are recommended for individual trees where appropriate. EnviroCentre
recommend that all arboricultural operations are undertaken by an appropriately qualified or experienced contractor
and that works conform to the recommendations outlined in BS3998:2010.

It is likely that the tree listed in Table 4-2 will require arboricultural operations to remove crown incompatibilities and
to ensure encourage tree retention during and post construction.

Table 4-3: Tree that require arboricultural operations to facilitate development

Tree D Species Action summary
Conduct a 15% Crown volume
585 Copper reduction.
Beech Install a brace at approximately 3m
above bark inclusion.

Refer to Appendix C: Tree Schedule for further information.

4.3 Positive Impacts to Trees ldentified on Site

The retention of tree number 585 Copper Beach encourages the future management of its structure, which until now
has been largely ignored. The tree has been identified as hosting a large bark inclusion at the point where the main
stem divides; and the ubiguitous copper beech graft union, found lower on the main stem.  As this will become a
feature tree within the developed areq, its preservation is reliant on regular arboricultural monitoring and future
operations to preserve its longevity. Without inferring its raised status to a feature tree, it is likely that management
options would not be forthcoming and the tree may eventually suffer failure at these commaon bio-mechanical points.

EnviroCentre 2014 El

Page 134



5. MITIGATION RECOMMENDATIONS

The following suggestions have been extrapolated from the B55837:2012 document or have been recommended
based on wider sources of information and the specific nature of the site.

For sites where tree cover or root protection presents a constraint, or where trees ctassed as being of high quality are
present, it is strongly suggested that a project arboricufturalist is included in the design and management team from
an early stage.

5.1 Tree and Stump Removal

The removal of tree number 586, in order to facilitate the development should be undertaken with due care and
attention to the retained tree {(number 585) which is in proximity. It is likely that the tree shall require sectionat
dismantling due to its location, therefore the ‘free dropping’ of large sections within the rooting zone of the retained
trees should be avoided by utilising an adequate rigging system.

Additionally, it is highly likely that the stump of the aforementioned incompatible tree shall require removal. In this
case, it is suggested that the soil material around the stump is carefully excavated using hand tools or compressed air.
This will aid in the accurate identification of any roots of the retained tree and allow accurate stump-grinding to occur,
thus minimising damage to retained roots. The arisings from the stump grinding process should be removed from site
and a clean compost/topsoil mixture should be used to back fill the void.

Works to remove trees 583 and 584 should follow safe working practices with arisings removed from site in an
appropriate manner.

5.2 Tree Protection

In order to retain tree number 585, the preservation of its structure and health during construction will be required.
The following methods should be adopted:

s Site operations should be planned to take into account the location of the tree stem, crown and root
protection areas. Transit, traverse and operation of machinery should be supervised by a banksman
to ensure adequate clearance of the aforementioned constraints. Pruning of trees may be required to
facilitate access of such machinery. All pruning of this nature should be undertaken following
consultation with a project arboriculturalist.

* Due to the proximity of trees 1o development activities, it is suggested that the surveyed, the retained
tree is afforded protection using the default barrier specification as described in Figure 1.

e« The proposed location of the protection barrier does not meet the full extent of the calculated rooting
area. This is to allow access around the tree via the north, east and south elevations of its crown
structure and rooting system. Where protection barriers cannot meet the full extent of root
protection areas, further ground protection should be designed in conjunction with the project
arboriculturalist.

EnviroCentre 2014 10

Page 135




5.2.1

Key

Stendard maltold polex

Hewsy gauge I m tall pelwnized tube and welded mesh infill panels
Fanals sacured to uprmhts and rom-memnbers with wire ties

Gt bt

B W N e

Uprights driven into the ground untll secure (minimum depth L8 m)
standard scafiold clamgs

Nt

Figure 1: Default specification barrier.

Site operations within RPAs

Where site operations may require the RPA of trees on site to be compromised, the following basic guidelines should
be adopted:

5.2.2

Activities within the RPA should follow the principle that the tree and sail structure take priority, ensuring
adequate soil density to achieve root growth and function;

All plant and vehicles engaged in construction works should either operate outside the RPA or upon
adequate ground protection. Ground protection should be designed by an engineer and evaluated by the
project arboriculturalist;

In general, existing ground levels within the RPA should be maintained with the existing topsoil remaining in
situr; and

Detailed working methods should be emplayed following agreement and design of services into and around
the site; the position of site compounds; and any other activity that is likely to impact the rooting area of
trees in and adjacent to the site.

Landscaping

It is likely that landscaped surfaces will be installed within the rooting area of tree number 585, to be retained and
managed as a feature tree. It is suggested that a permeable; or semi permeable surface is used over a 3D cellular
confinement mesh which will aid in spreading the load forces which would otherwise compress soil and rooting
systems. An artificial irrigation system may also be installed following an onsite assessment of the landscaping
provisions by the project arboriculturalist.

EnviroCentre 2014 11

Page 136



5.3 Enhancement of Arboricultural Features

Establishment of a management regime from an early stage can secure arboricultural features in the landscape in
perpetuity.

5.3.1 New Planting

The design proposals do not suggest that there is adeguate space to establish new, large species trees within the site
boundary. Areas of green space suitable for planting small and medium species trees are shown in the design
proposals.

New plantings shoutd he located to ensure adequate space is allowed for future growth {to maturity) of root systems,
stem(s) and crown structure. Due attention should he paid to potential direct conflict with structures, services,
general access, views and sunlight provisions throughout all seasens taking into account full leaf cover.

Tree species to be considered for new plantings should reflect an exotic tree mix to provide amenity interest within a
developed, urban context. A species list could include but not be limited to:

e Chinese red-barked birch {Betula albo-sinensis);

e  Alder leaved whitebheam {Serbus alnifolia), and

e Japanese crah apple (Malus floribunda).

It is suggested that the planting of trees for formal amenity purposes in the context of this project refer to the Urban
Tree Design guide’ supplied by Greenleaf.

5.3.2 Further Survey

Should the design footprint change and at such time that detailed plans of service routes {water, electricity, gas,
communications etc.) be agreed, this may result in the need to undertake further survey of the site and its surrounds.

It is suggested that a programme of future monitering as part of an arboricultural management plan may be
appropriate in order to ensure an effective and pro-active approach to management of the developed site.

? Greenleaf Urban tree design guide, Edition 7. Available at: http/feresnleaf co ke signguids

EnviroCentre 2014 12

Page 137



Appendix A: Development Proposals

- i ¢
— - - P
et P W |
” o --..: - ol . /ﬂ. - ~ 1
P ) ) |
L ’ _.. — {r"’f !I'_ & Bank S}

iy ne E8) JUAH | ket |

R ——— e e ———

|
!
|
|

-
s i =
T H = !
: ! | T ---—T
e ma) b e e i e e ) [a—— pr—— pT—— |
WEST ELEVATION
drwsing v TTHT AECW (| AJbTS )

Page 138



6¢ | abed

Appendix B: Tree Quality Assessment Criteria

Category and colour on TCP

Criteria

U - Removal

Those in such a condition that they
cannot realistically be retained as
living trees in the context of the
current land use for longer than 10
years.

e Treesthat have a serious, irremediable structural defect such that early loss is expected through collapse,
or become unviable after removal of other category U trees.

e Treesthat are dead or are showing signs of significant, immediate or irreversible overall decline.

e Trees infected with pathogens of significance to the health and/or safety of other nearby trees or trees of
very low quality, suppressing adjacent trees of better quality.

A - Retain

Trees of high quality with an
estimated remaining life
expectancy of at least 40 years.

Mainly arboricultural value

Mainly landscape value

Mainly cultural values including
consérvation

1 Trees that are particularly good
examples of their species, especially
if rare or unusual. Essential
components of groups or formal or
semi-formal arboricultural features
(i.e. dominant/principal trees in an
avenue).

2 Trees, groups or woodlands of particular visual
importance as arboricultural and/or landscape features.

3 Trees, groups or woodlands of
significant conservation,
histarical, commemorative or
other value (e.g. Veteran trees or
wood-pasture).

B - Retain

Those of moderate quality with an
estimated remaining life
expectancy of at least 20 years.

1 Trees that might be included in
the high category, but are
downgraded because of impaired
condition {e.g. remediable defects
or poor past management/storm
damage) such that they are unlikely
to be suitable for retention beyond
40 years.

2 Trees present in numbers usually as groups or
woodlands, such that they form distinct landscape
features thereby attracting a higher collective rating than
they might as individuals, or trees occurring as collectives
but situated so as to make little visual contribution to the
wider locality.

3 Trees with measurable
conservation or cultural value.

C - Retain

Those of low quality with an
estimated remaining life
expectancy of at {east 10 years, or
young trees with a stem diameter
below 150mm.

1 Unremarkable trees of very
limited merit or such impaired
condition that they do not qualify in
higher categories.

2 Trees present in groups or woodlands, but without this
conferring on them significantly greater collective
landscape value and/or trees offering low or only
temporary/transient landscape benefits.

3 Trees with very limited
conservation or cultural vaiue.




Oy ebed

Appendix C: Tree Schedule

General Observations of Structure/Physiological Condition

Height
Branch Spread # (m) 3::; Condition | BRP and/or Preliminary Management Recommendations Category
Tree o DBH | (detailed in bold).
ID Ri'<s (m) (mm) |
| 3 ] Al
N E S W G/F/P/D U/A/BJC
M/OM 1/2/3

Multi stemmed with included bark. Evidence of recent
reduction. Tree located immediately adjacent to a shared

583 Sycamore 12 672 4 4 4 4 SM F 3 boundary wall. This tree is also likely to be incompatible B
with design. Remove tree and stump due to the future
constraint of its location.

584 Cherry 8 320 3 3 3 3 SM G 3 Co-dominant stems at 2.5m. Incompatible tree C
Graft union. Co-dominant stems and included bark at 4m.,
Install brace at 3m above bi-furcation. Undertake a 15%

. . | : .
585 Copper 14 600 8 3 q g M G 3 crown volume reduction, tar_getmg ‘e ongated Inmbs- in A
Beech order to preserve tree amenity, facilitate construction

movement around crown extents and reduce loading on
co-dominant stems.

586 Western 18 630 4 A 3 P M G 5 Divergence of stem at 15m probably following past loss of A

Hemlock leader. Incompatible tree




Appendix D: Tree Reference Plans

b Wzedt o

= == .

1

|
&l -
| B

i *i

H

T
| - FINAL —
B imcompatinie ree o - 1780 |A3—ﬁum

L] ] =]

=
aﬂre o

Page 141




1o

Page 142



Your Ref.
QOur Ref. RIH/B100485 [YMA]

Contact
Email

Richard Hoggins
rhoggins @aberdeencity.gov.uk

Direct Dial (1224 522422
Direct Fax (1224 523180

24 February 2014

Light Of Bengal Restaurant
C/O Fitzgerald Associates Ltd

Planning & Sustainable
Development
Enterprise, Planning &

Infrastructure
53 Albert Street Aberdeen City Council
Aberdeen Business Hub 4
AB25 1XT Ground Floor North

Marischal Coilege
Broad Street
Aberdeen AB10 1AB

Tel 01224 523470

Fax 01224 523180
Minicom 01224 522381
DX 529452, Aberdeen 9
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

Dear Sir/fMadam

Building (Scotland) Act 2003

Building (Scotland) Acts 1959-70 As Amended

13 Rose Street, Aberdeen, Aberdeen City, AB10 1TX

Change of use/ Extension & Alterations to form Manager & Staff
Accommodation flats

Application Number B100485

| refer

to your application for a Certificate of Completion in respect of the above.

Before we can issue the Certificate the following points require to be taken care of:

1.

R w

PTO

An amended plan must be submitted for consideration showing the work as
built on site. Drainage installation altered from approved plans. Lounge kitchen
layouts altered. Second floor has ceiling down-stand and fire detection to be
altered. Third floor has relocated position of sink units and secondary vent to
be done. Sliding doors to bedrooms changed to normal doors. Vents formed
above bedroom fire doors. Roof ventilation altered. Structural elements altered
at third and attic floor for stair enclosure.

. Confirm that the original design certificate is still valid for the work as built or

provide a new design certificate from the Engineer with the revised details.

A final drain test will be required.

Escape route lighting to be checked also fire alarm system.

Provide second fire detector to second floor lounge kitchen because of down-
stand dividing room.

Fire alarm detector in main stair enclosure at first floor to be properly fixed in
place.

GORDON McINTOSH
DIRECTOR

Page 143



Continued

7. Vents above bedroom doors to be fitted with intumescent blocks to maintain
fire resistance.

8. Fire doors to be adjusted in order to close properly.

9. Gap at bottom of fire doors excessive at some doors. Please provide threshold
strip to reduce gap to less than 10mm.

10.Fire exist signs to be adjusted. Running man sign in corridor pointing in wrong
direction.

11.Door ironmongery to final exit door from main stairwell to be completed.

12.Remove temporary security bar from first floor restaurant fire exit door into
main stairwell.

13.All main electrical cupboards to stairwell need additional intumescent strips
and smoke seals on the edge of the door where the two leaves come together.

14.Holes in external walls where services not installed to be sealed.

15. Provide access handholds to main soil stacks a minimum of one metre above
external ground levels.

16.External AAV not acceptable on main drainage stack just below gutter and
second floor dormers. Provide open grid instead in order to comply.

17.Soil stack to be properly supported and clipped back to wall where it is taken
over an existing rainwater down-pipe.

18.Provide secondary vent to the third floor lounge kitchen sinks. Recommend
that a Hepworth HepvO hygienic self-sealing waste valve be fitted in order to
comply.

19. Provide a weather-tight finish at fans.

20.Dormer windows to be properly sealed; gaps visible between lead-work and
mortar, and timber exposed.

21.Handrail to internal stairwell from third fioor to attic floor to be made
continuous and taken 300mm onto landings.

22.Confirm adeqguate roof ventilation provided to main roof area.

When these matters have been resolved please contact me to arrange a suitable
time to carry out a further inspection.

it is important that you obtain a Certificate of Completion as soon as possible.
Experience has shown that not having this can often cause difficulties at some later
date particularly when the property is being sold.

A Building Warrant is valid for a pericd of three years from the date of approval
unless an extension to the period of the life of the warrant has been granted. The
arrangements relating to the Completion Certificate process should be done within
this period.

It is the City Council’'s policy to issue a Certificate of Completion on Building Warrants
up to 5 years old; thereafter no certificate will be issued.

PTO

GORDON McINTOSH
DIRECTOR

Page 144



Continued
Please note that a reminder to this letter will not be sent out.

Yours faithfully

Richard Hoggins
Snr Building Standards Officer.

GORDON McINTOSH
DIRECTOR

Page 145



From: Richard Hogglns AHoggns@aberdesncity govuk
Subject: 13 Rose Street - B1004B5
Date: 24 February 2014 12:25
To: o burnsconstrucion. net

Ce: info@itrgeraldassociates co.uk
FAO Graeme Bruce Contracts Manager

| forgot to include two further points for the completion letter about the certification you gave me
on site. | need to confirm the earth bond to the gas boiler and | also need certification for the one
hour door.

We are always trying to improve the quality of customer service that we provide and would like to
know your views on the service you have received to help us learn what we need to do better. We
would very much appreciate you taking a few moments to fill in our short feedback form by clicking
on http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/customerfeedback and selecting Building Standards. Many
thanks in advance.

Regards
Richard Hoggins
Snr Building Standards Officer

Enterprise Planning & Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council

e 5 Business Hub 4
zwﬁ @4 Ground Floor North
Ei._J_J Marischal College
20 n Broad Street
aggﬁ , Aberdeen, AB10 1AB
Tel: 01224 522422, Fax: 01224 636181
Website: http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

IMPORTANT NOTICE: This e-mail (including any attachment to it) is confidential, protected by
copyright and may be privileged. The information contained in it should be used for its intended
purposes only. If you receive this email in error, notify the sender by reply email, delete the
received email and do not make use of, disclose or copy it. Whilst we take reasonabie precautions to
ensure that our emalls are free from viruses, we cannot be responsible for any viruses transmitted
with this email and recommend that you subject any incoming email to your own virus checking
procedurgs. Unless related to Council business, the opinions expressed in this email are those of
the sender and they do not necessarily constitute those of Aberdeen City Council. Unless we
expressly say otherwise in this email or its attachments, neither this email nor its attachments
create, form part of or vary any contractual or unilateral obligation. Aberdeen City

Council's incoming and outgoing email is subject to regular monitoring.

Page 146




Signed (authorised Officer(s)):

RECOMMENDATION:
Refuse

DESCRIPTION

Agenda ltem 9

73 CHARLOTTE STREET, ABERDEEN

REINSTATEMENT OF BASEMENT FLATS
(2NOS) TO HABITABLE STUDIO APTS.

For: AMD PROPERTY (ABDN) LTD

Application Type : Detailed Planning
Permission

Application Ref. . P141535
Application Date  : 02/10/2014

Advert :

Advertised on

Officer : Dineke Brasier
Creation Date : 24 November 2014
Ward: George Street/Harbour (A May/J
Morrison/N Morrison)

Community Council: No response received

73 Charlotte Street is a three storey tenement-style building split into six flats. It is

constructed of granite rubble and has a slated ro

of with dormers on the front and

rear elevation. Overall ground levels are relatively flat, although there are internal
steps down to the basement level access. The rear basement elevation is
exposed, as there is a 1.3m deep ‘trench’ along its length. There are two window
openings in that exposed rear elevation. The rear garden area has been turned

into a parking area, with only a small amount o
low metal fence, near the building.

The site is located within an existing residential

f amenity space, enclosed by a

area, although the other side of

the street is identified as being part of a mixed use zone.

RELEVANT HISTORY
None

PROPOSAL

Page 147



Planning consent is sought for the conversion of the rearmost part of the
basement to 2x two roomed studio flats. The resultant flats would each be
accessed from the existing rear door and make use of the two existing windows
in the rear elevation. The accommodation would consist of a small
living/sleeping/kitchen area with a separate bathroom.

Supporting Documents

All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref.=141535

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first
page of this report.

CONSULTATIONS

Roads ProjectsTeam — No observations

Environmental Health — No observations

Communities, Housing and Infrastructure (Flooding) — None received
Community Council — None received

REPRESENTATIONS
None received
PLANNING POLICY

Aberdeen Local Development Plan
D1 — Architecture and Placemaking: New development must be designed with
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting.

D2 — Design and Amenity: In order to ensure the provision of appropriate levels

of amenity, the following principles will be applied:

e Privacy shall be designed into higher density housing;

¢ Residential development shall have a public face to a street and a private
face to an enclosed garden or street;

¢ All residents shall have access to sitting-out areas;

¢ Individual flats or houses shall be designed to make the most of opportunities
offered by the site for views and sunlight.

H1 — Residential Areas: In principle residential development will be acceptable in

residential areas if:

¢ It does not constitute overdevelopment;

e |t does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of the
surrounding area.

Page 148



Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

D1 — Quality Place Making by Design (D1 Architecture and Placemaking and D2
- Design and Amenity in the Adopted Local Development Plan)

H1 — Residential Areas (H1 — Residential Areas in the Adopted Local
Development Plan)

EVALUATION

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Principle of residential development

The site is located within a residential area, where the principle of residential
development is acceptable provided it complies with all policies in relation to
design, provision of amenity and does not constitute overdevelopment.

Impact on character and appearance of existing dwelling and the surrounding
area:

The only external alterations to the property are the replacement of the two
basement windows with similar examples. The outdoor area to the rear is already
mainly hard surfaced, and this proposal does not include any further alterations.
The proposed external changes are minor, and do not have any impact on the
character and appearance of the existing and the surrounding area.

Impact on residential amenities:

The proposal would not have any impact on the operation of the residential flats
above. The basement door would not be blocked off and residents will still have
internal access to the area within the rear part of the basement (possible storage)
and to the rear external area which is used for parking.

Policy D2 sets out that all new flatted developments should have access to
suitable outdoor space. The area to the rear of the building is accessible to the
residents of the proposed flats. Most of this area is taken up by hard landscaping
with a small area of drying space directly out of the door. For new development,
the proportion of hard landscaping should not exceed 50%. This is not the case
here, however, the proposal is for the conversion of an unused area of this
existing tenement building. As such, on this occasion, this is considered
acceptable.

The studio apartments are very small, with the total internal floorspace of each
just over 19m? (205 ft2). Whilst, the flats are big enough to comply with all criteria
set out in building standards. As such, it could be argued that they are large
enough to provide acceptable living accommodation.

Page 149



The main issue in relation to this conversion is natural day light, outlook and
amenity/privacy. The only source of natural light is provided through the windows
and serving the only living space. These windows face south west, which means
they should catch sunlight most of the day. However, the right hand window is
clearly overshadowed by a lean-to extension and boundary wall from 71
Charlotte Street. In addition, the lower section of both windows are below ground
level and obscured by a bank providing access to the drying and parking area to
the rear. Taking into consideration that these windows are the only source of
natural light into the studio flats, this will result in limited natural light. Additionally
the outlook into the surfaced car park and small communal external amenity area
would be sub-standard and result in little quality in outlook and relatively regular
impacts on privacy. As such, a suitable level of residential amenity would not be
achieved. The proposal is therefore considered contrary to policy D2 (Design and
Amenity) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and policy D1 (Quality Place
Making by Design) of the Proposed Local Development Plan.

Impact on highways, especially in relation to parking and access:

The area to the rear is available for car parking for the two basement flats. At
present, six flats can use this area. The area is not formally laid out, but appears
sufficiently large to accommodate a further two spaces required for this
development. In addition, the site is within a very sustainable location near the
city centre and close to a number of bus routes.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

The Proposed ALDP was approved at the meeting of the Communities, Housing
and Infrastructure Committee of 28 October 2014. It constitutes the Council’s
settled view as to what should be the content of the final adopted ALDP and is
now a material consideration in the determination of planning applications, along
with the adopted ALDP. The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the
Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific applications
will depend on whether:
- these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main
Issues Report; and
- the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main
Issues Report; and
- the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration
The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis. In relation to this
particular application no new issues have been raised.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

Page 150



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

The two studio flats, especially the flat on the right hand side of the rear
elevation, are considered not to receive a sufficient level of natural light, amenity
or privacy. This is due to: the location of the single window serving the proposed
studio flat, which is located behind a raised bank and is severely overshadowed
by an existing single storey extension at the neighbouring property of 71
Charlotte Street; limited outlook; and likely impingement on privacy within the
single living space, as a result of persons accessing the existing flats in the upper
floors. The proposal is therefore considered to be contrary to policy D2 (Design
and Amenity) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and policy D1 (Quality
Place Making by Design) of the Proposed Local Development Plan.

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 152



Agenda ltem 10

Policy D1 — Architecture and Placemaking

To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its
setting. Factors such as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation,
details, the proportions of building elements, together with the spaces around
buildings, including streets, squares, open space, landscaping and boundary
treatments, will be considered in assessing that contribution.

To ensure that there is a consistent approach to high quality development
thropughout the City with an emphasis on creating quality places, the
Aberdeen Masterplannign Process Supplementary Guidance will be applied.

The level of detail required will be appropriate to the scale and sensitivity of
the site. The full scope will be agreed with us prior to commencement.

Landmark or high buildings should respect the height and scale of their
surroundings, the urban topography, the City’s skyline and aim to preserve or
enhance important views.

Policy D2 - Design and Amenity

In order to ensure the provision of appropriate levels of amenity the following
principles will be applied:

1. Privacy shall be designed into higher density housing.

2. Residential development shall have a public face to a street and a
private face to an enclosed garden or court.

3. All residents shall have access to sitting-out areas. This can be
provided by balconies, private gardens, terraces, communal gardens or
other means acceptable to the Council.

4. When it is necessary to accommodate car parking within a private
court, the parking must not dominate the space: as a guideline no more
than 50% of any court should be taken up by parking spaces and
access roads. Underground or decked parking will be expected in high
density schemes.

5. Individual flats or houses within a development shall be designed to
make the most of opportunities offered by the site for views and
sunlight. Repeated standard units laid out with no regard for location or
orientation are not acceptable.

6. Development proposals shall include measures to design out crime
and design in safety.

Page 153



7.

External lighting shall take into account residential amenity and
minimise light spillage into adjoining areas and the sky.

Development deemed to have an influence on public realm in the City Centre,
Town, District or Neighbourhood Centres will make an agreed contribution to
art or other enhancement of the public realm.

Policy H1 — Residential Areas

Within existing residential areas (H1 on the Proposals Map) and within new
residential developments, proposals for new residential developmetn and
householder development will be approved in principle if it:

1.
2.

3.

4.
5.

Does not constitute overdevelopment

Does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of
the surrounding area

Does not result in the loss of valuable and valued areas of open space.
Open space is defined in the Aberdeen Open Space Audit 2010
Complies with Supplementary Guidance on Curtilage Splits; and
Complies with Supplementary Guidance on House Extensions

Within existing residential areas, proposals for non-residential uses will be
refused unless:

1.
2.

They are considered complementary to residential use
It can be demonstrated that the use would cause no conflict with, or
any nuisance to, the enjoyment of existing residential amenity

Page 154



Agenda Item 11

LTR/12-065/6/MT

06 January 2015 O

cummMinNg:--<Co

Planning Department

Aberdeen City Council

Planning, & Sustainable Development
Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North, Marischal College
Broad Street, Aberdeen

AB10 1AB

Dear Sirs

73 Charlotte Street, Aberdeen. P14 1535

We write with reference to the above and now enclose our Notice of Review comprising the
following.

1. Application form duly completed.

2. Copy of our drawings 12-065 EX01, SK-01, SK02 PLO

3. Copy of exchange of emails with planning officer.

We are of the opinion that the as the application was for reinstatement of existing basement
apartments then the lighting situation into these apartments would not have been altered from
previous. Accordingly we do not agree that this is a valid reason for refusal.

We trust you find this in order and look forward to hearing from you in due course.

Yours faithf

v

Mark Taylor
for Cummingandco (Aberdeen) Ltd

Enc

[RECEIVED
-8 JAN 2015

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 156



Notice of Review

NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED)IN
RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE)
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (APPEALS) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

IMPORTANT: Please read and follow the guidance notes provided when completing this form.
Failure to supply all the relevant information could invalidate your notice of review.

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing in manuscript

Applicant(s) Agent (if any)
Name [AMD @Kofeexy (Vepm) aD | Name  |[CoMmMing, 4Co (ARON) UTD |
Address |72 CirhtacTHE STLEEY Address |ALplioN HovsE

Ageai=E (o cASTLEILL, ABBENSEN

Postcode | K24 \LY Postcode |W& |\ &3
Contact Telephone 1 Contact Telephone 1 (D224 255bce
Contact Telephone 2 Contact Telephone 2 | —
Fax No Fax No 024 Z55L=3
E-mail* | | E-mail* IlV\(‘Ao Ccomminecadke acovin |

Mark this box to confirm all contact should be
through this representative:

Yes No
* Do you agree to correspondence regarding your review being sent by e-mail? & \:l
Planning authority |AReD=E ooy counete |
Planning authority’s application reference number 1PV 1535 |
Site address 72 MU TTE STEED, ¥zeeDZeR
Description of proposed  |Dginseru7FMHERT OF BHSEIMEWT Fen1s (2rno) TO
development
g e THELE STVDEe AVTS.
Date of application [2 //6//4 | Date of decision (if any) ot ] 122014 . |

Note. This notice must be served on the planning authority within three months of the date of the decision
notice or from the date of expiry of the period allowed for determining the application-
piry P g ppwﬁﬁﬁrﬁw%@

-9 JAN 205

o e e e == = IS

Page 1 of 4 L

Page 157




Notice of Review
Nature of application

1. Application for planning permission (including householder application) &

2. Application for planning permission in principle D

3. Further application (including development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit
has been imposed; renewal of planning permission; and/or modification, variation or removal of
a planning condition)

4. Application for approval of matters specified in conditions |:|
Reasons for seeking review

1. Refusal of application by appointed officer

2. Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the period allowed for
determination of the application

3. Conditions imposed on consent by appointed officer

OOK

Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any
time during the review process require that further information or representations be made to enable them
to determine the review. Further information may be required by one or a combination of procedures,
such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or inspecting the land
which is the subject of the review case.

Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the
handling of your review. You may tick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a
combination of procedures.

1.  Further written submissions |:]
2. One or more hearing sessions .
3. Site inspection X
4  Assessment of review documents only, with no further procedure K{

If you have marked box 1 or 2, please explain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement
below) you believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consider further submissions or a
hearing are necessary:

Site inspection

In the event that the Local Review Body decides to inspect the review site, in your opinion:

Yes No
1. Can the site be viewed entirely from public land? D
2 Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely, and without barriers to entry? m |:]

If there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unable to undertake an
unaccompanied site inspection, please explain here:

Page 2 of 4

Page 158




Notice of Review
Statement

You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all
matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not
have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review at a later date. It is therefore essential that
you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely on and wish
the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.

If the Local Review Body issues a notice requesting further information from any other person or body,
you will have a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by
that person or body.

State here the reasons for your notice of review and all matters you wish to raise. If necessary, this can
be continued or provided in full in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation
with this form.

THE HARATEON tMS L TME ESEhSTHTITENT o8 THE fdsBrmErT
e . THESE LWEYE AT onE TiIE ORI THRAS S ety SSE

1D LEvEon) iy THis Skoued FvE a2~ ECTvsED

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the Yes No
determination on your application was made? |:| |X]

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising new material, why it was not raised with
the appointed officer before your application was determined and why you consider it should now be
considered in your review.

Page 3 of 4

Page 159




Notice of Review
List of documents and evidence

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with
your notice of review and intend to rely on in support of your review.

l. DeAwing 12-065 Sko2 , o3 4,00/, Skol.
2. ExCHArorE o EVMILS wlTlr Pistraong oFFicet

Note. The planning authority will make a copy of the notice of review, the review documents and any
notice of the procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority until
such time as the review is determined. It may also be available on the planning authority website.

Checklist

Please mark the appropriate boxes to confirm you have provided all supporting documents and evidence
relevant to your review:

[Z' Full completion of all parts of this form
B Statement of your reasons for requiring a review
All documents, materials and evidence which you intend to rely on (e.g. plans and drawings

or other documents) which are now the subject of this review.

Note. Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or
modification, variation or removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval
of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the application reference number, approved
plans and decision notice from that earlier consent.

Declaration

| the applicant/agent [delete as appropriate] hereby serve notice on the planning authority to
review the application as set out on this form and in the supporting documents.

7 Date [[1]14 |

ey,

Signed

ON AL o C/MMIAE, 4 Co
(DS v

Page 4 of 4

Page 160




INCUMING E-MAIL MESSAUR

Project No.:
Client:
Description:
Location:

From:
Subject:

To:

Attachments:

Doc Ref.:
Sent:

Message:

Hi Mark,

rage 1 ot 3

INCOMING E-MAIL MESSAGE

12-065
Mrs Alison Easton
Basement renovation

City Centre, Aberdeen

Dineke Brasier [DBrasier@aberdeencity.gov.uk]
RE: FW: 141535: 73 Charlotte Street, Aberdeen

Mark Taylor [mark@cummingandco.com]

EML-INC/12-065/21

25th Nov 2014 at 11:27 Received: 25th Nov 2014 at 11:28

Thanks for that. My main concern with this application is in relation to natural daylight entering the studio flats,
and then especially the one on the right hand side. | noticed that this window gets overshadowed a lot by the
existing lean-to extension next door and | have some serious concerns as to whether this will result in a very

dark living space.

Kind regards,

Dineke

From: Mark Taylor [mailto:mark@cummingandco.com]
Sent: 25 November 2014 11:16

To: Dineke Brasier

Subject: Re: FW: 141535 73 Charlotte Street, Aberdeen

REFERENCE EML-OUT/12-065/18
For the attention of DBrasier@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Hi Dineke, | have confirmation from our client as follows:

"The outside space at the rear of the building is communal. There is provision for 5 parking spaces, currently
only one resident has a car.

The residents use the communal bin situated outside the main door on Charlotte Street. This is provided by
the council. Should residents require their own bins in the future there is plenty storage space at the rear of

the building."

Trust this assists.

Regards,

Mark Taylor
Director

Cummingandco (Aberdeen) Ltd » Architects

about:blank

Page 161 06/01/2015



INCOMING E-MAIL MESSAGE

Albion House, 6 Castlehill, Aberdeen, AB11 5GJ.
w: http://www.cummingandco.com
e: mark@cummingandco.com
t: 01224 355600
f: 01224 355603

Page 2 of 3

The following refers to email messages transmitted from, or on behalf of, cummingandco Architects.
This information contained in any e-mail and their attached files, including replies and forwarded copies, are
confidential and intended solely for the addressee(s) and may be legally privileged or prohibited from

disclosure and unauthorised use.

If you are not the named addressee you may not use, copy or disclose this information to any other person.
If you received this message in error please notify the sender immediately and delete all copies of the email

and associated files.

If you are not the intended recipient, any form of reproduction, dissemination, copying, disclosure,

modification, distribution and/or publication or any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance upon this

message or its attachments is prohibited and may be unlawful.

Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the originator and do not necessarily represent those of

cummingandco Architects.

All liability for viruses is excluded to the fullest extent permitted by law.

----- Original Message-----START

From: Info [info@cummingandco.com]

Sent: 24th Nov 2014 at 08:00 (GMT+00:00)
Received: 24th Nov 2014 at 08:00 (GMT+00:00)
To: Mark Taylor [mark@cummingandco.com]
Subject: FW: 141535:; 73 Charlotte Street, Aberdeen
Attachments:

Importance: Normal

From: Dineke Brasier [mailto:DBrasier@aberdeencity.gov.uk]
Sent: 21 November 2014 15:18

To: Info

Subject: 141535: 73 Charlotte Street, Aberdeen

Dear Mr Taylor,

about:blank Page 162

06/01/2015



LINAOAJLVLILINRD LU 7IVIAALLS AVALADOD LA L, Lagv o uL o

| am currently dealing with the above planning application. Prior to making a determination, | would like to ask
if you can provide me with some more information in relation to the outside space to the rear of the building.
During my site visit, | noticed that part of the back garden was taken up by parking and that there was some
outdoor amenity space. Could you please provide some more information on that space, i.e. how many
parking spaces are available for each flat, and whether the residents of the studio flats could use the outdoor
space as well? | would also want to clarify the arrangements for bin storage.

Many thanks,

Kind regards,

Dineke Brasier

Planner

Planning and Sustainable Development | Communities, Housing and Infrastructure |Aberdeen City Council
|Business Hub 4 |Ground Floor North |Marischal College | Broad Street |[Aberdeen |AB10 1AB

Tel: +44(0) 1224 523514 | Email: dbrasier@aberdeencity.gov.uk | Web: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

IMPORTANT NOTICE: This e-mail (including any attachment to it) is confidential, protected by copyright and
may be privileged. The information contained in it should be used for its intended purposes only. If you receive
this email in error, notify the sender by reply email, delete the received email and do not make use of, disclose
or copy it. Whilst we take reasonable precautions to ensure that our emails are free from viruses, we cannot
be responsible for any viruses transmitted with this email and recommend that you subject any incoming email
to your own virus checking procedures. Unless related to Council business, the opinions expressed in this
email are those of the sender and they do not necessarily constitute those of Aberdeen City Council. Unless
we expressly say otherwise in this email or its attachments, neither this email nor its attachments create, form
part of or vary any contractual or unilateral obligation. Aberdeen City Council's incoming and outgoing email is
subject to regular monitoring.

This message has been scanned for viruses and dangerous

content by Converged, and is believed to be clean.

----- Original Message-----END

This message has been scanned for viruses and dangerous
content by Converged, and is believed to be clean.

about:blank 06/01/2015
Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 164



e e

€10Z AYVNNYE 0s:1

NYld INIW3SYE ONILSIXS

133418 LLOTHYHO €4

a17(N330¥38Y) ALNIH0Nd WY

 PRINCIPAL PLAN|

0422 HO
1el4 olpng
paueAuooUN

0004 - OM

Page 165

Jo0y Jaquuil
0LZZ HD

1|4 olpnig
pauaAuodun

MOLLIXHOLZL M
056 - OM

usspiaqy ‘19a.)S 9)0leYD €/ e SUOISIaAUO)) Je|4 pesodold




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 166



[ ] poe — OODC@@C: UMD Usepieqy ‘Jeens eRoueyQ g/ Je suoisienuo) je|4 pesodoid

£10Z AMVNNYT 0G:L .
- WO 03PUBBUILLILIND MMM
L HOL3MS NY1d LN3W3SYE i ' woo oopuebuiuwno@op
€£09GGE $ZZ10 XE|
133418 AL LOWVHO €L cﬁ“oh M..n._,.._ M.“ asnoy uoiqie
aL1(N330438Y) ALYIdONd aWY .
_ sjesodoud |

Buiuued - ue|d Jooyj} Juswaseyg |

| PRINCIPAL PLAN

Page 167

2 a N
100} Jaqui | b 4| Jooy Jequuiy
0LZZ HO / . 0L2Z HO

1813 oiprig 01 D 18l oipris




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 168



|

| PRINCIPAL PLAN |

cOMS S90-2L

OOt::@C: UUJND  uespieqy ‘1991l sjoeyd ¢/ Je suoisieauo) jej4 pesodoid
£L0Z AYYNNYT 00kt - 4

NOILYAFT3 LNIWISYE
133418 3L10THYHD €2

017(N330438Y) ALH3d0Hd AWy

oy pesodoid| uoneas|3 Jeay Bunsix3|

ybiy mau L S1SRQ By JO) BY|| € LD
@2eydes 8q o) mopuim dadn Bugsng

Page 169



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 170



	Agenda
	1 Procedure Notice
	3 Delegated Report
	4 Planning policies referred to in documents submitted
	5 Notice of Review with supporting information submitted by applicant / agent
	Application_Summary
	Grounds_of_Appeal_Statement
	Supporting_Documents
	Appendix_1
	Appendix_2
	Appendix_3
	Appendix_4_a
	Appendix_4_b
	Appendix_4_c
	Appendix_4_d
	Appendix_4_e
	Appendix_4_f
	Appendix_4_g
	Appendix_4_h
	Appendix_4_i
	Appendix_4_j
	Appendix_5_a
	Appendix_5_b
	Appendix_6
	Appendix_7
	Appendix_8
	Appendix_9
	Appendix_10

	9 Delegated Report
	10 Planning policies referred to in documents submitted
	11 Notice of Review with supporting information submitted by applicant / agent
	73 Charlotte Street - Notice of Review
	73 Charlotte Street - Correspondence with Planner
	Plan 1
	Plan 2
	Plan 3


